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if you are in any doubt as to the course ot action you should take, you should consult your stockbroker, bank
manager, solicitor, accountant or other professional adviser immediataly.
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CIRCULAR TO SHAREHOLDERS
IN RELATION TO

m CONDITIONAL TAKE-OVER OFFER BY UEM LAND HOLDINGS BERHAD {"ULHB"} TO
ACQURE ALL THE ORDINARY SHARES OF RM1.00 EACH IN SUNRISE BERHAD
(EXCLUDING TREASURY SHARES) NOT ALREADY OWNED BY ULHB ("OFFER SHARES”}
AT AN OFFER PRICE OF RM2.80 PER OFFER SHARE; AND

n PROPOSED INCREASE IN ULHB’S AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL TO RM3,517,000,000
COMPRISING 7,000,000,000 ORDINARY SHARES OF RM0.50 EACH IN ULHE, 200,000,000
MANDATORY CONVERTIBLE REDEEMABLE PREFERENCE SHARES OF RMQ.01 EACH TN
ULHB AND 1,500,000,000 REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES OF
RMO0.01 EACH IN ULHB AND NECESSARY AMENDMENTS TCO ULHB'S MEMORANDUM
AND ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION (“PROPOSED |ASCY)

AND

NOTICE OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Adviser

kJ CiMB

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad (18417-M)
{A Participating Qrganisation ol Bursa Malaysia Sscuritisas Berhad)

The N.ou-::e 61 Extracrdinary General Meeting (*“EGM") and the Proxy Form are set cut in this Circular. Our EGM E
will be held as follows: L

Date and tima of EGM : Wednesday, 22 December 2010 at 10.00 am., or at any .
adjournment
Venue of EGM . Banguet Hall, Menara Korporat, Persada PLUS, Persimpangan |

Bertingkat Subang, KM15 lebuhraya Baru Lembah Klang, }
47301 Petaling Jaya, Selangor Barul Ehsan

tast date and time tor lodging the Proxy Form @ Monday, 20 December 2010 at 10.00 a.m. }

This Circular is dated 30 Novernber 2010



DEFINITIONS

The following definitions shall apply throughout this Circular unless the context requires otherwize:

Act

BND

Board

Bursa Secunties

Cash Conversion Method

CIMB
CMSA

Code

Consideration RCPS
Consideration Shares
Conversion Shares

EGM

EPS

FYE
Holders
Khazanah
LPD

MCRPS
NA

Non-Cash Convarsion
Method

N_otice
Cffer

Offer Document

Companies Act, 1965 and any amendments made thereto from time to
time

Bardar Nusajaya Development Sdn Bhd, our indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary

Board of Directors
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad

Cne of the two modes of conversion of the RCFS, whereby the RCPS
can be converted into new Conversion Shares by tendering 1 RCPS with
cash subscription of RM1.30 per RCPS for 1 new Conversion Share

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

Capital Markets and Services Act, 2007 and any amendments made
thereto from time to time

Malaysian Code on Take-Overs and Mergers, 1998 and any amendments
made thersto from time {o time

New RCPES to be issued at an issue price of RM1.00 each pursuant to the
Qffer

New ULHB Shares to be issued at an issug price of RM2.10 each
pursuant to the Offer

New UULHB Shares to be issued upon conversion of the Consideration
RCPS

Extraordinary General Meeting

Earnings per share

Financial year ended/ending

Holders of the Offer Shares

Khazanah Nasional Berhad, our ultimate holding company

19 November 2010, ceing the latest practicable date before the printing of
this Clrcular

Mandatory convertible redeemable preference shares of RM0.01 each in
our Company

Net assets

One of the two modes of conversion of the RCPS, whereby the RCPS
can be converted into new Conversion Shares by tendering such amount
of RCPS that are equal to the conversion price for 1 new Conversion
Share computed as foliows:

No. of new Conversion issue price of RM1.00 x no. of RCPS
Shares - conversion price of RM2.30

Notice of the Offer dated 4 November 2010

Conditional take-over offer by our Company to acquire the Offer Shares
from the Hoiders in accordance with the terms and conditions set out in
the Offer Document

The offer document dated 25 November 2010 which sets out the details
of the Offer together with the form of acceptance and transfer for the
Offer



DEFINITIONS (cont'd)

Offer Price
Offer Shares

PACs
PATAM!
PER
PEBT
PER

Proposals
Proposed IASC

RCPS3

RGPS Alternative

Rights Issue

Share Alterpative

Sunrise
Sunrise Group

Sunrise Interim Dividend

Sunrisg Shares
UEM Land
UEMG

ULHE Shares
VWAMP

50% Acceptance
Condition

Offer price ot RM2.80 tor each Otfer Share

Sunrise Shares (excluding treasury shares) not already owned by our
Company

Persons acting in concert with our Company (in accordance with Section
216(2) and {3) of the CMSA} with respect to the Dtter, namely UEMG and
Khazanah

Profit after tax and minority interests

Price to book ratio

Profit betore tax

Prize to earnings ratio

The Qffer and the Proposed IASC, collectively

Preposed increase in our authorised share capital to RM3,517,000,000
comprising 7,000,000,000 ULHB Shares, 200,000,000 MCRPS and
1,500,000,000 RCPS and necessary amendments to our Company's
Memorandum and Aricles of Association

Redeemable converlible preference shares ot RMO0.01 each in our
Company

Dne ot the two alternatives offered to the Holders to satisfy the Offer
Price. Under this altemative, a Holder will receive 2.80 Consideration
RCPS (based on an issue price of RM1.00 each) for evary 1 Otter Share
surrendered

Renounceable rights issue by our Company ot 1,214,088,456 new ULHB
Shares ("Rights Shares”) on the basis of 1 Rights Share tor every 2 then
existing ULHB Shares at an issue price ot RM0.80 each, which was
completed on 28 April 2010

One of the two alternatives offered to the Holders to satisty the Offer
Price. Under this atternative, a Holder will receive approximately 1.33
Censideration Shares (based on an issug price of RM2.10 each) tor every
1 Otfer Share surrendered

Sunrise Berhad
Collectively, Sunrise and its subsidiaries

20 gsen net interim dividend declared by Sunrise on 3 November 2010,
whereby the entittement date thereof was on 22 November 2010

Drdinary shares ot RM1.00 each in Sunrise

UEM Land Berhad, our wholly-owned subsidiary
UEM Group Berhad, our immediate holding company
Ordinary shares ot RM0.50 each in our Company
Volume-weighted average market price

One of the conditions of the Dffer, where we would have to receive,
betore the close of the Offer, valid acceptances (provided that such
acceptances are not, where permitted, subsequently withdrawn} in
respact of the Otter Shares, which would result in our Company holding,
in aggregate with such Sunrise Shares that are already acquired, held or
entitled o be acquired or held by our Company and the PACs, if any,
more than 50% ot the voting shares ot Sunrise



DEFINITIONS (cont'd)

CURRENCIES

AUD : Australian Dollar

CAD . Canadian Dollar

EUR : Eurc

RM and sen . Ringgit Mataysia and sen, respectively
Ush . United States of America Dollar

All references to “our Company” or "ULHB" in this Circular are to UEM Land Holdings Berhad and
references to “our Group” are to our Company and our subsidiaries. References to "we”, “us”, “our” and
‘ourselves” are to our Company and, where the context otherwise requires, our subsidiaries. References

to “our enlarged Group” are to our Group and the Sunrise Group assuming completion of the Offer.

All references to “you” in this Gircular are to the shareholders of our Company.

Words denoting the singular shall, where applicable, include the plural and vice versa, and words
denoting the masculine gender shall, where applicable, include the feminine and/or neuter genders, and
vice versa. References to persons shall include corporations.

Any discrepancies in the tables included in this Circular between the amounts listed, actual figures and
the totals thereof are due to rounding,

Any reference to a time of day and date in this Circular is a reference to Malaysian {ime and date,
respectively.
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A member of UEM Group

UEM LAND HOLDINGS BERHAD

{Company No.: §30744-W)
{incomarated in Malaysfa under the Act]

Registered office:
19-2, Mercu UEM
Jalan Stesen Sentral 6
Kuala Lumpur Sentral
50470 Kuala Lumpur

30 November 2010
Cirectors:

Tan Sri Dr Ahmad Tajuddin Ali (Chairman/Non-indspendsnt Non-Executive Director)
Dato’ Wan Abdullah Wan |brahim (Managing Director/Chief Exsctitive Officer)

Date” Mohd Izzaddin 1dris (Non-Independent Mon-Executive Direcior)

Abdul Kadir Md Kassim (Non-independent Non-Executive Director)

Sheranjiv M. Sammanthan (Non-fndependent Non-Exscutive Director)

Md Ali Md Dewal {Senior independent Non-Executive Diractor)

Oh Kim Sun (Independent Non-Executive Diracior)

Date' Ikmal Hijaz Hashim {independent Non-Executive Direcitor)

To: Our sharehclders
Dear SirMfdadam

PROPOSALS

1. INTRODUCTION

On 4 November 2010, on behalf of our Company, CIMB served the Notice on Sunrise’s Board
informing Sunrise of our intention to undentake a conditional take-over offer to acquire the Offer
Shares at the Offer Price. The serving of the Netice was announced to Bursa Securilies on 4
November 2010

On 25 November 2010, the Offer Document was despatched to the shareholders of Sunrise.

To facilitate the Offer, we intend to increase our authorised share capital to RiM3,517,000,000
comprising 7,000,000,000 ULHB Shares, 200,000,000 MCRPS and 1,500.000,000 RCFS and to
make the necessary amendments to our Company's Memaorandum and Articles of Association.

The purpose of this Circular is to provide you with the details of the Proposals and to seek your
approval for the resolutions pertaining to the Prepesals to be tabled at our ferthcoming EGM. The
Notice of EGM and the Proxy Form are enclosed with this Circular.

WE ADVISE YOU TO READ AND CONSIDER CAREFULLY THE CONTENTS OF THIS
CIRCULAR BEFORE VOTING ON THE RESOLUTIONS PERTAINING TO THE PROPOSALS
TO BE TABLED AT OUR FORTHCOMING EGM.



2.

DETAILS OF THE PROPOSALS

21

2.2

23

24

We intend to acquire the Offer Shares at the Offer Price t¢ be satisfied in either of the
following manner, at the election of the Halders:

(0 through the issuance of Consideration Shares at an issue price of RM2.10 each,
where the Holders will receive approximately 1.33 Consideration Shares for
every 1 Offer Share surrendered; or

{fh) through the issuance of Consideration RCPS at an issue price of RM1 .00 each,
where the Holders will receive 2.80 Consideration RCPS for every 1 Offer Share
surrendered. The Consideration RCPS can be converted into new Conversion
Shares at a conversion price of RM2.30 via the Non-Cash Conversion Method ar
the Cash Conversion Method or redeemed at RM1.00 each.

Save and except for the Sunrise Interim Dividend, if Sunrise declares any dividend
and/or other distributions {"Distributions™) on or after 4 November 2010, being the date
of the Netice and our Company is not entitled to retain such Distributions, we may
reduce the Offer Price by the gquantum of net Distributions per Sunrise Share that the
Holders are entitled to retain, hence reducing the number of Consideration Shares
and/or Consideration RCPS to be issued.

Similarly, if cur Company declares any Distributions before the Consideration Shares are
issued and the Holders are not entitled to retain such Distributions, we will increase the
number of Consideration Shares to be issued as consideration for the Cffer Shares by
reducing the issue price of the Consideration Share by the quantum of net Distibutions
per ULHB Share that the Holders are not entitled to.

As at the LPD, there are no changes to the terms of the Offer pursuant to this Section
2.2 (i.e. no reduction of Offer Price or increase in number of Consideration Shares to be
issued).

The Offer is conditional upon the 50% Acceptance Condltlon and is subjact to approvals
being ¢btained fram the following:

{i} the Securities Commission Malaysia under the Equity Requirements of a public
company;

(i) Bank Negara Malaysia for the issuance of the Consideration RCPS to accepting
non-resident Holders;

{iii) Bursa Securities for the listing of and guotation for the Consideration Shares and
Conversion Shares on the Main Market of Bursa Securities which was obtamed
on 29 November 2010,

(iv) our sharehelders at our forthcaming EGM to be convened for the Proposals
(including for the issuance of the new Consideration Shares, Gonsideration
RCPS and Conversion Shares); and

(v) consent ar approval of any other relevant authorfties or parties, if raquired.

As at the LPD, our Company and the PACs do not hold, directly andfor indirectly, any
Sunrise Shares or have any option to acquire Sunrise Shares.
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2.7

2.8

29

210

2.11

As at the LPD, our Company has obtained imevocable undertakings from the following
f?iders to accept the Offer in respect of all their direct shareholdings in Sunrise as
llows:

Ne. of Sunrige Shares heid %'
Gasa Unggul Sdn Brd 120,608,144 24 41
Phoenixflex Sdn Bhd 41,913,873 8.46
Dato’ Lim Kim Huat ' 35,852,269 7.24
Datuk Teng Kooci Ong 1,084 928 0.22
Tan Sri Dato’ Tan Chee Sing 52,000 0.01
Total 199,811,244 40,34
Nofe:
fot Based an Sunnise issued antd paid-up share capifal (excluding lreasury shares) of 495 371, 440

Sunrise Shares as al the LPD.

Our Company will acguire the Offer Shares based on the acceptance by a Holder in
accordance with the Cffer Document. Such acceptance will be deemed {0 constituta a
warranty by the Holder that the Offer Shares, to which the acceptance relates, are sold:

(i) free from all moratorium, claims, charges, liens, encumbrances, options, rights of
pre-emption, third party rights and equities from the date of valid acceplancas;
and

{ii) with all rights and entitlerments attached including the right to all dividends and/er
distrioutions declared, paid or made on or after the date of the Netice.

Holders may accept the Offer in respact of all or part of their Offer Shares. Our Company
will not issue fractions of a Consideration Share or Consideration RCPS to the accepting
Holders. The entitlement of the accepting Holders to the Consideration Shares or
Consideration RCPS will be rounded down to the nearest whole Consideration Share or
Consideration RCPS.

An application has been made to Bursa Sacurities for its approval for the listing of and
quctation for tha Consideration Shares and Conversion Shares on the Main Market of
Bursa Securities, which Bursa Securities had approved on 29 November 2010.

The RCPS will not be listed on any stock exchange.

The Consideration Shares and Conversion Shares shall, upon issue and allotment, rank
pari passti in all respects with the then existing ULHB Shares, save and except that the
holders of such Consideration Shares andfor Conversion Shares shall not be entitied to
any dividend, right, allotment and/or distributicn, the entitlement date of which is prior to
the date of allotment of such Consideration Shares and/or Conversion Shares, as the
case may be.

The RCPS shall, upon issue and allotment, rank parf passu amongst themselves.
Please refer to Appendix | for the terms of the Consideration RCPS.

The actual number of securities to be issued by our Company pursuant to tha Offer
cannot be determined at this juncture as it would depend on the level of acceptance
under the Cffer, manner of settlement (i.e. Share Afternative or RCPS Alternativa) and
where applicable, manner of conversion of Consideration RCPS (i.e. Cash Conversion
Method or Non-Cash Conversion Method), all at the discretion/election of the Holders or
RCPS holders, as the case may be.
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For illustration purposes, based on Sunrise's issued and paid-up ordinary share capital
as at the LPD comprising 485,380,467 Sunrise Shares (including treasury shares), the
maximum number of securities to be issued by our Company under the Offer is as
follows:

(i} up to 680,520,622 Consideration Shares, representing approximately 15.4% of
our enlarged issued and paid-up ordinary share capital {after the Offer}, under
the Share Altemnative; or

(i) up o 1,387,093,307 Consideration RGPS under the RCPS Alternative. In turn,
such number of Consideration RGPS may be converied into up to 1,387,093,307
Conversion Shares, representing approximately 27.6% of our enlarged issued
and paid-up ordinary share capital (after the Offer and such conversion).

The autherised share capital of our Company as at the LPD is RM2,502,000.000
comprising the following:

(i} 5,000,000,000 ULHB Shares of which 3,642,265,367 ULHB Shares are issued
and fully paid-up; and

(it} 200,000,000 MCRPS ot which 154,914,002 MCRPS are issued and fully paid-
up.

To facilitate the issuance of the Consideration Shares, Consideration RCPS and
Conversion Shares pursuant to the Offer, we propose to undertake the Proposed IASC
to increase our authorised share capital to RM3,517,000,000 comprising 7,000,000,000
ULHB Shares (par value of RM0.50 each), 200,000,000 MCRPE {par value of RMG.Q01
each) and 1,500,000,000 RCPS (par value of RM0.01 each), and to make the necessary
amendments to our Company's Memorandum and Arficles of Association. Please refer
to Appendix I1 for details of the proposed amendments to our Company's Memorandum
and Articles ot Association.

BASIS AND JUSTIFICATION FOR ARRIVING AT THE TRANSACTION CONSIDERATIONS
AND ISSUANCE OF SECURITIES

As the Offer entails an equity swap of Sunrise Shares for Consideration Shares or Gonsideration
RGPS, the evaluation of the Offer should not be based solely on the Offer Price or the issue price
of our Company's securities, but rather in relative terms to one another.

The basis and justification for arriving at the transaction considerations for the Offer (including
the issue prices and/or conversion price of our Company’s securities and Ofter Price of the Qffer
Shares) are set out in Sections 3.1 to 3.4 below:
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Historical share price performance

ULHB Share price perfarmance

The graph helow illustrates the share price performance of our Company since our listing
on 18 November 2008 up to 2 November 2010 (being the last full trading day prior to the
date of the Notice) compared agzinst the entry cost of the Holders into our Company
should the Holders choose to accept the Offer (i.e. with reference to the issue price of
Consideration Shares or conversion price of Consideration RCPS):

Shame Price (RM}
Market price of
e e el o e e !
250 GomasionPriceof Ry ULHB Sharest
OO F - - ettt e eaeene e s s
1.5!:! e et e e-ww,
11 January 2010t 5 April 2010:
Announcament of the Entitlernent dats for the
Rlghts Issue . Rights ssuea
0.50
MNow-08 Feb 05 WMay-04 A -0 MNav-B Fet-10 W= 10 Ag-10 New-10
(Source: Bloombang (Melaysia) Sdn Bhd)
Nate:
“ The historical markal price of ULHE Shares has been relrospeciively adfusted for ihe Rights Issue

which was completed on 29 April 2010,
The issue price of RM2.10 per Consideration Share represents a premiumf{discount} to

the following reference VWAMP up to 2 November 2010 {being the last full trading day
pricr to the date of the Notice):

lzsue price premium!

(discount) aver reference 5-day VWAMP of  1-month VWAMP  3-month YWAMP
market prige of ULHB Shares RM2.25 of RM2.33 of RMZ.08
RM {0.15) (0.23) 0.04
% _ (6.7%:} {9.9%:) 1.9%

The conversion price of RM2.30 per Consideration RCPS represenis a premium/
{discount) to the following reference VWAMP up to 2 November 2010:

Canversion price premium/

{discount} over reference 5-day VWAMP of  1-month VWAMP  3-month VWAMP
market price of ULHB Shares RM2.25 of RM2.33 of RMZ2.06
RM 0.05 {0.03) 0.24
% 2.2% [1.3%) 11.7%



Sunrise Share price performance

Share Price (RM)
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(Source: Bloomberg ‘halaysia) Sdn Bhd)
Note:

ief Adjusted for the vet quarfuin of the Sunrise foterin Dividend.

The Offer Price of RM2.80 per Surrise Share is higher than the historical traded market
price of Sunrise Shares over the same period from our Company's listing on 18
Navember 2008 up to 2 November 2010. In addition, the Offer Price of RM2.80 per
Sunrise Share represents a premium to the following reference VWAMP up to 2
Navember 2010:

S-day VWAMP of 1-month VWAMP J-monih VIWAMP
Offer Price premium over RM2.40 of RM2.30 of RM2.20
Market price of RM 0.40 0.50 0.60
Sunrise Shares % 16.7% 21.7% 27.3%
Adjusted market RM .60 0.70 0.80
price oEﬂSunrlsa % 27 3% 13.39% 40.0%
Shares : -3da -
Nota:
iaf The adiusled market price was computed by reduting Survise's referenve YWAMP by tre nef guantum

of the Suririss Inferim Dividend.
Effective premium over Sunrise Shares
Taking into consideration the share exchange ratic under the Share Altemative and
RCPS Altemative, the implied offer prices for the Offer Shares based on different
reference VWAMP are ifustrated as follows:

Share exchange ratio dencted as

approximate na. of ULHE Shares

Implied offer prices for Sunrise

recelved for every Offer Share Shares
Reference VWAMP of ULHE Share RCES Share RGPS
Shares up to 2 Nov 2010 Alternative™ Altarnative™™ Alternative!® Alternative!”
times fimes RM RM
S-day VWAMP of RM2.25 1.28 1.22 2.99 75
1-month VWAMP of RM2.33 1.23 122 310 2.84
3-month VWAMP of RM2.06 1.33 122 274 2.51



3.2

Nafas:

|

Compited by dividing the Offer Price of Offer Shares of RM2.80 each by the issue price of
Considerstion Shares of RMAZ2. 10 each under the Share Affermative.

- Computed by dividing the Gffer Price of Offer Shares of RM2.80 each by ihe conversion price of
Conversion Shares of RM2.30 each undzr the RCPS Affernative wia fhe Non-Cash Conversion
Methed. Arn illustration using the Cash Conversion Method wordd not be comparable in view that
additional cash ontfay is required.

= Conpuled by multiphing ffie ULHB Share refererce VIVAMP with the share exchalge ratio nnder
the Share Alternathve.

Computed by muitiphying the ULHB Share reference VIVAMP with the share exchange ratio andsr
fthe RUPS Atternative wia the Mon-Cash Conversion Meathod,

Based on the range of implied offer prices for Sunrise Shares set out above, the effective

premium paid hased on the comesponding reference VWAMP tor Sunrise Shares are as
follows:

Effective premium aver

Effectlve premium over market adjusted mavket price ot
price ot Sunrise Shares Sunrise Shares™
Refsrance VWAMP of Sunrise Share RCPS Share RCES
Shares up to 2 MNov 2018¢ Alternative Alternative Aiternative Alternative
% % %o %

g.day VWAMP ot RM2.40 248 14.6 3598 250
14month VWAMP ot RM2.3& 34.5 23.5 47.8 352
34nonth VWAMP ot RM2.20 24.5 14.1 3ra 255
Note:
et The adjusted marke! price was complted by reducing Sunrse’s reference VIWAMP by the net

iuanfurm of the Sunrise Interim Dividend.
Share exchange ratio

The share exchange ratio of ULHB Shares for each Offer Share based on different
reference VWAMP against the share exchange ratio under the Share Alternative and
RCPS Alternative is set out as toliows:

Approximate no. of ULHB Shares recelvad for every Sunrse Share swrendered under 1.33
the Dffer via the Share Alternetive

Approximets na. of ILHB Shares received for every Sunrise Share surrendered under 1.22
the Dffer via the RCPS Alternative'™

lllustrative ro. of ULHE Shares
received for every Sunrias Share

dleposad™
Adusted Based an Based an
Market price  Market price  market price market price adjusted
Rafarence VWAMP of ULHBE of Sunrlse ot Sunrise of Sunrise markst price ot
up to 2 Nov 2010 Shares Shares Sherse™ Shares Sunrise Shares
S-day VIWAMPF FEM2.25 REMZ.40 RM2.20 1.07 0.98
1-month VWAMP RMZ2.23 RMZ .30 . RM2.10 0.09 0.50
I manth YWAMP RM2.06 REM2.20 RMZ2.00 1.07 0.97
Notas:
i Azsuiming that the RCPS are converted using fhe Non-Cash Conversion Mathod, An iKustraficn
using the Cash Canversicn Method wonld not he comparable it view that additional cash outlay is

required.
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3.4

it

Compuied by dividing Sunise's refarence VIWAMP (wilh or withow! adiusimenl for the Sunrise
Interimn Dividand} by cur Company's comesponding reference VIVAMP.

The adivsted markel price was compuied by reducing Sumvize’s reference VIWAMP by the net
quardum of the Sunrise Itierim Dividend,

PER and PER

Under the Offer, the implied PER and PER of our Company {(with reterence to
Consideration Shares and Consideration RCPS) and Sunrise (with reference to Ofter
Shares} are as follows:

Offer Shares

Befors After
acdjustment adjustment
for Sunrise for Sunrisa

Consideration Conslderation Interim Interim
Shares RCPS __Plvidend Dividsnd

Retference prics'™ RM 2.10 2.30 2.80 2.80
EPS sen 3.15% 3.5 27.04% 26171
PER times 66.67 73.02 10.36 10.70
NA, per share RM p.g2% 0.82'% 2.21® 2,01
PBR times 2.56 2.80 1.27 1,39
Notes:
&)

o)

&

il

e

[

Raforence (G the issue price of the Consideration Shares, conversion prfce of ihe Considaration
RCPS and Offer Prica of the Offer Shares, respeclively.

Based on our audited consolidated PATAMI for the FYE 37 Docembar 2008 of RM114.6 million,

Buased on our unaudiod consclidsted NA as & 30 Jume 2010 of RMZ2.990.0 million {which
incorporales fhe effects of the Rights fssus which was completod on 28 Apnf 2010).

Based on Survise's audiled consofidated PATAMI for the FYE 30 Juna 2010 of RM134.0 milllon.
Baesed on Suntisc s audited consolidaled NA as af 30 June 2070 of RMY,0584.3 milfion.

Bassd of Suntises audited consofidated PATAMI for Ihe FYE 30 June 2018, adiusfed by lhe
expecied gross finance cost fo ba incurred assuming Sunrlse [unds fhe Surifse Inferm Dividend
anfirely fhrough borrowings. The finance cosi has been estimaled based on the weighted average
casl of borrowings of Sunnise for e FYE 30 June 2010 of 4.36%,

Based on Sunrise’s audited consofidetod NA as af 30 June 2010 which is reduced by the nel
quanium of the Sunnse Interim Dividend,

RCPS5 consideration

In addition to the analysis set out in Sections 3.1 to 3.3 above, the issue price for the
Consideration RCPS was fixed after taking into consideration the following features of
the RCPS:

(I

(i}

(iii}

the opticn to convert the entire holdings of RCPS or part thereof into Conversion
Shares at a conversion price of RM2.30 each at any point in time during the
tenure of the RCPS, with or without additional cash outlay (resulting in different
number of Conversion Shares to be subscribed);

the option to redeem the entire holdings of RCPS or part thereof at & redemption
value of RM1.00 each upon maturity; and

the non-listed status of the RCPS. However, the entire holdings of RCPS or part
thereot can be transtered/sold in accordance with our Company's Arlicles of
Association and the Act. Alternatively, the holders ot the RCPS may convert the
RCPS into Conversion Shares, wheraby such Conversion Shares witl be listed
and ¢an be traded on Bursa Securities.

Please refer to Appendix | for turther detalls on the terms ot the Consideration RCPS.



The conversion price of Consideration RCPS has been fixed at RMZ2.30 (being RMO0.20
higher than the issue price of the Conversion Shares of RM2.10 each) to take into
consideration that the Consideration RCPS includes the added fiexibility as set out in
items (} and {ii) above, which is absent in respect of the Share Alternative. Such pricing
differential also takes into consideration that the intrinsic value of such added flexibility
cannot be easily realised/monetised in view that the RCPS are not listed on any stock
exchange as set out in item (i} above.

In addition to the considerations set out above, our Board has also considersd the
complementary strengths and synergistic fit of both our Group and the Sunrise Group, which are
expecied fo contribute positively to and assist with our strategic objectives and growth plans.
Further details on the rationale and benefits of the Offer are set out in Section 5 below.

After evaluating various altematives/instruments in respect of the consideration far the Offer, the
option of either Share Alternative or RCPS Altermative were chosen i encourage acceptance
under the Offar wherehy the Holders would be able to elect their preferred means of eguity
participation in our enlarged Group as well as having a redemption feature (via the RCPS
Alernative}. Further, given our current phase of business expansion, the use of ULHB Shares
and RCPS was chosen to mitigate the need for our Company to raise any cash proceads upfront
to satisfy the consideration under the Ofier.

Under the RCPS Alternative, our Company may also be able to raise additional funds upaon
conversion of the Consideration RCPS under the Cash Conversion Methad (if any), whereby our
Company intends to use such proceeds raised {as and when the Considemtion RCPS are
converted) for working capital, capital expenditure, investments andfor acguisitions (including the
repayment of borrowings taken in relation therete, if any) in areas related to our enlarged Group's
principal business as and when the opportunity and/or need arises.

The breakdown on the utilisation of such proceeds and the timeframe thereof cannot be
determinad at this juncture as the guantum of the actual proceeds to be raised would depend on
the level of acceptance under the Offer, manner of settlement (i.e. Share Alternative or RCPS
Altemative) and where applicable, manner of conversion of Consideration RCPS {i.e. Cash
Conversion Method or Non-Cash Conversion Method), all at the discretion/election of the
Holders or RCPS holders, as the case may be. Purely for {llustration, assuming all the Holders
elect for the RCPS Altemative, our Company would raise up 1o RM1.8 billion upon full conversion
of the Consideration RCPS under the Cash Conversion Method.

As a whole, the relative pricing and terms of the relevant secunties have been determinad by our
Board such that the Offer would present a palatable proposition 1o the Holders to encourage
acceptancas under the Offer, whilst ensuring that our Company would be able to enjoy the
benefits contemiplated under the Offer at a fair and reasonable cost, which is in the best interest
of our shareholders.

INFORMATION ON SUNRISE |

Sunrise was incorporated in Malaysia under the Act as Sunrise Sdn Bhd on 5 March 1968 and
was convetted io a public company on 31 December 1983 and assurmed its current name.
Sunrise was listed on the Main Board of Kuala Lumpur Stock Exchange (now knowr as the Main
Market of Bursa Securities) on 6 February 1996,

The principal activities of Sunrise are property development and investment holding while the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are property investment, development and construction,
investment holding, property management as well as provision of property related and ancillary
SErvices.

The authorised share capital of Sunrise as at the LPD is RM1,000.0 milion comprising 1,000.0
millicn Sunrse Shares of which 4954 million Sunrise Shares are issued and fully paid-up. As at
the L.LPD, Sunrise holds 19,027 treasury shares.

Flease refar to Appendix Il for further information on the Sunrise Group.



RATIONALE FOR AND BENEFITS OF THE PROPOSALS

Given the complementary and synergistic fit ot both our Group and the Sunrise Group, our Board
is of the view that the prospects and potential of our enlarged Group would be enhanced. As
shown in the diagram below, our enlarged Group would emerge as one ot the dominant market
players in terms of revenue and asset base in the Malaysian property development sector with a
combined revenue and total assets of RM393.8 million and RMS,507.6 million, respectively™. By
achieving such scale, our enlarged Group is well-positioned to accelerate our growth strategy
and to achieve our aspiration ot regional expansion. In addition, via the Offer, we will further
reintorce our position as the largest listed property development company on Bursa Securities in
terms of market capitalisation.

1.500 1 Z
: 5P Selia 43
1,260
M Land 4 Enbarped UL
-] .--1.UD|.'.I T . e S
3= ERDE -+ dresngaid
EE
EE 750 Mah Sing -z P
-4 SERET
500 4
MK Land ‘%\;}E&O @ LB
250 A Selangor Frop
U T T T T T T 1
4] 1,000 2,000 3,000 EXLLT] 5,000 B.008 T.000
Total Assets
[RM mil}

Buhbie size indicales reletive market capitaliaation aa at 2 November 2010 thelng the fas{ full tradfing day prior fo
the date of the Nofice)

(Source: Bloomberg (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd and the latest audited consolidated finencial stataments of tha respective
companies)

MNatas:
» fusiratad based on the fatast auditad consoldated financial staternentz OF fhe property developrent
companies listed on the Main Market of Burge Securities which filfif the following criteria:
it total assets of RA41.5 hifion and above; and
{ift at least 50% of the company’s folal revente is derved from properly developriant activities.
~ Abbreviations:
BROE . Bandar Raya Developinenis Berhad
ERC . FEastern & Onenfal Berhad
W Land WM Land Berhad
Mah Simg . Mah Sing Group Barhad
MK Land . K Land Holdings Berbad
Selangor Frop I Selangor Properiles Berfad
5P Setia : SF Saffa Beriad
i Cur Group's and the Sunrise Group's aggregate revenue and tofal assets of RM993.8 miifon and BMS5,507.6

million, respectively, are computad basad on our Companys and Sinrise’s audited consofidated finanoial
staternents for the FYE 31 December 2009 and FYE 30 June 2010, respectively.

The bubble size indicates the market capitaiisation of our enfarged (Group upon completion of the Offer and
assuming our Company receives full acceptance under the Share Allemative based on the closing price of
ULHB Shares as at 2 November 2010 (Belng the last full frading day prior to the date of the Motlce). Assuming
that our Company receives full acceptance wndar the RCPS Alfernative, thaoretically thare wilf not he any
Wnrediate inpart to the market capitafisation of our Group i view that no ULHB Shares are issued.
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Qur enlarged Group is expected o benefit through, amongst others, access to a larger pool of
talent and expertise, development of human resources, identification and adoption of best
practices currently used by each group. Aside from the anticipated economies of scale and
operational efficiencies arising from the business combination, the Sunrise Group is expected to
add the following key attributes to our Group:

{i) Land bank and preduct diversification: With prime land bank in the Xlang Valley and
the Kuala Lumpur city centre as well as land parcels in, amongst others, Vancouver
(Canada) and Kajang, the addition of the Sunrise Group immediately diversifies our
Group's existing land bank porifolio, which is concentrated in Nusajaya, Johor Darul
Takzim. Please refer to Section 7.3 below for further details on the existing land
bank/property portfolio of the Sunrise Group.

Further, given the respective core competencies whereby our Group's focus is in macro
township development whilst Sunrise has a successful track record in high-rise
residential as well as commercial and retail developments, our enlarged Group is
expected to benefit from a broader range of products which we can offer to a wider
customer base. Notable examples of completed developments by the Sunrise Group
include 10 Mont'Kiara, The Residence and Sclaris Mont'Kiara.

(i improved flnancial performance: Subject to prevailing market conditions and based on
public disclosures by Sunrise, the near term financial performance of Sunrise is expected
to remain robust with projects having an estimated gross development value of
approximately RM3.2 billion planned for launch in the FYE 30 June 2011, supported by
unbiiled sales of approximately RM861 million as at 30 June 2010.

Based on the foregoing, the inclusion of the Sunrise Group is expected to enhance our
Group's financial performance, whereby our enlarged Group would be better-positioned
to seek new development opportunities and accelerate business expansion.

i) Expertise, track record and brand equity: The Offer is expected to bring tegether two
highly experienced management teams from our Group and the Sunrise Group, both
having censiderable depth and breadth of skills, expertise and know'edge of the property
market.

Qur enlarged Group would also be able to reap benefits by leveraging on the “Sunrise”
brand as a reputable and established player in the property sector, particularly in the
high-rise residential as well as the commercial and retail segments.

As a whole, the combination of cur Group and the Sunrise Group would create one of the leading
Malaysian property companies with the scale, complementary expertise, capabilities and
necessary resources to spearhead the industry locally and to expand regionally.

The Proposed IASC is proposed o facilitate the issuance of Consideration Shares under the
Share Alternative and the issuance of Consideration RCPS and Conversion Shares under the
RCPS Alternative pursuant to the Offer. Please refer to Section 3 above for the benefits of the
Share Alternative and RCPS Alternative.

RISK FACTORS

The businesses of the Sunrise Group and our Group are similar given that both are involved in
the property development industry. In this respect, the Offer would not materially expose our
Group to significant general and operational business risks which are not already faced by our
Group. However, the Offer may expose our Group to the following key risk factors (which may
not be exhaustive) relating 1o the Sunrise Group and the Offer:

-11-



(i}

(i)

{1ii)

(iv})

Acquisition risk

Given the nature of the Offer, our Company has only conductad a limited due diligence
review of the assets and liabilities of the Sunrise Group based an publicly available
information. Accordingly, the Sunrise Group may incur certain liabilities which may he
unknown to our Company (and even Sunrise), which may have a material adverse effect
on the financial and operating conditions of the Sunrise Group.

Whilst our Company would not be directly liable for any such liabilities, there is no
assurance that our Company would be abie to realise our expected investment returns in
Sunrise. This in turn may have a material adverse eftect on the financial position,
operating conditions and prospects of our enlarged Group.

Execution risks and retention of key management staff

As mentioned in Section 5 above, one of the key objectives of the Cffer is to ensure that
our enlarged Group would be able o enjoy the synergistic benefits that are expected to
be derived from the combination of both groups’ businesses in various areas, including
enhancement in the respective core competencies.

Cne of the critical factors is o ensure the retention of Sunrise’s key management staff
and the integration of human capital resources within our enlarged Group. Our Company
intends to take active measures and one of the immediate actions planned for the initial
period post completion of the Offer is the establishment of an integration commitee
comprising of senior management from both our Group and the Sunrise Group. The
integration committee will be tasked to address, amongst others, employeas related
issues and to undertake a comprehensive review of the existing human resource policies
which may include streamlining compensation scheme, talent pocl management,
succession planning and recruitment for our enlarged Group.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, there can be no assurance that our enlarged Group
would be successful in implementing our plans to realise the anticipated benefits or
synergies under the Offer.

Impaiment of assets and goodwilllintangibles

Qur Group is expected to recognise addilional goodwill arising from the Offer. The
additional goodwill, if any, may be subject to impaiment in the future which will be
charged to the consolidated earnings of our Company.

There is no assurance that our Group's financial position will not be affected by any
write-down of goodwill for impainment should it be considered necessary in the future.

Risk in retation to indebtadness

Lnder the RCPS Alternative, our Company will be issuing Consideration RCFS to the
Holders, whereby such RCPS holders would have the option to redeem the RCPS upon
maturity thereof. As illustrated in Section 8.3 below, assuming ak the Holders accept the
Offer and opt for RCPS Alternative, our Group's gearing level would increase from 0.15
times (proforma after adjustment for the Rights Issue) to 0.78 times (including the effects
from consolidation of Sunrise’'s debtsforrowings as well as recognition of the net
present value of the liability component of the Consideration RCPS).

Whilst we are of the view that such gearing levels are still manageable, our enlarged
Group’s indebtedness may limit our ability to obtain additional financing for our business
activities and/er on terms which are commercially acceptable 1o us, which may have a
material adverse effect on the financial position, operating conditions and prospects of
our enlarged Group.
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{¥)

Risk int relation to the Sunrise Group's business

The Sunrise Group’s property development business is highly competitive, particularly in
Mont'Kiara where a substantial portion of its projects are located, with an increasing
number of developers having established their presence in that area. Some of the
property developers in Mont'Kiara and their recently launched or completed property
development projects include:

Property Developer Development project Description

Aseana Properties SENI Mont'Kiara A B05-unit lwury candominium project located in

Limited a prime residential and commercial area of
Mant'Kiara

One Mont'Kiara A mixed commercial development project in the

MontKiara area adjacent to [-ZEN@Kiara |
comprising 8 33-storey office suite blaock, 20-
storey office tower and a S-storey retail complex

Mah Sing Group lcon Residence, 280 units ot lxury residential serviced suites
Berhad Mont Kiara

Bukit Kiara Vox Tower, Verve One ot tour towers which make up Verve Suites
Froperties Sdn Bhd  Suites, Mant'Kiara comprising fully-furnished designer suites

YNH Property Bhd Kiara 163 Gommercial development comprsing service

apartmenis, office bleck and a podium
comprising & retail centre and auditorium

Given the large number of ongoing developments in Mont'Kiara coupled with the existing
completed developments, there may be a risk of over-supply resulting in lower demand
for the Sunrise Group's property developments in Mont'Kiara. Based on the foregoing,
there is no assurance that the Sunrise Group may be able to sustain its financial
performance which in tum may result in cur Group not being able to realise the expecied
retums in Sunnse.

However, we believe that this risk may be mitigated as the Sunrise Group has plans fo
launch new projects in new localities such as Kuala Lumgpur city centre and Kajang.
Further, Sunrise had in January 2010, entered into a joint-venture with Sime Darby
Property Berhad for the development of 2 new mixed development in Bukit Jelutong and
had in October 2010, launched a new mixed residential development in Vancouver
{Canada}.

7. FUTURE OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

71

Overview of the Malayslan economy

The Malaysian economy registered a growth of 5.3% in the third quarter of 2010, driven
by domestic demand amid slowing external demand. The expansion in domestic
demand was supported by private sector spending. The slowdown in the global
economy has led to the moderation in external demand. Cn the supply side, all major
ecONoMmic sectors, except mining, continued to expand during the quarter, but at 2 more
moderate pace.
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7.2

Docmestic demand expanded by 5% in the third quarter (2Q 10: 9%]) led by a sustained
expansion in both private consumption and capital spending. Private consumption
recorded a growth of 7.1% {2Q 10: 7.9%) supported by favourable labour market
conditions and positive consumer confidence. Public consumplion declined by 10.2%
(2Q 10: 8.8%) as a result of lower government spending oh supplies and services.
Gross fixed capital formation expanded by 9.8% (2Q 10: 12.9%) driven by capital
expenditure from the private sector. Private sector capital spending was supported by
the expansion in domestic production amidst high levels of capacity utilisation and
positive business sentiments.

Qn the supply side, major economic sectors, except mining, expanded further but at a
mere moderate pace. Growth in the manufacturing sector moderated to 7.5% (2Q 10
18.0%), reflecting mainly the slower growth in external demand. The services sector
remained resilient, growing at 5.4% {2Q 10: 7.3%}, benefiting from favourable domestic
demand conditions. The construction sector expanded by 2.8% {2Q 10: 4.1%),
supported by growth in the non-residential and civil engineering sub-sectors. Growth in
the agriculture sector increased to 2.7% (2Q 10: 2.4%), following higher preduction of
crude palm oil and rubber. However, the mining sector recorded a contraction of 1.0%
{2Q 10: 1.1%), as the lower production of crude cil offset the higher production of natural
gas.

Amid the moderation in global recovery, the pace of growth of the Malaysian eccnomy
will be influenced by the expected continued slowdown in external demand. Overall
growth will continue to be supported by robust domestic economic activity. Private
consumption will benefit from the favourable employment situation, firm commodity
prices and the accommodative financing environment. Capital spending in domestic-
oriented sectors and the economic transformation programmes by the Government will
underpin the continued growth of private investment.

{Source: Bank Negera Mafaysia, Economic and Financial Developrents in the Malayslan Economy irr the Third
Quarter of 2070}

Overview of the Mataysian property sector

In tandem with the promising 9.5% growth of the Malaysian economy, the property
market recorded an improved pertormance in the first half of 2010. A total of 184,666
transactions worth RM50.56 bilion were registered. The wolume and value of
transactions recorded double-digit growths of 19.0% and 48 0% respectively from first
half of 2009. [ kewise, the volume and value of fransactions increased from second haf
of 2009 but at a moderate rate of 1.1% and 7.9% respectively.

The performance across the country remained promising with few exceptions. Most
states saw higher volume of transactions with 10 recorded double-digit growth when
compared to the corresponding half-year. Notwithstanding W.P. Putrajaya, where the
volume of transactions grew by more than double, Johor witnessed the highest increase
at 49.0%. W.P. Kuala Lumpur, Perak and Negeri Sembilan foliowed suit with
commendable increases of 35.5%, 28.9% and 26.4% respectively.

{Sowce. Press refoase for Malayaian properly market first haif 2010, Valuation & Propery Services
Departmant, Ministry of Finance)

The business environment for the property industry appears to be strengthening with
gradual improvement of our economy and the various incentives provided by the
Malaysian government. With the size and scale achieved via the synergistic combination
of the property businesses of our Group and the Sunrise Group, our enlarged Group is
anticipated to command a broader range of development projects to capitalise on the
upward trend of the property industry.

Our enlarged Group, with the combined industry experience, is expected to benefit from
a wider location coverage, a maore diversified and/or competitive range of properties as
well as complementary strengths in property development and provision of property-
related services.
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7.3

Future prospects of and plans for the Sunrise Group

Subject lo prevailing market conditions and based on public disclosures by Sunrise, the
near term financial pertormance of Sunrise is expected to remain robust with projects
having an estimated gross development value ot approximately RM3.2 billion planned for
launch in the FYE 30 June 2011, supported by unbilled sales of approximalely RM881
million as at 30 June 2010,

Based on Sunrise’'s Annual Repeort for the FYE 30 June 2010, the existing land
bank/property portfolic of the Sunrise Group, which may be available for
development/sale andfor retained as investment property, is set oul as follows:

(N Undeveloped land bank

Location Approximate land area
Acre

Mukim Batu™, Kuala Lumpur 72.3

Bandar of Kuala Lumpur™ 3.3

Cheras, Selangor 24

Kajang, Selangor 65.0

Mersing, Johor 431.1

Vancouver, Canada 438

Totai §70.9

Nates:

@ Including fand bank near and in Mon{Kiara and Solans Dutamas areas.

L Comprising the propesed office development also known as Menara Solans, and
redevelopment of Wisma Angkasa Raya, both located in the Kuala Lumpur cify
cenfre area.

{ii) Investment properties
Built-upinet
Name Locatian Existing use fetiable arza
Sq Ft

Plaza Mont'Kiara Mukim Batu, Kuala Lumpur ~ Office 31,980

Solaris Mont'Kiara Mukim Batu, Kuala Lumpur  Retail 18,146

Solaris Mont'Kiara Mukim Batu, Kuala Lumpur ~ Carpark 681,375

Show gallery Mukim Batu, Kuala Lumpur  Show gallery 36,877

Clukhouse Cheras, Selangor Clubhouse 28 358

Apart trom the prospects ot the Sunrise Group, our Board is of the view thal lhe
prospests and potentiai of our enlarged Group for the next 12 months would also be
enhanced given the complementary and synergistic fit of both our Group and lhe Sunrise
Group. Please refer to Section 5 above for further details on expected benetits arising
from the addition ot the Sunrise Group to our Group.

To realise such benefits, we currently intend to undertake, amongst others, the following
for the next 12 months:

{i) to identify key personnel ot the Sunrise Group to till any gap in the skills,
expertise and capabilities within our Group and also vice versa (i so required}
such lhat our enlarged Group would be able to benetit and leverage on the
unique skills, expertise and capabilities ot the existing management and staff ot
both groups; and
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(ii)

to implement, in the near to medium term, other forms of operational integration
which include, amangst others, the cross-sharing of best practices, policies and
pracedures, realisation of cost savings from increased size and purchasing
power as well as leveraging on the respective customer bases of our Group and
the Sunrise Group. Subject to further review of the operations of the Sunrise
Group, we may undertake to streamline specific functions within our enlarged
Group to aptimise resource utilisation and realise benefits from the integration of
aperations between both groups.

It is our intention to leverage on the complementary strengths of our Group and
the Bunrise Group to capture synergistic benefits arising from the business
integration, which may he derived without significant execution risks. As an
example, it (s envisaged that the skills, expertise and capabilities of the Sunrise
Group in project management and development of high-rise residential and .
commercial buildings can be effectively utitised to add value to our Group's
similar ongoing prajects in Nusajaya such as Puteri Harbour.

In relation 1o the above, we would seek fo formalise an integration committee, comprising
members of management of both our Group and the Sunrise Group which would be
tasked to realise the poteutial synergies arising from the integration of operations of both

groups.

The costs relating to our plans above cannot be determined at this juncture. 'n any
event, such costs are not expected te be material compared to the esmings of our
enlarged Grodp.

EFFECTS OF THE PROPOQSALS

The Proposed IASC will not have any effects on our issued and paid-up share capital, eamings,
net assets, gearing and/or our substantial shareholders’ shareholding in our Company.

Where applicable, the proferma effects of the Cffer on our Group in this Section 8 are being
Hlustrated based on Sunrise’s entire ordinary share capital (including treasury shares} and the
following scenarios and assumptions {*Assumptions™):

Scenario 1 Scepario 2
(aj B
i Al Holders accep! fhe Al the Consideration RCPS
Offer and opi for Share & LOnsineralon are
Aftenfaﬁpe Al };%dfi?;g??:;?: nlg;i;and subsequently converted into Conversion

Shrares via the Cash Conversion Method

8.1

Issued and paid-up share capital

The Offer will not involve any issuance of MCREPS and will not result in the revision

of/have
thereof.

any effect on any of the terms of the MCRPS and MCRPS holders’ holdings
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Based on the Assumplions, the proforma effects of the Offer on the issued and paid-up
share capital of cur Company as at the LPD, are as follows:

Scenario 1
No. of ULHB Shares RM
million million
Existing issued and paid-up share capits! as at the LPD 36423 1.8214
{exciuding MCRPS)

To be issued pursuant to the Offer 860.5 3303
Enlarged Issued and paid-up share capltal {excluding 4,302.8 2,151.4
MCRPS)

Scenario 2
ULHE Shares ~ RCPS
No., of ULHB No. of
Shares RM RCP§ RM
mlllion million million million
Existing issued and paid-up share
capital as at the LPD {excluding
MCRPS) 36423 1,821.1 - -

To be issuad pursuant to the

Offer - - 13871 138
Upon completion of the Offer 3,6842.3 1,821.1 1,3874 13.9

Upon conversion of the RCPS 1,387.1 693.5 (1.387.1) (13.9)
Enlarged issued and paid-up
share capital {(excluding MCRPS) 5.028.4 2,514.7 :

(The rest of this page has been intentionally lett blank)
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8.3

NA per share and Gearing

Based on the Assumptions and our Company's latest audited consclidated bafance
sheet as at 31 December 2009 {after adjustmant for the Rights Issue), the proforma
effects of the Offer on our consolidated NA per share and gearing are set out below:

Audited  Adjusted After the Offer™
asat31  forthe -
Decembear Rights Scenario Scenano Ecenarlo
2005 issue™ 1 ) 2(b)
RM mil RM mil R mil RM mil RM mil
Share capital
- ULHB Shares 1,214.1 1,821.1 2,151.4 1,821.1 2,514.7
- MCRPS 1.5 15 1.5 15 15
1,215.5 1,8227 2,152.9 1,822.7 2,516.2
Share premium 153.4 517.6 1,574.4% 517.6 3,014.4
Equity compenent of - - - 156.6 -
RCPS
Raserves 87.6 876 B87.5 876 87.5
Retained eamings 69.3 603 69.3 69.2 69.3
Shareholders’ funds/NA 1,525.9 2.497.2 38543 2,653.8 5,687.5
Numbear of ULHB Shares 24282 3.642.3 43028 3,6423 50294
in issue {million)
Consolidated NA per 0.83 0.69 0.80 0.73 1.13
ULHB Share (RM)
Total borrowings'™ 1,013.6 380.6™ 901.3" 2,079.5" 901.3"
Gearing™ (limas) 0.66 0.15 0.23 0.78 0.16
Notes:

=

{c

ik

Lo

After adjusting for the fsspance of 1,274,088,456 ULHB Shares at an /ssue price ot AMO.80 each
under the Rights tasue.

Upon completion of the Offar, we witl underfake an exercise fo attocate the acqusition consideration
whder the Offar o the assets and Fabitiies of the Sumrse Group in accordanca with their fair vatues.
The proforma effects (tusirated above have not taken inta consideration any fair value adiustments in
ragpect of the assels and Fahitities of the Sunrse Group to be acquired.

The proforma effects itustrated above have not taken into cansideralion any sxpanses in retalion to
the Offer, which may be tulty or partially deducted against the share premium account ansing from
the issuance of the Consideration Shares, if any. The estimated expenses In relation to tire Giffer is
approximately RM20.0 mitifon.

Inctuding altinlsrest-bearng sharshalder’s agvancas.

After adiusting for repayment ot boirowings as part of the Rights issue of RMB633.0 mithion.

Inclusiva ot the Sunrisa Group's deb! amounting to RM520.6 mitfon as at 30 June 2010 end tn the
case of Scanario 2{a), incliding the net present vatue of tha fabifity component of the antire
Considerstion RCPE of R, 178.2 miition,

Compoted based on tofat borrowings divided hy e sharehoiders’ funds.
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84

Earnings and EPS

The Offer is not expected to have any material effect on the consolidated earnings and
EPS of our Company for the FYE 31 December 2010 as it is only expected to be
completed within the first quarter of the FYE 31 Decamber 2011,

Going forward, the Offer is expected to contribute positively to the future earnings of our
Group, as we would be able to consplidate the tinancial results of the Sunrise Group (in
view ot the 50% Acceptance Condition}. The ettects of the Offer on our Company's
consolidated earnings and EPS would also depend on the actual level ot acceptance
under the Cifer, manner of setifement (i.e. Share Alternative or RGPS Altemative) and
where applicable, manner of conversion of Consideration RCPS (i.e. Cash Conversion
#ethod or Non- Cash Conversion Method} to be elected by the Holders or RCPS holders
{(as the case may be), all of which would have an impact on the enlarged number ot
ULHE Shares in issue.

Furely for illustration purposes, based on the Assumptions and Sunrise’s audited
consolidated PATAMI for the FYE 30 June 2010 of RM134.0 million, the proforma
effects ¢f the Offer ¢n our Group's gamings and EPS are as follows:

After the Offer

Before the Scenario  Scenaric  Scenario
Offer 1 2{a) 2{b)

Increase in PATAMI®! (RM million) n/a 1240 33.8™ 1340
Actual/protorma PATAMI (RM million) 114.6% 2486 148 4 2486

Actual/protorma number of LLHB Shares
in igsue {million) 3,642.3" 43028 3,842.3 50294

Computed EPs® {sen) 3.15 .78 4.07 494
Effective increase in computed EFS (san} n/a 2.63 0.92 1.79

Noles:

i The proforma effects flusfrated above are based on our audted conscfidated PATAMS for tha FYE
31 Decermber 2005 and Sunrise’s audted consofidated PATAM! for the FYE 20 June 2070, wilhou!
any adiusimenis made with respeet fo he differing financial perods.

Uporr compelion of fhe Offar, wea will Undertake a0 exercise o affocate the acquisition consideration
under fha Offer fo the assets and Habiitles of the Sunrise Group In accordance wilth thedr fafr values.
The proforma effecis Mlusiated above have not tzken info consideration any falr value adiusiments in
respect of e assefs and fabdlies of the Swwrise Growp fo be acguied and  any
deprecfationfimpairment charges that may arse thereof.

Further, the proforma effects ifustraled above have nof taken inia consideraffon any expenses in
refation to the Offer, which may be filly or partially deducted against the share premium account
arising fram fhe issiance of the Consideralion Sharas, i any. The eslimated expenses in refafion fo
the Offer is approxirmataly R 20.0 miflion.

i fn fine with prevalifng accounfing standards, the increase 1 PATAM! for Scenaric Z2(a) takes into
considerafion a notional finance cosl lo be incurred on the Consideration RCPS for a kil Anancial
year {athougl mo divide nds will be paid [hereoni) basad o ant ustrative borrowing cost of 8.5% per
aniLIm.

i Conservatiely, the increase in PATAMY for Scenardo 2(b} has nof taken info consideration of any
incremenial eamings thal may be denved from the uilisation of proceeds ralsed lrom Ihe convarsion
of the Consideration RGPS via the Cash Conversion Mathod of approximataly RMY.8 bilfion,

= Based on our audited consolidated PATAM! for the FYE 31 December 2008,

it Based on tha existing numbar of ULHB Shares in issite.

i# Commpuled Dy dividing our aclualiprofonma PATAMI by the actual/proforma number of UEHE Shares
n jssue.
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In addition to the above, the effects of the Offer on cur Company’s consclidated earnings
and EPS will depend on, amongst others, the successful integration of the operations of
the Sunrise Group into our Group, future perfermance of our enlarged Group as well as
the realisation of any synergies arising from the Offer.

APPROVALS REQUIRED

The Offer is subject to approvals being obtained from the following:

(i}

(i)

{iii}

(iv)

v

the Securities Commission Malaysia under the Equily Reguirements of a public
company,

Bank Negara Malaysia for the issuance of the Consideration RCPS to accepting nen-
resident Holders;

Bursa Securities for the listing of and quotation for the Consideration Shares and
Conversion Shares on the Main Market of Bursa Securities which was obtained on 20
November 2010:

our shareholders at our forthcaming EGM to be convened for the Proposals (including for
the issuance of the new Consideration Shares, Consideration RGPS and Conversion
Shares); and

consent or approval of any other relevant authorities or parties, if required.

The Offer is conditional upon the Proposed IASGC, while the Proposed IASC is conditional upon
our shareholders’ approval for the Offer. The Proposals are not conditional upon any of our other
corporate exercises.

In relation to item (iv) above, UEMG, which holds 77.14% equity interest in our GCompany, had via
its letter dated 3 November 2010, provided an irrevocable undertaking to vote in favour of the
Proposals {including for the issuance of the new Consideration Shares, Consideration RCPS and
Conversion Shares) at our forthcoming EGM.

(The rest of this page has been intentionally left blank)
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10.

1.

12.

13.

HISTORICAL SHARE PRICE

The monthly high and low prices of LILHB Shares traded on the Main Market of Bursa Securities
from November 2008 up to Octoher 2010 are as follows:

____High!? Low*®
RM RM

2009
November .46 - 1.24
December 128 115
2010
January 1.34 1.20
February 127 1.15
March 143 1.14
Apr 1.57 1.39
May 1.41 1.21
June 1.80 1.35
July 1.82 1.44
August 1.74 1.67
September 2.37 1.87
October 2.47 2.18
Last traded market price on Bursa Securitias on 2 November 2010, being tha RMZ2.26
last full trading day ot ULHB Shares before the date of the Notice
Last traded market price on Bursa Securities on the LPD RM2.30
{Source: Bloomberg (Mafaysia) Sdn Bhd)
Nota:
i Tha historical market price of ULHE Shares has been tetrospectively adjusted for the Rights Issue which was

compisted on 29 Apni 2010.

INTEREST OF DIRECTORS, MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS AND PERSONS CONNECTED

None of the Directors and major shareholders of our Company andor persons connected to
them have any interest, direct and/or indirect, in the Proposais.

ESTIMATED TIME FRAME FOR COMPLETION

Barring any unforeseen circumstances and subject to all approvals being obtained, the Offer is
expected to be completed within the first quarter of 2011,

The Proposed 1ASC will be effective upon receipt of our shareholders’ approval for the Proposed
IASC.

DIRECTORS' RECOMMENDATION

Our Directors, after having considered all aspects ot the Proposals, are ot the opinion that the

Proposais are in the best interest of our Company and recommend that you vote in favour of the
resolutions pertaining to the Proposals to be tabled at our forthcoming EGM.
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14,

15.

EGM

Dur EGM will be held on Wednesday, 22 December 2010 at 10.00 a.m., or at any adjournment
thereof, at Banquet Hall, Menara Korporat, Persada PLUS, Persimpangan Bertingkat Subang,
KM15, Lebuhraya Baru Lembah Klang, 47301 Petaling Jaya. Selangor Darul Ehsan for the
purpose ot considering and if thought fit, passing with or without medifications, the resoclutions on
the Proposals. The Notice of EGM and Proxy Form are enclosed in this Circular.

It you are unzble to attend and vole in person at our EGM, you are requested to complete ang
return the enclosed Proxy Form in accordance with the instructions printed on it, so as to arrive
at our Share Registrar's office, Symphony Share Registrars Sdn Bhd, Level 6, Symphony House,
Pusat Dagangan Dana 1, Jalan PJU1A/48, 47301 Pefaling Jaya, Selangor Daruil Ehsan,
Malaysia not less than 48 hours before the time set for convening the EGM. You may attend and
vote in person af the EGM, it you wish to do so, even if you have completed and returned the
Proxy Form so long as you have revoked the appointment of your proxy prior to the EGM.

FURTHER INFORMATION

Please refer to the attached appendices for turther information.

Yours faithfuliy
For and on behalf ot the Board of Directors of

UEM LAND HOLDINGS BERHAD

Dato' Wan Abdullah Wan lbrahim
Managing DirectorfChief Executive CGfficer
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TERMS OF THE RCPS

Ferm and
Denomination
Izsue Price

Nominal Value

Tenure

Maturity Date

Dividend
Redemption Price

and Redemption
Period

Caonversion Rights

Conversion Price

Fractional
Entitlaments to
Conversion Shares

APPENDIX |

The RCPS shall be issued in registered form and constituted hy the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of ULHB.

RM1.00 pe1 RCPS.
RM0.01 per RCPS,

24 months from and including the i{ssue date of the first tranche of
Consideration RCPS under the Offer {"Issue Date”).

The RCPS shall mature on the market day immediately before the 2™
anniversary of the Issue Date.

Nil.

The RGPS can be redeemed at the option of the RCPS holders at RM1.00
each on the Maturity Date, by serving at least 1 month notice to ULHB prior
to the Maturity Date.

Any outstanding RCPS which are not redeemed shall be mandatorily
cohverted into new Conversion Shares on the Maturity Date based on the
Non-Cash Conversion Method (as defined below).

The RGPS can be converted, at the option of the RCPS holders, into new
Cohversion Shaies at any point in time after the Issue Date but before the
Maturity Date with the folowing modes of conversion:

{ii by tendering 1 RCPS with cash subscription of RM1.30 per RCPS for 1
new Conversion Share {("Cash Conversion Method™}, or

(i) by tendering such amount of RCFS that are equal 10 the Conversion
Price fo1 1 new Conversion Share ("Non-Cash Converslon Method”)
computed as follows:

Issue Prce x no. of RGPS
Conversion Price

No. of new Conversion
Shares

The conversion price of the RCPS is RM2.30 each.

Fractional entitlements to the Conversion Shares pursuant to the conversion
of RCPS under the Non-Cash Conveision Method will be dealt with in such
manner as ULHB's Board shall in their absolute discretion deem expedient
and/or to be in the best interests of ULHB.
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Adjustment to
Convearsion Price
and Right of
Conversion

Listing

Ranking of the
RCPS

Voting Rights of
the RCPS

In accordance with the provisions of the Memorandum and Addicles of
Association of ULHB, the Conversion Price andfor number of Conversion

Shares will be adjusted, at the determination of ULHB, in all or any of the
following cases:

(it an alteration ot the par value of ordinary shares in ULHB by reascn of
conselidgation or subdivision;

(i) abonus issue ot tully or partly paid-up ordinary shares by ULHB:;

(iiy a capital distribution or repayment to ordinary shareholders made by
ULHB whether on a reduction of capital or ctherwise, but excluding any
cancellation of capital which is lost or unrepresented by assets.

(iv) arights issue of ordinary shares or warrants by ULHB;

(v] capitalisation ot the reserves ot ULHB; or

(vi} any other circumstances that are deemed necessary, including any
payment of special dividends by ULHB,

Under no circumstances will any adjustment result in the Conversion Price
falling below the par value of ordinary shares in ULHE for the time being. No
adjustment to the Conversicn Price and/or number of Conversion Shares

shall be made unless it has been certified by a merchant bank, universal
hroker or an auditor.

The RCPS will not be listed on any stock exchange.

The RCPS shall rank pari passu amongst themselves. Other than pursuant to

redemption of the RCPS in accordance with these terms, on a winding-up or

upen a reduction of capital or other return ot capital:

{iy the RCPS shall conter on the helders thereof the right to receive, in
priotity to the holders ot any other class of shares {excepl tor the
MCRPS) in ULHB, cash repayment at the Issue Price of that RCPS;
and

(i) the RCPS shall not confer on the holders thereof the right to participate
in any surplus capital or surplus profits.

The RCPS shall camry ne right to vote at any general meeting ot ULHB except
with regard to:

(i)  any proposal to wind-up ULHB;
{it  during the winding-up of ULHB;
(i} any proposal that affects the rights of the RCPS holders;
(iv) any proposal to reduce ULHB's ordinary share capital; or

v} any proposal for the dispesal of the whols of ULHB’s property, husiness
and undertaking.
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Ranking of the : The Conversian Shares shall, upen issue and allotment, rank pari passu in all

Conversion Shares respects with the then existing ULHB Shares, save and except that the
helders of such Cenvarsion Shares shall not be entitled to any dividend, right,
alletment and/or distribution, the entitlement date of which is pricr to the date
of allotment of such Conversion Shares,

Listing Status of ©  The Conversion Shares will be listed on the Main Market of Bursa Securities.
the Conversion

Shares

Guoverning Law : Laws of Malaysia.

{The rest of this page has been intentionally laft biank)
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO OUR
ASSOCIATION

Memorandum of Association

APPENDIX 11

COMPANY'S MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF

Origlnal clause of
our Memorandum of Aseociation

Froposed clause of
our Memorandum of Association

Clauee &

The authorised capital of the Company is
RIM2,502 000,000/~(Ringgit Malaysia: Two Billion
Five Hundred and Two Million Oniy) divided into
5,000,000,000 cordinary shares of RM0.50 each
and 200,000,000 mandatory redeemable
convertible preference shares of RM0.01 each.
The shares in the original or any increased capital
. may he divided into several classes and there
may be gattached thereto respectively any
preferential, deferred or other special rights,
privileges, conditions  or restrictions as to
dividends, capital, voting rights or otherwise.

Clause 6

The authorised capital of the Company is
e ¥ : D o

—Million—Cnhg
RM3,517,000,000 (Ringgit Malayela: Three

Billion Five Hundred and Seventeen Million
only) divided into 5.000.000.,000 7,000,000,000
ordinary shares of RM0.50 each, aad 200,000,000
mandatory redeemable converticle prefelence

| shares of RMO0.07 each and 1,500,000,000

redeemable convertible preference shares of

i RM0.91 each. The shares in the original or any |
increased capital may be divided into several -

classes and there may be atlached thereto
respectively any preferential, deferred or other
special rights, privileges, conditions or restrictions
as to dividends, capital, voting rights or otherwise.

Articles of Association

The following new definltions ere {0 be inserted alphabeticelly into Article 2 of our Articles of

Association

“RCPS"

“"Offer”

Redeemable convertibte preference shares of RM0.01 each in the Company.

Conditional take-over offer by the Company to acquire the ordinary shares of

2M1.00 each in Sunrise Berhad {excluding treasury shares) not already owned by
the Company {*Offer Shares") from the holders of the Offer Shares in accerdance
with the terms and conditions of the offer document dated 25 November 2010.

“Conslderatlon
RCFS”

“Conversion
Shares”

New RCPS to be issued at an issue price of RM1.00 each pursuant to the Offer.
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New ordinary shares of RM0.50 each in the Company to be issued upon
conversion of the Consideration RCPS.



Original article of
our Articles of Assoclation

Froposed article of
our Articles of Association

Clause 3

The authorised capital of the Company is
RM2,502,000,000/-{Ringgit Malaysia: Two
Biflion Five Hundred and Two Million Only)
divided into 5,000,000,000 ordinary shares
of RM{3.50 each and 200,000,000
mandatory redeemable convertible
preference shares of RMO.01 each. The
Company shall have power 10 is5ue shares
with special nghts.

Clause 3

The authorised capital of Company s

the

Hundred—and—Pwo—Mition—Oaly} RM3,517,000,000
(Ringgit Malaysia. Thres Billion Flve Hundred and
Seventeen Million only) divided into 5,080,060.000
7.000,000,000 ordinary shares of RM(O.50 each, and
200,000, 000 mandatory redeemabte  convertible
preference shares of RMO.01 each and 1,500,000,000
RGPS The Company shall have power to issue shares
with special rights.

N/A Proposed new Clauss 168
To include the terms of the RCPS as set out in
Appendix | of this Circular with the exception to replace
the word *ULHB" with “the Company” whenever it
appears.

Clause 17 Clause 17

17. Subject to the provisions of the Act, | 17. {1)  Subject to the provisions of the Act, the

the Central Depositories Act, the
Rules of the Depository and the
Listing Requirements: -

{a) Where any new shares are
issued by the Company
{whether by way of bonus
issue, rights issue, conversion
of debt securities, exercise of
any rights or options or
otherwise), the Company
shall notify the Depository ot
the name of the allottees or
entitled persons and alf such
other information as may be
required by the Depository
(whether under the Rules of
the Depository, by virtue of
the Central Depositories Act
or otherwise) to enable the
Depository to  make

appropriate entries in  the

securities accounts of the
relevant allottees or entitled |

persons and the Company
shall deliver the appropriate
share cerdificates or jumbo
certificates registered in the
name of the Depository or fis
nomings company in respect
of such shares, to the
Depository;

the :

Central Depositories Act, the Rules of the
Depository and the Listing Requirements: -

(a) Where any new shares (except for the
shares which will nat be listed in the
Exchange) are issued by the Company
{whether hy way of bonus issue, rights
issug, conversion of debt securilies,
exercise of any rights or options or
otherwise), the Company shall notify
the Deposilory of the name of the
aflottees or entitled persens and all
such other information as may be
required by the Depository (whether

under the Rules of the Depository, by |

virtue of the Central Depositories Act or
otherwise) to enable the Depository to

make the appropriate entries in the
securities accounts of the relevant’

allottees or entitled persons and the
Company shall deliver the appropriate
share certificates or jumbo certificates
registered in the name of the
Depository or its nominee company in
respect of such shares, to the
Depository;
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Original article of
our Articles of Association

Propeosed article of

our Articles of Association

(b) The Company shall make
application for guotation of
such shares and allot all
such shares and despatch
notices of allotment to the
allettees or entitied person
in the manner, within the
time penod prescrnbed and
in  accordance with the
provisions of the Rules of
the Depository, the Central
Depositories Act, and thea
Listing Requirements; and

No share cerificates will be
issued to all such allottees
or entitled persons.

{c}

PROVIDED ALWAYS that every
such cerlificate 1o be issued in the
name of the Depository or is
nominee company shall be issued
under the Seal in such form as the
Directors shall from time 1o time
prescribe and shall bear sighatures
or facsimile signatures of a Director
and shall be countersigned by the
Secretary or by a second Director or
by some other person appointed by
the Directors, and shall specify the
number and class of shares or
securities to which it relates and the
amounts paid thereon.

(2)

(b)

(c}

{a)

The Company shall maka application
for quotation of such shares and allot
all such shares and despatch notices of
allotment to the allottees aor entitled
persen in the manner, within the time
period prescribed and in accordance
with the pravisions of the Rules of the
Depository, the Central Depositories
Act, and the Listing Requirements; and

Mo share certficates will be issued to
all such allottees or entitled persons
save and except for the shares other
than the Deposited Security.

PROVIDED ALWAYS that every such
cerificate 0 be issued in the name of
the Depository or its nominee company
in respect of the Deposited Security
shall be issued under the Seal in such
form as the Directors shall from time to
tima prescriba  and shall bear
signatures or facsimile signatures of a
Director and shall ba countersignad by
the Secretary or by a second Director
or by some other person appointed by
the Directors, and shall specify the
number and class of shares or
sacurities to which it relates and the
amounts paid thereon.

The certificates for any shares other
than the Deposited Security shall be
Issusd under the Seal with such
signatures affixed by means of some
method or system of mechanical
signature.
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our Artlcles of Association

Original article of

Proposed article of
our Articles of Association

{b) Subject to the provislons of the Act, |

any member shall be entitled to
receive a share certificate for the

shares other than the Deposited |

Sacurity for his holding, and that
share certificates shall he
despatched within ten {10) market
days after allotment or fifteen (15}
market days after lodgement of
transfer, specifying such shares,
allotted or transferred to a person
and the amount pald up thereon,
provided that ({in respect of
securities that are not prescribed
securities) the Company shall not be
bound to issue more than one (1)
such certificate. If such member
shall require more than one {1} such
certificate, he shall pay such fee as
the Directors may from time to time
determine and which the Company
may be permitted to charge by law
plus any stamp duty levied by the
Government of Malaysia from time to
time.

Clause 18

18. If any share cetificate or jumbo
certificate issued pursuant to these
Articles shall be defaced, worn out,
destroyed, [ost or stolen, it may be
renewed on such evidence being
produced and a letter of indemnity
{if required) being given by the
Depository or its nominee company.

Clausa 18

18, {1)

If any share certificate or jumbo certificate
issued pursuant {0 these Articles in respect
of the Deposited Security shall be
defaced, wom out, destroyved, [ost or stolen,
it may be renewed on such evidence being
preduced and a [eiter of indemnity (if
required) being given by the Depository or
its nominee company.
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Original arficle of
our Articles of Associatlon

Proposed article of
our Articles of Association

{2) Subject te the provislons of the Act, If |
any share certificate for the shares other
than the Deposited Security shall be
defaced, worn out, destroyed, lost or
stolen, It may be renewed on such
evidence belng produced and a letter of
indemnity (if required) belng given by the
shareholder, transferee, person entitled,
purchaser or on behalf of Itsitheir
client(s) as the Directors of the Company
shall require and (in case of defacement
or wearing out) on delivery up of the old
certiflcate, and in any case on payment of
such sum not exceeading Ringgit Malaysia
ten (RM10.00) or such sum as the
Directors may from time to time require.
In the case of destruction, loss or theft a
shareholder or person entitled to whom
such renewed certificate is given shall
also bear the loss and pay to the
Gompany all expenses incidental to the
investigations by the Company of the
evidence of such destruction, loss or
theft.

{37 Share cerificates in respect of any
preference share which have been|
converted into ordinary share of the
Company shall be deemed to have been
cancelled upon converslon of such
preference share into ordinary share.

Clause 30

30. The transfer of shares of the

Company being Deposited Security |

shall be by way of book entry by the
Depository In accordance with the
Rules of the Depository and,
notwithstanding Sections 103 and
104 of the Act, but subject to
subsection 107C(2) of the Act and
any exemption that may be made
trom compliance with subsection
107C(1) of the Act, the Company
shall be precluded from registering
and effecting any transfer of the
Deposited Security.

Clause 30

30. (1)  The transfer of shares ot the Company being
Deposited Security shall be by way of book
entry by the Depository in accordance with
the Rules of the Depository and,
notwithstanding Sections 103 and 104 of the
Act, but subject to subsection 107C{2) of the
Act and any exemption that may be made
from compliance with subsection 107C(1) of
the Act, the Company shall be precluded
from registering and effecting any transfer ot .
the Deposited Security.
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Driglnal article of
our Articles of Association

Propoeed article of-
our Articles of Association

(2} {a}

{b)

{c}

{d)

(e)

Subject to the restrictions of these
Articles, all shares other than
Deposited Security shall be
transferable but every transfer shall
be In writing In the usual common
form pursuant to the Act or In such
other forms ae the Directors ehall
from tlme to time approve, and shall
be submitted to the registered office
of the <GCompany or its agent
accomparnied by the certificate of the
unlisted shares to be transferred and
such other evidence (if any} as the
Dlrectors may reasonably require to |
show the right of the traneferor to
make the transfer.

The instrument of tranefer of any
such shares shall be executed by or
on behalf of the transferor, and the
traneferor shall be deemed to remain
the holder of such share until the
name of the transferee is entered in
the register of members in respect

thereof. .

The Directors may, in thelr discretion,
and without assigning any reason
thergof, refuse to register a transfer
of such share in the Company t¢ any
person of whom they do not approve,
and they may also refuse to register a
transfer of any unlisted share in the
Company on which the Company has -
llen. If the Directors refuse to register :
a transfer, they shall within one
month after the date on which the
transfer wae lodged with the
Company send to the transferee
notice of the refusal In accordance
with Section 105 of the Act.

The Company or its agent shall be
entltled to charge a fee not exceeding :
Ringgit Malaysia ten (RM10.00} on the
registration of every transfer in
respect of the shares other than the
Deposited Securities.

The transfer books and reglster of the
shares other than the Deposited
Securlties may be suspended at such
times and for euch periods as the |
Directors may from time to time
detennine, provided always that such
registration shall not be suepended
for more than thirty {30} days in any
year.
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APPENDIX I

INFORMATION ON SUNRISE

The information in this Appendix lll has been obtained from publicly available sources andfor the
management of Sunrise. The responsibility of our Company and our Board is limited o ensuring that such
information has been accurately reproduced in this Gircular,

1. HISTORY AND BUSINESS

Sunrise was incorporated in Malaysia under the Act as Sunrise Sdn Bhd on 5 March 1968 and
was converled 1o a public company on 31 December 1983 and assumed its current name.
Sunrise was listed on the Main Board ¢f Kuala Lumpur Stock Exchange {now known as the Main
Market of Bursa Securities) on 8 February 1986.

The principal activities of Sunrise are property development and investment holding while the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are property investment, development and construction,
investment holding, property management as well as provision of property related and ancillary
services.

The Sunrise Group operates through three main business fines - property development, property
investment and property management.

The Sunrise Group first started its operations as a property development company focusing on
modest scale of development of terrace houses, shop houses and smail factory units in Morth
Kiang and Jatan Batu Tiga Lama North Klang. Qver the years, the Sunrise Group has
successfully expanded its geographical presence and products to include various high-rise
residential and commercial developments as well as property investment and maintenance
activities in areas such as Mont’Kiara, Kuala Lumpur.

Amongst some of the notable high-rise residential and commercial developments that the
Sunrise Group had successfully launched and completed are 10 Mont'Kiara, The Residence and
Solaris Mont'Kiara.

The focus of the Sunrise Group's developments had been in the Mont'Kiara vicinity historically.
Moving forward, the Sunrise Group had expressed its intentions to extend its geographical
presence and developments to other products and areas. To this end, Sunrise had successfully
iaunched its maiden project in Richmond, Vancouver, Canada, namely Cuiintet Phase 1, in
October 2010. Further, Sunrise had in January 2010, entered into a joint-venture with Sime
Darby Property Berhad to undertake a new mixed development in Bukit Jelutong, Shah Alam.

In addition to the above, other ongoing developments of the Sunrise Greup comprise of 28
Mont'Kiara, 11 Mont'Kiara and Solaris Dutamas, whilst notable examples of future planned
developments include MK 20 {mixed development in Mukim Batu consisting of mostly
condominiums, serviced apartments and some retail units), MK 22 {residential deveiopment in
Mukim Batu} and the redevelopment of Wisma Angkasa Raya (in the Kuala Lumpur city centre
area). Please note that the names and descriptions of the future developments may still be
subject to changes.
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SHARE CAPITAL

The authorised and issued and paid-up share capital of Sunrise as at the LFD are as follows:

No. of securlties Par value Total
RM “RM
Autharlsed
Sunrise Shares 1,000,000.000 1.00 1,000,000,000
lssued and fully paid-up
Sunrise Shares 465 390 467 1.00 485,390,467

Ags at the LPD, Sunrise holds 19,027 treasury shares.

DIRECTORS AND THEIR SHAREHOLDINGS

As at the LPD, the Directors of Sunrise and their respective shareholdings
follows:

in Sunrise are as

Direct L Indirect
MNo. of Sunrise No. of Sunrise

Name/{Designation) ] Nationality Shares %'i Shares %)
Datuk Tong Kooi Ong/ Maiaysian 1,084,828 022 120,908.144™ 2441
(Executiva Chairman)

Dalo' Lim Kim Huat/ Malaysian 35,852,299 7.24 -
fExeculive Deputy Ghaiman) t

Lum Tuck Mingf Malaysian - - 904 4489  0.20
{Executive Director and Chief

Operating Cfficer) |
Ong Kuee Hwai Malaysian 20,000 i - -
findependent Non-Executive Director)
Tee Keng Hoon/ hMalaysian 52,000 0.1 - -
{(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Michael! Ting Sii Ching/ Malaysian - - - -

(independent Nan-Executive Director)
Notes:
il Based on issuad and paid-up shere capitel (excluding treasury shares) of Sunrise of 485,371,440 Suniise

Shares as at the LPD.
it Deemed to have an infarest in alf of the Sunrise Sharas hald by Casa Unggu! Sdn Bhd, by virtus of Section 6A
of tha Act.

= Deamed interest pursusnit to Seation 134(12}(c) of the Act.
i Megifgible.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOL.DERS

The substantial shareholders of Sunrise and their respective shareholdings in Sunrise as at the
LPD are as follows:

Direct Indirect
Place of Mo. ot No. of
incorporationd Sunrige Sunrise
Substantial Shargholders  nationality Shares A Shares o™
Casa Unggu! Sdn Bhd Malaysia 120,908,144 24.41 - -
Datuk Tong Kool Cng Malaysian 1,084,925 0.22 120,908 144" 24.41
Fhoenixfiex Sdn Bhd Malaysia 41,913,873 8.45 - -
Tan Sri Dato’ Tan Chee Sing Malaysian 52,000 0.01  41,913,873" 8.46
Date’ Lim Kim Huaf Malaysian 35,852,299 T.24 - -
Notes:
i Hased on issued and paid-up share capital (excluding ireasury Shares) of Sunrse of 495 371,440 Sunise
Shares as at the LPL.
u Deemad io have an interest iy aff of the Sunrse Shares held by Casa Uingoul Scn Bhd, by virtue of Saction BA
of the Act,
fe Deemed to bave an interest in all of the Suntisa Sheres held by Phoenixflex Sdn Bhd, by virtug of Section 64
of the Act,

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCGIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIEE

The details of the subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities of Sunrise as at 30 June
2010 are as tollows:

Effective
Date/place of lgsuzd and paid-  equity
Company incorparation up capital interest fLincipal activities
RM %
funfess
otherwise slated}
Subsidiares held by Sunrise
Asapol Assets Sdn Bhd 01.04.2004/ 250,000 100 Property development
iMalaysia
Aston Slar Sdn Bhd 18.07.1993/ 1,000,000 100 Property investrnenl, developmanl and
Malaysia construction
Auvrora Tower ai KLCC Sdn 20,03, 2006/ 1,000,000 100 Prapeny developmenl
Bhd Malaysla
Cekap Kawal Sdn Bhd 27101982/ 2 100 Provision of security servicas
Malaysia
Crascenl Phase | Lid 13.04. 1909/ USr1,000 100 Invesimant haolding
British Virgin
Islands
Crescent Phase Il Lid 14.08.1998/ USD1 100 Investmenl holding
British Virgin
Islands
Global Aszociales 12.09.2000¢ slny 100 Investment helding
Intemalional Lid {*GAIL") Brilish Virgin
Islands
Interior Cesign Cne Sdn 20.04.198% 100,000 100 General conlracting, inlenior desighing
Bhd Malaysia and consullancy
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Effeclive

Date/place of Issued and paid-  equily
Company Incorporation up zapital inlerest  Principal activities
RM %
funfess
otherwise sfafedd] .
Lasar Tewer Sdn Bhd 01.04.2004f 2 100 Froperty development
Malaysia
Lembah Suria Sdr Bhd 20.07.1991/ 2 100 Property development
Malavsia
Lucky Brighl Slar Sdn Bhd 21.02.1994/ 1,000,000 100 Froperly investment and developmant
Malaysla
Milik Harta Sdn Bhd 28111997/ 250,000 100 Proparty devslopment
: Malaysla
Naw Planet Trading Sdn 21.3.1084f 1,000,000 100 Piropery invesiment and development
Bhd Malaysia
Prinsip Eramaju Sdn Bhd 06.03.2007/ 2 100 Property developmen
Malaysia
Zaga Centennial Sdn Bhd 21.09.2008/ 2 100 Trading of steel
Malaysia
SCM Property Sarvices Sdn 20.04.1982/ 250,000 100 Property management
Bhd Malaysia
Solid Performance Sdn Bhd 19.11.1998/ 2 100 Property davelopment
talaysia
Summer Lodge Sdn Bhd 10,04, 20067 250,000 100 Property davalopment
Malaysia
Sunrise Alliance Sdn Bhd 21.68.1589/ 1,000,000 100 Froperty development
Malaysia
Sunrise Benchmark Sdn 19.08.1599/ 250,000 100 Propery development
Bhd Walaysia
Sunrize Cantury Sdn Bhd 20.03.1858/ 500,000 100 Fropery development
Maiaysia
Sunrise dotGoim Sdn BEhd 20.03.2000/ 2 100 Domant
Malaysia
Sunrise Hospitalty and 12.06.18971 2 100 Provision of property relatad and
Leisura Sdr Bhd Malaysia ancillary services
Sunrise Incubatlon Sdn Bho 03.03.2000¢ b 100 Dormanl
Malaysra
Sunrise innovations Sdn 17.12. 1598/ 250,000 100 Praperly devalopment
2hd Malaysia
Sunnige Intemational 03.08.2007f U501.103 100 Invesiment holding
Devalopment Lid {'SIDL") Cayman
Islands
Surrise KHP Sdn Bhd 20.07.1981/ 2,000,000 100 Property investment and developmant
Malaysia
Sunnse Landmark Sdn Bhd 18.03.1000/ 2 100 Brapery developmant
Malaysia
Sunrisa Mersing Sdn Bhd 13.02.1999¢ 2 1040 Property devalopmenl
Malaysla
Sunrise Milennium Sdn Bhd 11,01, 1997/ 200,600 G0 Darmant
Malavsia
Sunrise Oscar Sdn Bhd 05.11.1528/ 50,000 100 Investmant holding
{“508B"7 Malaysia
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Effective

Datefplace of tssued aud paid-  equity
Company incorparation up capital interesl Princlpal activilies
RM %
funfess
otherwise starad)

Sunrise Overseas 22.10.1998/ 1,000,000 100 Investmeut holding and provision of
Cotparation Sdn Bhd Malaysia managemeart services
Sunrise Paradigm Sdn Bhd Z2B.08. 1999/ 250,000 100 Fropery development

Malaysie
Sunree Planeer Sdn Bhd 19.11.1998/ 50,000 100 Property invastmen

Malaysla
Sunrise Project Sarvices 04,08, 2000/ 1.000 100 Dormant
Sdn Bhd Malaysfa
Sunrige Qually Sdn Bhd 17.12,1998/ 250,000 100 Property devetopmenl

Malaysia
Sunrise Region Sdn Bhd 05.11, 1995/ 250,000 10G Propery development

Malaysia
Sunrige REIT Management 17.12.1988/ 2 100 Domant
Sdn Bhd Malaysia
Sunrise Sovereign Sdn Bhd 23.09.1996/ 100,000 100 tnvestmenl hotding

Malaysia
Sun Victory Sdn Bhd 16.02.1980/ 2,000,000 100 Propery invastment and development
("SV5E") Mataysia
tbarat Duta Sdn Bhd 16.06.20054 206,006 82 Property development

Malaysia
Subsidiery held by GAIL
East Lirban Properties Piy 01.10.2002f AUDBE.000.000 80 Under members’ wvoluntary liguidation
Lid Australia {solent}
Subsidiary held by SVSE
Sunrise Assets Sdn Bhd 18.12.1998f 2 100 Property inveslmeut

Maleysra
Subsidlery held by 5058B
Hunrise DCS Sdn Bhd 19.03.199%/ 500,000 100 Frovision of coollng  plant  facilty

Malaysia SErvices
Subsidiery held by SIDL
Sunrse Holdings §.4r.l. 28.08.2007f EUR12.500 100 Investment hokding
("SHS") Grend Duchy

of
Luxembourg

Subeidiary held by SHS
Phlles Developmeant Corp 07.08.2007} CAD101 100 Propery investment and development
("PDC"} Canada
Subsldiary held by PDC
Philec Developments 27.07.2004/ CAD1 100 Praperty invesiment and developmert
(Richmond} Ltd {anada
Associate of Sunrise
Perfect Portfolio Sdn Bhd 240218997/ 200,000 50 Investment hotding

Malaysia
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Effective

Catelplace of Issued and paid-  equity
Company Incarporation up cepital _interest  Principal activilies
RM %
funiess
offiervise stalad)
Jolntly controlled ontities held by Sunriso
Sunrize MCL Land Sdn Bhel 24.10.19964 2,000,000 50 Fraporty development
Malaysia
Simo Darby Sunrise 10.12.2009¢ 100,000 50 Froporty davalopmaent
Development Sdn Bhd Malaysia

{formerly known as
Baywood Avenue Sdn Bhd)

PROFIT AND DIVIDEND RECORD

The protit and dividend record of Sunrise based on its audited consolidated financial statements
tor the past 3 financial years from FYE 20 June 2008 to FYE 30 June 2070 and its latest
unaudited consolidated financial results for the 3-month financial period ended 30 September

2010 are as tollows:

FYE 30 June {Audited} 3-month
’ ) period ended
30 Sep 2014
2008 2o 2010 (Unaudited)
RM mil RM mril RM mil RM mil

Revenus 585.8 8039 590.7 171.3
Cost of sales {484.7) {552.2} (341.3) {102.3)
Gross profit 2211 251.7 2494 9.0
QOther net operating expenses and
share ot associated companies and
jointly controlled entities” result {20.0}) {45.9) (68.5} {16.8}
PBET 201.1 205.8 180.9 62.2
Incoma tex expense {41.2) 48.4) {47.9) {15.5)
Met profit 1598 156.4 133.0 387
PATAMI 160.0 156 2 134.0 8.7
Issued and paid up capital 4502 405.4 495.4 495.4
NA/shareholgers' tunds 7586 a74.5 1,084 3 1,127 6
Basic EPS (sen) 3570 31.90 27.04 741
Diluted EPS {sen) 3557 31.90 27.04 741
NA per share (RM} 1.568 187 221 228
Total borrowings 4621 4935 5204 554.0
Current ratio {limes}) 1.19 0.80 1.867 1.62
Gearnng ratio (times} 0.61 0.51 .48 0.49
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()  FYE 30 June 2010 ("FYE 2010")

For the FYE 2010, the Sunnse Group recorded revenue of RM580.7 million, a decrease
of approximately 27% compared to RM&03.8 million recorded in the FYE 2009. In the
FYE 2008, Mont'Kiara Meridin was completed together with substantial revenue
recognition for 10 Mont'Kiara and Solaris Dutamas. This has contributed to a lower
revenye for the FYE 2010

PBT decreased by RM24.2 million from RM205.8 million recorded in the FYE 2009 fo
RM180.2 million in the FYE 2010. The decrsase in PBT was mainly atiributable to the
one-off gain of RM19.4 million recorded in the FYE 2009 (as detailed below). Excluding
the said one-off gain, the decrease in PBT is only RM4.5 million. .

(it FYE 30 June 2009 {"FYE 2009

For the FYE 2008, the Sunrise Group recorded revenue of RMB03.9 million, an
approximately 17% increase compared to RM&85.8 million recorded in the FYE 2008.
Main contributors to the Sunrise Group's financial performance for the FYE 2008 were its
ongoing commercial and residential developments, namely Solaris Dutamas, Mont'’Kiara
Meridin, 10 Mont'Kiara, 11 Mont'Kiara and The Residence.

The PBT increased by 2% from RM201.1 million to RM205.8 million. The lower increment
{relative to the increase in revenue) was partly due to decrease in other income. In the
previous financial year, the Sunrise Group made a gain ot RM46.8 million from the sale of
properties at Plaza Mont'Kiara, compared with RM12.4 million tor the FYE 2009,

fily  FYE 30 June 2008 ("FYE 2008")

The Sunrise Group recorded revenue of RM685.8 million and PBT of RM201.1 million for
the FYE 2008. This represents 2 23% increase in revenue and 28% increase in PBT as
compared to the previous financial year. The Sunrise Group's commercial development
such as Solaris Dutamas, resigential developments such as Mont'Kiara Banyan,
Mont'Kiara Meridin, 10 Mont'Kiara and 11 Mont'Kiara and the sale of commercial units
and car park lots in Plaza Mont'Kiara to Quill Capita Trust have contributed favourably to
the Sunrise Group's financial performance in the FYE 2008.

There is no audit qualification for the financial statements in any of the financial years under
review.

MATERIAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

71 Materlal commitments

As at 30 September 2010, the commitments of the Sunrise Group are as follows:

(i) Capital commitments
RM million

Authorised and contracted for in respect of.

Commitmant towards a joint venture for a development project'™ 1.0

Commitment towards balance payment for acquisition of land®! 65.3
Tetal 70.3
Notes:
i in refation to a joinf venture enlered between Prinsip Eramajt Sdn Bhd, a whoily-

owned subsidiary of Sunrise and Joy Jewe( Sdn Bhd, to develop a parcel of land
held under GM 1408, Lot No. 2581, in the Mukim of Baiu, Daerah Kuala Lumpur
into & residernitial development ar other devslopments to be determined.
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b In refation to the foltowing.

{1 ihe funding commitment By Sunrisa for e acquision of lands held
under GRN 73630 for Lot Na. 78373, GRN 74887 for Lot No. 78377
and H.S.(D) 236714 for PT 34343, atl in Mukim of Damarrsara, Disirct
of Pefating in retation io a joint vanfure entared irfo befween Sunidse
and 3ime Darby Froperfy Berfad fo undertahe a new mixed
develaprier it Bukit Jelutong, Shah Atam which amounis to RM51.3
miltion; and

fii} the balance payrnent to Puncak Metali Sdn Bhd (PMSBT) in respect of
the sale and purchase agreement enfered betwaen Milik Harte Sdn
Ehd, a whotiv-owned subsidiary of Sunrise and PMSE for the proposed
acquisition of the freehcld land heid under Lot 2388, Mukim Batlr from
FMSA which ampunis fo RM18.0 mitlion.

i) Lease commitments in respect of rental of premises

Future minimum lease payment

RM million
Within 1 year 7.0
Within 2-5 years 22.1
Total 281
7.2 Contingent liabilitres
Save for guarantees given to government bodies and service providers amounting to
RM5, 538,000, the Sunrise Group does not have any contingent fiability as at 30
September 2010. The Sunrise Group is required to make the full payment should the
said guarantees becomes enforceable.
MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed below, the Sunrise Group has not entered inte any material contract (not
being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business} within 2 years Immediately

preceding the date of this Circular:

(i}

(i

Subscription and shareholders’ agreement dated 26 January 2010 entered inte by
Sunrise, Sime Darby Property Berhad (“Sime Darby Property’), Baywood Avenue Sdn
Bhd (“Baywood") for the creation of a joint-venture vehicle via Baywood (now known as
Sime Darby Sunrise Development Sdn. Bhd.} {"Joint Venture'} to undertake the
acquisition ang development of lands held under GRN 74680 for Lot No. 78374, GRN
74657 for Lot No. 78377 and H.5.(D} 246714 for PT 34843, all in Mukim of Damansara,
District of Petaling measuring In area approximately 84,785 square metres. Under the
Joint Venture, Sunrise and Sime Darby Property will each have a 50% equity interest in
Baywood, and

Agreement dated 19 December 2008 entered intc between Sunrise KHF Sdn Bhd
{(“Sunrise KHP"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sunnse and Malaysia Commercial
Development Fund Pte. Lid. (*MCDF"} to mutually terminate the pu and call optian
agreement dated 5 May 2008 made between them. Pursuani io the terminat;on
agreement, Sunrise KHP has on 12 December 2008 refunded to MCDF the optlion

deposit together with inferest.

MATERIAL LITIGATION

There is no material litigation and claim against the Sunrise Group as at 30 September 2010.
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APPENDIX |V

QUR PROFORMA CONSGQLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2009 TOGETHER
WITH THE REPORTING ACCOLINTANTS’ LETTER

/

IR
”HHHWH H ” “ “ ” it Elf ERNST& YOUNG Fymst & Young

Level 234, Menara Mi enium
Jatan Damanlela

FPuzat Bandar Damanzara
52450 Kuala Lumgur, Malavsia

Mzil acdress: [.J. Box 11040
%0734 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

Tel: =603 7495 8000

Fax: -&03 2098 3332 (General ling)
+4L03 2095 9076
+603 2095 2078

Reporting Accountants’ Report on WYY, COM
Unaudiied Pro forma Consclidated Balance Sheet :
(Prepared for inclusion in Circular to Shareholders to be dated 30 November 2010
"Circular"®)

25 November 2010

The Board of Directors
UEM Land Heldings Berhad
Level 162, Mercu UEM
Jalan Stesen Sental 5
Kuala Lumpur Sentral
50470 Kuala Lumpur

Dear Sirs

UEM LAND HOLDINGS BERHAD ("ULHB")

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2009
CONDITIONAL TAKE-OVER OFFER BY ULHB TG ACGQUIRE ALL THE ORDINARY SHARES
OF RM1.00 EACH IN SUNRISE BERHAD ("SUNRISE") (EXCLUDING TREASURY SHARES)
NOT ALREADY QWNED BY ULHB ("OFFER SHARES'") AT AN OFFER PRICE OF RMZ2.80
PER OFFER SHARE ("PROPOSED ACQUISITION")

We report on the unaudited pro forma consalidated balance sheets as at 21 December 2009
of ULHRB and its subsidiaries {("ULHB Group*) as set out in Appendix [V of the Circular dated
30 Novemnber 2010 which have been prepared on the basis described in Motes to the
Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Batance Sheets (which we have stamped for the purpose
of identification}. The unaudited pro forma consclidated balance sheets have been prepared
for iHustrative purposes to provide information on how the consolidated balance sheets of
ULHB Group as at 31 December 2009 might have been affected by the Proposed Acgulsition
had the proposal been completed on that date.

The report is required by and is given for the purpose of Inclusion in the Circular in
compliance with the Main Market Listing Requirements issued by the Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad (“Listing Requirements”) and for no other purpose.

A menben Tirrof Jiass & oo e O abai Line bed
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Responsibilities

it is the responsibility of the directors ot ULHB to prepare the unaudited pro forma
consoclidated balance sheets as at 31 December 2009 in accordance with the Listing
Requirements.

Our respensibility is to form an opinicn on the unaudited pro forma consclidated balance
sheets and to report that opinion to you.

In providing this opinion, we are not responsible tor updating or refreshing any reports or
cpinions previcusly issued By us on any financial infermation used in the preparation of the
unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheets, nor do we accept responsibility for such
reports or opinions beyand that owed to those to wham those reports o oninicns were
addressed by us at the dates of their issue,

Basis of gpinion

We conducted our work in accordance with Malaysian Approved Standard on Assurance
Engagements, ISAE 3000: Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial intormation. The work that we pertormed for the purpase of this report,
which involved no independent examination ot any of the underlying financial information,
consisted primarily ot comparing the unadjusted financial information to the source
documents, considering the evidence supperting the adjustments, checking of arithmetical
accuracy and discussing the unaudited pro ferma censolidated balance sheefs as at 31
December 2009 with the directors.

We planned and performed our wark so as to obtain the intormation and explanafions we
considered necessary in order {o provide us with reasonable assurance that the unaudited
pro forma conseclidated balance sheets as at 31 December 2009 have been properly
prepared on the basis stated using financial statements prepared in accordance with
Financiat Reporting Standards in Malaysia, and in a manner consistent with both the format
of the financial statements and the accounting policics of ULHB. Our work also involves
assessing whether the adjustments made to the information used in the preparation of the
unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheets are appropriate for the purposes of
preparing the unaudited pro forma conselidated balance sheets.

The unaudited pro ferma consolidated halance sheets is prepared for illustrative purposes
only, based on the judgements and assumptions ot the directers of the UHLB, and, because
of its hypothetical nature, does not provide any assurance or indication that any event will
take place in the future and may not be indicative ot the tinancial position of the UHLB
Group as at 31 December 2009 had the transactions or events eccurred on that date or any
future date.
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Gpinion

As described in Note 1 1o fhe unaudited pro forma cansalidaled balance sheets,

ta} fhe carrying values of Ihe assefs and liatilities of Sunrise as at 30 June 2010 have

(b)

{c)

been used in the preparation of the unaidited pro forma consolidated batance sheets of
ULHE Group as at 31 December 2009, This is not consistent with the basis used in the
preparation of the unaudiled pro farma consolidafed balance sheets where it is
presumed that the acguisition of Sunrise was completed on 31 December 2009;

the assets and liakilities of Sunrise that have been used in the preparation of the
unaudited pro forma consalidated bhalancé sheets of ULHB Group have nat been
measured at their fair values as at fhe dafe of acguisition. This is not in compliance with
the accounting policies adopted by ULHB and the requirement of FRS3; Business
Combinations; and

all the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of Sunrise may not have been identified
and reftected in the unaudifed pro forma consclidated balance sheets of ULHB Group.
This is not in compliance with the accounling palicies adopted by ULHB and the
reguirement ot FRS 3. Business Combinations.

Any adjustments which may be required fa the above described recognition and
measuremenl of identifiable net assets acguired wilt have a corresponding effect on the
goodwill on consolidation and the net assets of the unaudited pro forma consolidated
halance sheets ot ULHB Group.

Except for the effects, if any, on the unaudited pro forma consaolidated batance sheets of
ULHB Group described in the preceding paragraphs, in our apinian,

(a) the unaudiled pro torma consolidated balance sheets which have been prepared by the

direcfors of ULHB have been praperly prepared on the basis using the audited
consolidated financial statements of ULHB Groun lor the financial year ended 31
December 2009 which were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards
in Malaysia, and in a manner consistent with both the format of the financial slatements
and the accounting policies al ULHE; and

(b the adjustrments made fo fhe infarmation used in the preparation of the unaudited pro

forma consalidated balance sheets are appropriafe lor the purposes of preparing the
unaudited pro forma consalidated halance sheets.
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Gther Matters

This lefter has been prepared at your reguest and is exclusively for vour use for inclusion in
the Circular to Shargholders {o be dated 20 November 2010 and should not be relied on for
any other purpose. We accept no duty or responsibility to and deny any liability to ary party
in respect of any use of, or reliance upan, this letter in connection with any type of
transaction, including the sale of securities other than the Proposed Acquisition, This letter
is not to be reproduced, relerred to n any other document, or used for any other purpose
without our prior written consent.

Yours faithfully

/
L/LUA {Lﬁ’j M‘(
Ernst & Yau Abdul Rauf Rashid :

ng
AF: Q039 MNo. 2305/05/12(1)
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant
Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
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UEM LAND HOLOINGS BERHAD (" ULHE™|
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED HALANCE SHEETS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2009
SCENARIO 1 - THNE ACQUISITION BY ULHE OF THE EMTIRE EQUITY INTEREST fN SUNRISE USING SHARES ALTERNATIVE

Assats

Non-current aggets

Property. planl and equipmer.
inveslmenl propeties

Prepaid land lease paynents
Lanz bhe's frr property developrient
Inymelmenl In assocates
Invasimanl In joi vt venlunes
Long ta'm Invesimenls

Long tam  eoaivable

Gzandwl

Mor-nurranl & sposis

Cefamad Iz aanal

Currant asssts

P-openy develcpmenl costs
Mwentores

Racalvaz/as

Arrounl dum fram jolrt venlures
Arrounl dua For 3sanciates
Shorl lerm inveslments

Shorl lern cepagilz

Cash and bank balarces

Assets ol disposal gioup
¢ aesen A6 bald 1or sale
Total semets

Equity and liabilites

Equity atributable to aguity
hcldars of tha Company

riarg capital

Fhane pramium

Treasany shares

Equity component of RCPS

herger relie’ -esene

Olher raseves

Retained profite

MinoTly inla-azte
Total equlty

Non-nurrenf llaklliHas
Bomewings

Long farmr peyabls
Caferred tax Jabiities

Current abides
Provisions
Payables
Bomrowings

Armazunl due ta immed:ets holding company

- nlereg, zEELRY
- Nen-interes] bearing
Tax payabhe

Liaoities of dimpasal Grocp
classifiead as held lor sele

Total labilties

Total equity and labllifies

ULHE

Auditad Conaclldalad
Balanna Bheat aa at
31 December 2005
RM'O4D

a6, 868
25 848
272
1,840,256
43 887
55224
33536
E4,223
39,223
1418

2164 280

594 85T
T9.589
409 494
T5.282
535

¥

27 442
115 546

1232754

15.978

3533012

1,215,627
153 265

34.230
53,242
69.222

1,526 508
£63 306

1,879,212

550,875
24 582
150,312

95E, 251

24215
332620
9.141

313.465
5,805
1,135

G86.622

817

1,653,800

2533012

.45 -

Pro Forma AdJustmanf
RMWG00

354 407
42,778
822,724
2458
52,094
252 525
16,276
195,444
£4,852
218,381
1427

152,664

330,260
1,058,832

438 B21
28,042

52 DG5S
256,051
81,712
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Pra forme 4

Acquisition oy

ULHH of antlre agulty
imteresfin Sunrse undar
Sgenarnio 1

RMOO0

411,270
72,827
a7z
2672,390
47 456
148,433
33,636
84,223
232 048
1418
15,276

3 800845

780,31°
4,521
715,855
75,252
525
1434
27 444
268,210

1.662.602

25,878

=, 800,429

1,545 557
120,186

24,330
52,242
L E¥332

o812 895
453,308

2.266,395

1,730,500
£4,002
“R0 A7

1344914

85 280
588,971
ap,253

213,436
54%%
1528

1.08E,283

™7

2424 124

5,800,528

B FrnsT 2YOUNG (aF: a039)

Chartered Accounlans, Kuala Lumpar
For werbification purposes oty




UEM LAND HOLDINGS BERHAD {"lULHE™

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA GONSOLIDATED BALANGE SHEETS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2009
SCENARKDY 2 - THE ACQUISITION EY ULHE OF THE ENTIRE EQUITY INTEREST IN SUNRISE USING RCPS ALTERNATIVE

ULHB

Andited Canzsolidated
Balance Sheet as at
31 December 2009

RAM QT
Asaets
Man-enrrent assets
Propacy, plant ane equipmet £6.963
Investre 1t proped s 23.843
Prepaid and £ese payreants 372
Lend held tor property developmen: 1,840,288
Investment in essociates 43,357
Investment it joint ventu-es 55,319
Long term investments 33,62E
Long ta'm rece’vable 64,223
Goodwil 33,223
Man-currar deposiss 1418
Cafarmd tay aseat -
2,164,260
Gnrrant assets
Procerty developmert costs &84 BET
lrventones 18,588
Receivables 498 484
Ameount cue tron: jomt wentares 75,2892
Asmount cue tron assocdaes 535
Short kermn investmens 7
Short kerm deposits 27 444
Cashk and bank balances 115,546
1,332,754
Aszets of disposal group
c-aseities as held to: s&le 35,673
Total assets 3,533,012
Equity and liabiities
Equity attributahble to equity
holders of the Cempany
Sharm cap'tal 1,215,837
Sharm sramiam 153,365
TramEL Yy 5mras
Ezuly component of RCES
Margar ral ef razerve 34,330
Orher resmrsas 53.242
Retainad profits 69,332
1.525.806
Minorry interests 453 506
Tolal agnity 1875 212
Non-cnrrent ehilities
Borrowings £50.979
Long term payeble 24,9680
Deferred o, kil hes 150.312
BE6. 251
Cnrrent ligbilities
Brovisions 24315
Peyakles 3aEE20
Borrowings 141
Aricurt due b immadiales kolding company
- Interest hearing ) 315466
- Mor-interest haaring 3.885
Tax payable 1185
GG 532
Liakilities ol dispasal grenp
claszilicd 53 held far sale 917
Total liabilfiss 1,553,300
Total egnlly and habilifics 3,605,012

- 46 -

Pro torma
Adjnstments
1

RM'GOD

454 a0
43779
832,734
5458
3094
292 825
15,276
95 444
64,052
216,361
1,427

52 664

1178273
435,521
20,042
52,208

£4.05%
256,051
81,112

433

Pratorms 1

Acqnisition by

ULHE ot antire agnily
interest m Simrise nnder
Scenario 2

R0

411370
12,827
7z
2872990
47 A58
14E,433
33,535
E4,222
232,04E
1,418
18275

3 B00,845

780,311
64,521
715,855
o282
328
1.4%4
27 444
268,210

1,563,802

35 576

5 BO0. 429

1,215,537
153,385

156,615
34,330
53,242
g9.332

1.682,521
45%,308

2.135,827

2.308,873

£4,002
202517

25763928

B3.530
S83.671
90.253

3134656
5395
~.623

1.083.253

917

3664 602

3,800,£29

Pro torma
Adjnstments
2{=}ii}
RM'0G0

1,803,221

693,547
2,496 767

$198.613)

(1.178,273)

(52,235}



APPENDIX A

Convarsicn of RGPS

Pro forma Z{a){i)
After Pro ferma 1
and conversion

of RCPS under cesh
conversion method
RMCOD

41370
72,627
ar2

2 672,850
47 456
48 423
22 624
54,222
222 (48
1,478
16,276

3,800,349

793,21
54,521
715,855
75,292
535

1,434

27 444
2,071,421

276G, 528

25578

7 ./573,65]

1.8059,184
2R50,132

34,330
42,242
28332

4. 718,220
452,338

5,199,522

1,130,820

24,302
180,212

1,244,913

B8.380
588,571
50,553

213 456
5,855
1,528

1,088,293

£17

7 454,124

7.602.850

Pro farma
Adjustments

2{a)iN}
RW000

301,542
* 085,551

{156.615}

1178 273)

(52, 205}

Pra farma Zlajlii)
After Pro farme 1
and conversion

of RGPS under non-cash

converslon method
RATO0Q

411,378
72527
72
24672540
a7 485
148433
33,635
54,222
232,048
1,418
18,274

2 A0 345

750,211
B4,521
715,556
75,292
535
1,434
27.444
268,210

1,862,822

35,378

3,800,425

1.817.178
1.238.816

34,220
52,242
gy 232

2,512,588
452 206

3,366,305 .

1,430,600

&4,002
150,342

1.244 814

88,280
088,671
940,253

213,486
5.685
1.628

T B, E83

817

2434124

b, BO0. 429

Redemptron of RCPS
Pro forma 2
Atter Pro forma 1
Fro foma and redemption
Adjustments of RGPS vig proceeds
R[] from horrowings
RM000 RAN000

411,378
75627
272
24675930
47 453
148,433
33,636
&40
235,048
1,418
13276

2 HS0. 845

THE0.3M
84,521
715,855
75282
935
1.434

ET7 444
ZE8.210
1883652

25,978
5,800,428

1,215,537

153,355

(156 515 ]
24,220
53,242
B9, 222

1,525,508 -

453,208

1,979,212

208,520 2,517 562
84,002
150,242
27007

252 205)

&8,280
985,671
M 25F

313,488
5,895
1,828

T 08,293

217
382217
3, 600.425

.47 -

B ErNsT & YOUNG R 4099)

Chanerad Azcountants, Kuata Lumpur
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APPENDIX B

UEM LAND HOLDINGS BERHAD ("ULHB')
NOTES TO THE UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

1.

Basis ot preparation

The Unaudited Pro forma Consolidated Balance Sheets have been prepared tor
illustrative purposes, based on the audited consolidated balance sheets as at 31
December 2009 of ULHB and on a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted
by ULHB in the preparation of the audited consolidated financial statements of ULHE for
the financlal year ended 31 December 2009 to show the effects of the proposed
conditional take-aver otter by ULHE {0 acguire the entire aguity interest in Sunrise
Berhad ("Sunrise"} had the acquisition been completed on that date.

tJLHB proposes to acgulre Sunrise shares at RMZ2.80 per share.

The conditional take-over is to be satistied in either of the following manner:

(i) through issuance of ordinary shares of RMC.50 each in ULHB ("ULHB Shares"}
at anissue price of RM2.10 ("Consideration shares™), where the Sunrise
shareholders (“"Holders") will receive approximately 1.33 Consideration shares
tor every Sunrise shares surrendered ("Share Alternative/Scenaric 1"); or

{in through issuance of redeemable convertible preference shares of RM0.01 each
in ULHB {"REP5") at an issue price of RM1.00 each ("Consideration RCPS™)
where Holders will receive 2.80 Consideration RCPS for every Sunrise shares
surrendered ("RCPS Alternative/Scenario 2™,

Also , for purposes ot illustrating the effects ot the acquisition under Scenario 1 and 2,
the net assets of Sunrise based on the audited consolidated balance sheets of Sunrise as
at 30 June 2010 have been used and assumed to be reflective of the financial position
of Sunrise as at 31 December 2009 (“assumed net assets of Sunrise™).

It is further assumed that carrying values of assets and liabilities of Sunrise as at 30
June 2010 approximate their respective fair values as at 31 December 2009 and that
there are no other identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that require to
be adjusted in determining the assumed geodwill on acquisition. The assumed goodwill
an acquisition is computed as follows:

RM'000
Assumed fair value consideration 1,387,093
Assumed fair value of net assets of Sunrise 1,094,268
Assumed goadwill on acquisitien 292,825

N ErNSTEYOUNG nf: toay

Crartered Acctunlants, ¥uald Lumpy-
Fof wenlification: purposes oy

-48 -



APPENDIX B

UEM LAND HOLDINGS BERHAD ("ULHB')
NOTES TO THE UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (CONTD.)

2. Scenario 1 - The acquisition by ULHB of the entire equity interest in Sunrise using the
Share Alternative

Proforma i

Proforma 1 incorporates the effects of the acquisition of Sunrise on the assumption
that the consideration tor the acquisition is settled through issuance of ordinary shares
ot RMQ.50 each in ULHB at an issue price of RM2.10, where the Sunrise shareholders
will receive approximately 1.33 Consideration shares for every Sunrise shares
surrendered.

FRS 3: Business Combinations requires that the fair value of shares issued to be used
for the purpose of computing the tair value of disposal considerations. For the purposes
of this unaudited pro forma, the fair value of ULHE shares is assumed to be at RM2.10
based on the offer price as at 4 November 2010, The actual fair value at the date of
completion may differ materially from this assumed fair value.

Based on the issue price of RM2.10 per Consideration shares, the total number ot
Consideration shares to be issued is as calculated below.

Total issued and paid up of Sunrise Shares ('000) 495 390

Number of Consideration shares to be issued ('00Q)

(RM2.80/ RM2. 10} x 495,350,467 é60,521

RM'O00
Share capital @ RM0.50 each 330,260
Share premium & (RM2.10 - RM0.50) each 1,056,833

The difference hetween issue price and the par value of ULHB shares is accounted tor as
share premium.

2l FRNST&YOUNG (AT 0032}

Charlared Accountanls, Kuala Lumput
For wlentficalion puIndses orily
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APPENCIX B

UEM LAND HOLLRINGS BERHAD (“"ULHB™)
NOTES TO THE UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSQLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (CONTD.}

3. Scenario 2: The acquisition by ULHB ot the entire equity interest in Sunrise using the
RCPS Alternative

Pre torma 1

Pra torma 1 incorporates the effects of the acquisition ot Sunrise on the assumpfion
that the consideration tor the acquisition is settled through issuance of redeemable
convertible preference shares ot RM(Q.01 each in ULHB (“Cansideration RCPS™at an
issue price of RM1.00 each where Sunrise shareholders will receive 2.80 consideration
RCPS tor every Sunrise shares surrendered.

The salient terms of the Consideration RCPS are as follows:

Issue price : RMI1.00 per RCPS

Nominal value : RMO.O1 per RCPS

Maturity date . 24 months from Issue Date

Conversion price : Conversion price of the RCPS 1s RMZ.30 each

Redemptian price » RCPS can be redeemed at the option of the Holder at
RM1.00

Any outstanding RCPS not redeemed at Maturity
Date shall be mandatorily converted into new ULHB
shares based an the Nan-cash Canversian Method
detined below.

Conversion rights : The RCPS can be canverted at the option of the
Holder at any point hetween the issue date and
maturity date by the following modes of conversion:

(i) by tendering 1 RCPS with cash subscription of
REM1.30 per RCPS far 1 ULHRB Share {"Cash
Conversion Method"); or

(iiyby tendering such amaunt of RCPS that are equal
to the Conversion Price tor 1 ULHE Share {"Nan-
Cash Conversion Method") computed as follows:

No. of new ULHE  _ _lssue Price x no. ot RCPS
Shares Canversion Price

= ErnsT&YOUNG (ol 1038

Chartered poeoLrlants, Kuma Lumpdl .
For identiBsation purjoses anly
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APPENDIX B

UEM LAND HOLDINGS BERHAD (“ULHB™)
NOTES TO THE UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (CONTD.)

3. Scenario 2: The acquisition by ULHB of the entire equify interesf in Sunrise using fhe
RCPS Alfernafive (Contd.)

Pro forma 1 {contd.)
For every Sunrise shares held, 2.80 RCPS will be given to the Sunrise shareholders, As

such, the total purchase consideration is calculated as below:

Tofal issued and paid up of Sunrise Shares {"000) 495 390

Number of RCPS to be issued ('000)
{495, 390,457 ¥ 2.8) 1,387,093

The RCPS issued is a8 compound insfrument,

The liabilify component and equity component of the RCPS is compufed as below:

RM'0O0

Tofal redermpfion value {a) 1,387,093
Nef present value of liabilify assuming a discount
rate of 8.5% and redempfion af end of year 2 (1)) 1,178,273
Equity componenf of RCPS (a - b) {c) 2Q8,820Q
Deferred fax liabilify arising frem

a compound Insfrument {(c) x 25%) () 52,205
Equity component net of

deferred tax liabilify ((c) - {d» {e) 156,615

Discount rate of 8.5% is assumed based on the estimated borrowing casts of ULHB for a
debt with similar tenure and ranking.

£ EnsT & YOLING 147 00381

Charlated ACcoaants. Kuala Lumnpur
For clanficalion purjdses orly
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APPENDIX B

UEM LAND HOLDINGS BERHAD ("ULHB™)
NOTES TO THE UNAUDITED PRC FORMA CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (CONTD.)

3. Scenario 2: The acquisition by ULHB ot the entire equity interest in Sunrise using the
RCPS Alternative (Contd.)

Pro forma 2

Pro torma 2 incorporates Pro forma 1 and the conversion ot RCPS under the following
methods:

3.1 Pro ferma 2(aXi) Cash conversicn method

Fro forma 2(a)i» assumes that all the halders of the RCPS will opt to convert their
RCPS to ULHE shares via the cash conversion method as detined in Pro forma 1.

The number ot shares to be issued s calculated as follows:

Number of RCPS issued (1000} 1,387,093

Number ot ULHB shares via the cash conversion

methad ('000) (a) 1,387,093
RM'O0D0

Total cash proceeds tendered via the cash

conversion method ((a) x RM1.30) 1,803,221

Share capital @ RM0.50 each 693,547

Share premium (RM2.30 - RM2.50) 2,496,767

The difference hetween conversion price and the par value of ULHE shares is
accounted far as share premium.

FH ERNST&YOUNG 3F: 5139,

Chartered Aocoursan:s, Kuala Lumgur
For wantificption purpases onfy
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APPENDIX B

UEM LAND HOLDINGS BERHAD {"ULHB™)
NGTES TG THE UNAUDITED PRG FORMA COGNSCGLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (CONTD.)

3. Scenaric 2: The acquisition by ULHB ot the entire equity interest in Sunrise using the
RCPS Alternative {Contd.)

Pro forma 2 (caontd.)
3.2 Pro torma 2(axiiy Non-Cash conversion method

Pro tarma 2¢axiiy assumes that all the Holders of the RCPS will apt to convert their
RCPS to ULHB shares via the Non-cash conversion method as detined in Pro forma
1.

The number of shares to he issued is calculated as tollows:

Number of RCPS issued ('000) {a) 1,387,093

Mumber of ULHB shares via the non cash

conversion method ({(a8)x RM1.00/RM2.30)) '000) ()] 603,084

RM'O00
Share capital @ RM0O.50Q each 301,542
Share premium (RM2.30 - RM0.50} 1,085,551

The difference between conversion price and the par value of ULHB shares is
accounted for as share premium.

3.3 Pro forma 2(b) Redemption of RCPS

Pro farma 2(b) Incorporates Pro forma 1 and alt the RCPS Holders will opt to
immediately redeem their RCPS at a total redemption value of RM1,387,093,000.

It is assumed that ULHB will borrow fram banks to repay the RCPS halders upon
redemption.

W ERmST& Y OUNG 1aF: 633)

Charterad Accourtans, Kuala Lueapur
For igentiticalon purpoaes oy
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APPENDIX B

UEM LAND HOLDINGS BERHAD ("ULHB™)
NOTES TO THE UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (CONTD.)

4, Non- adjusting subsequent event: Rights issue undertaken by ULHB

Subsequent to 31 December 2009, on 29 Axril 2014, ULHB completed the rights issug
of 1,214,456 ULHB shares at an issue price of RM0.80 each for cash, cut of which
RMA32.98 million of the proceeads arising have heen utilised for the repayment of Jong
term borrowings. For the purpose of the preparation of the unaudited pro forma
balance sheets in Appendix A and B, the unaudited pro forma balance sheets have
appropriately not been adjusted for the abave rights issue exercise since the above is a
nan-adjusting subsequent event. However, had the above rights issue been assumed to
have been completed on 31 December 2009, the unaudited pro farma consolidated net
assets and barrowings as at 31 December 2009 would have been as follows:

Net assets attributable Tatal
to shareholders Borrowings
RM'O00 RM'O00

Unaudited pro forma consalidated balance sheet

after adjusting for Rights Issues 2,497,176 380,606
Scenario 1
{3y Proforma 1 3,884,269 501,339
Scenario 2
(@) Proforma 1 2,653,791 2.079,612
(b} Pro forma 2{¢axis 5,687,420 201,339
(¢} Pra forma 2{axii) 3,884,269 501,339
{d) Pra farma 2(h) 2,497,176 2,288,432

& ErnsT&YOUNG (aF: 203y

Chanared Accountants, KJata Lumper
For idantification purposes only

.54 -



APPENDIXV

SUNRISE™S AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FYE 30 JUNE 2010
TOGETHER. WITH THE AUDITOR'S REPORT

88 ARMUAAL BEZDR] 200

Directors’ Report

“he directurs of SUNRISE BERHAR have pleasurs in submilting their repart and the audized hinancial stalemznis
of the Group and ot the Company for the Fnanciat year ended 30 June Z010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal aclivities ot *he Cempary are preperty development and investment holding. The principal activtizs
of lhe subsidiary companies are disclosss in Nete 14 to Ike financial slatements,

Thete have been na signilicanl changes in the nature o the activities of the Company and ot its subsidiary
conpanies during the financial year,

RESULTS OF QPERATIONS
The results of operations of the Group and of the Company for the financial year are as follows:

Group Company
RMOO0 RM 00D
Profit before tax 180,B7% 314,445
Income tax expense (47,895 15,782]
Profit for the financial year 132,983 31C. 804
Attribytable to:
Equity nalders of the Company 133,951
Mina-ity interests (968
132,983

Ir Ihe gpinien af the directors, the results of cperations of the Group and ot the Company during the financial year
kave nol been substartially aflected oy ary ‘temn, transachier or evenl of a malerial and sinusual rature.

RESERYES AND PROVISIONS
There were ro material transfers to or trom reserves or provisions dusing the tinancial year alher lhan llose
disclosed in the financial statements.

DIVIDENOS

A tirst and final dividend of 3% [Nil in 2009}, less 25% tax, amounting Io approximately RM171,144,0800 proposed
and dealt with ‘r the previous Reporl of the Directors, was paid or. 1G December 2009, Met dividend per share
duriny the finane al year is 2.25 sen [Nil in 2009).

SUNRISE BIRHAD rsev
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Directors’ Report [Continued]

DI¥IDENDS |[CONTINUED]

The directors hava proposed a firsl and linal dividend ol 5%, less 25% lax, armounting to approximatety RM1B6,577 000
in respecl ol the linancial yaar ended 30 June 2070. The proposed dividend is subject to approval by the
sharehotders al lhe forthcoming Annual Geoeral Meeling ol lhe Cnmpany and has nol been included as a liahitity
in Lhe linancial slatemenls.

DIRECTDRS o
The lolowing diractors served un lhe Board of Lhe Company since Lhe dale of 1he tast report:

Natuk Tong Kooi Ong

Dale’ Lim Kim Hual

Lur Tuck Ming

Tee Keng Hoon

Ong Kuee Hwa

Michae! Ting Sii Ching [appointad on 24 March 2010}
Leong Feng Kei [resigned on 8 October 2009)

Mr. Michael Ting Sii Ching, who was appoinled la Lhe Board since the dale of the tast reporl, will retire under
Arlicte 97 ol lhe Company’s Articles ol Ascociation at the forlhcoming Annual Generat Meeling and being etigibte,
atters himsalf for re-eleclion,

In accordarce wilh Article 90[1) of the Company’s Arlictes ol Associalion, Mr. Lom Tuck Ming and Mr. Tee Keng
Haoon witl relire by retation at the lorthcoming Annual Generat Meeting and heing eligible, oller themselves lor
ra-aleclian.

DIRECTORS" BENEFITS

Since the end ol the previous linancial year, none ol the directors ol the Company has received or become entilted
v receive any benefil lother than the benalil included in Lhe aggregale amount ol ermoluments receivad ar due
and receivable by Llhe direclars as disclosed in lhe limancial slalements or Lhe fixed satary ol lull-time employees
of Llhe Company) by reason ol a conlract inade by Llhe Company or & related corporation with the direclor or with
a lirm ol which he is 3 mamber, or wilh a company in whitch he has a subslantiat financial interest excepl lor any
banalits which may be desmed Lo have arisen by virtue ol Lhe lransaclions as disctosed in Nole 37 ta the financial
slatemenls.

During and al Lha end of Lhe financiat yrar, no arrangamanl subsisled lo which Lhe Company was a party whereby
direciors nl the Coempany mighl acquire benelils by means ol the acguisition of shares in, ar dehantures ol, lhe
Company ar any other body corporale.

SUHRISE BERHAD #nasv

-56 -



90 AMNLAL SEPORT 2010

Directors’ Report Conlinued]

DIRECTDRS' INTERESTS

The shareholdings in the Compeny ol those who were directors et the end ot the tinancial year, as recorded in lhe
Register of Direclors’ Shareholdings kepl by the Compary under Section 134 ol the Companies Acl, 1965, dre as
tollows:

Number of ordinary shares of RM1.00 each

Balance Balance
as of as ot
1 July 200% Bought Sold 30 June 201D
Shares In the Campany
Direct interest
Datuk Tong Kooi Ong 1,084,928 - - 1,084,928
Dato’ Lirm Kim Huat a5, 852 799 - - 35,852,299
Lum Tuck Ming 994,448 - - 994,449
Tee Meng Hoon 52,000 - - 52,000
Ong Kuce Hwa 15,000 15,000 (10,900] 20,000
Deemed interast
Natuk Tong Kooi Ong 118,658,144 1,600,000 - 120,258,144

By virtue ot the above directors’ inlerest in the shares ol the Company, they are deemed to have an interest in
the shares ot all the subsidiary companies to Ihe extent the Company has an inlerest.

Other then as disclosed above, the directors do not have any other interest in lhe shares of the Company and of
ils retated companies during and at the end of Ihe financial year.

ISSLUFE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES
The Compeny has not issued any new shares or debenlures during the financial vear.

SHARE OPTIONS
Mo options have been granted by Ilie Compeny to any parties during the financisl year to teke up unissued sheres
of the Company.

Mo shares have bzen issued during the tinancial year by virtue ol the exercise ot eny option to take up unissued
shares of the Cempeny. As et the end of the linancial year, there were no unissued chares ol Ihe Company under
opticens.

SUNRISE EERHRO vayu-v
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Directors” Report (Cortinued]

OTHER STATUTCRY INFCRMATIGN
Betare the income statemerts ard the batarce sheets of *he Group and ot the Cempany were mace ont, the
dreclors toos reasorable steps:

[a] to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing oft ot bad debts ard the making of
allowance for dountful debts and had satisfied themselves that all knawn had dehts had Leen written off aro
that adequaie allowance had beer mace for doubtful debts; and

[E\ to ersure that ary corrert assets which were unlikely to realise their book values in the ordinary vourse of
business nao beer writter down to *heir esbimased reatisavle values.

A: the date of this report, the directors are not aware ot ary circumstances:

[a) whiel would render the amour: wrister ofl for nad debts or the amcunt ot allowarce lor donbtful debts in the
firancial statements ol the Group ard of the Compary iradegquate to ary subslartial extert; or

(bl which would rerder the values attribnted to current assets n the tirarcial statements cf the Group ard ot
the Eompany misleadirg; or

[c] which have arser which render adherence to the existirg method of waluatior ot assets or Liakilities ot the
Group and of the Corrpany misleadiryg or inappropriale; o=

[d] rot otherwise dealt with in this repart or financial statements which woulc rerder ary amecurt stated ir the
finarcial statemerts af the Group and ol the Company misieading.

At the date of this reoort, :here does not exist:

lal ary charge or ihe assets ot the Group ard of the Corpany which has ariser s'rce the era ot the financial
year whick secures the liablity ot ary other perscr; ar

(bl any contingert liabil'ty of the Group and of the Cempany which has ariser sirce the end ot the tirarcial
year.

Na cortrgent or other liability kas become erfarceable, o7 is likely to become enfcrceanle, within ihe period ot
twelve months after the end ot the firarcia. year which, in the opinien of the cirectors, wil, ar may substantially
aftect the zbitity of the Broup and of the Compary tc meet their chligations as aad when they lall due.

r the opinicr of the directors, no item, transactior or event of a maleria, and unusdal nature has a~ser ir the

interva. hetwean the erd of the linancial year ard the date ct this report whicl is likely to alfect substantiady the
results of operations of the Group ard ot the Compary far the succeeding financial year.

SUNRISE BERHAD vevuw
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Directors’ Report [Coatinued)

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

(il

lii]

liiil

livi

On 15 July 2009, the Company announced the dissotution ot its wholly owned foreign subsidiary, Sunrise
Sovereign Ltd., pursuant to sectien 197 of the British ¥irgin tslends Rusiness Compenies Act, 2004, The
dissolution was completed on 24 August 2009,

On 22 January 2010, the Company announced thet the members” voluntary winding up ot its associeted
company, CEQ Network Sdn. Bhd., was completed on 22 January 2010,

On 24 January 2010, the Comyany announced that it hed entered into e jeint venture with Sime Darby Property
Bertied ["SDOPB”] to undertake the acquisition and development of the lands held under GRM 74490 tor Lot
7B374, GRN 7497 tor Lot Mo, 78377 and H.5.(D0) 244714 for PT 34943 all in Mukim of Damansara, District ot
Pataling measuring in area approximately 84 785 square metres or 12,617 square lesl ["Lands") through a
juint venture vehicle, Sime Darby Sunrise Development Sdn. Bhd. {"5DSD"] [formerly known es Baywood
Avenue Sdn. Bhd.] ["Joint Ventnre™). For the purpose ot carrying out the Joint Venture, the Company had on
the seme dete execuUted a subscription and shareholders” agreement {"33A"] with SO0PB and 5050, Under the
Joint Yenture, the Compeny and SOPE will each has 50% cquity interest in 505D,

Simuttaneous with the execution of the SSA, 5DSD had entered into a sale end purchese agreement ["SPA"]
with Highlands & Lowlands Berhad as the registered owner snd Sime Darby Augshnrg IM) Sdn. Bhd. [lormery
krown as Augsburg (M) Sdn. Bhitd as the benelicial owner ot the Lends, to acquire the Lands at a purchase
price of RM114,077,158 or such lesser amount which shall be edjusted downward due to easement granted
to Tenega Masional Berhad [ TNEB'| aver a section ot the Lands |"Purchase Price”]. Accordingly, the Company’s
share nt the Purchase Price amounted to RM7,038,579 or such lesser amount atter adjustment fur the saw
easemient granted to TMNO.

On 1 Juty 2010, the Company announced the proposed members’ voluntary tguidation [solvent] of its toreign
subsidiary, Eest Urban Froperties Pty, Ltd, ["CUPT], effective 30 June 2010 pursuant to section 491 of the
Australian Corporations Act 2001. The membhers’ votuntary liguidation [solvent] hes not heen completed at the
z=nd of the tinanciat year.

AUDITORS
The guditors, Messrs, Deloitte KassimChan, have indicated their willingness to continue in office.

Signed on behelf of the Board
in accordance with a resolution of the Directors,

DATUK TONG KOO| ONG ODATD LIM KIM HUAT
hrector Director

Kuala Lumpur
26 August 2010

SUNRISE BERHAD 75y

-59 -



AMNNLUAL REPORT 2C70 93

Statement

By Directors

The direcfors ol SUNRISE BERHAD sfale thaf, in theit upiniun, the accompanying balance sheets and the relafed
statements ot income, cesh flows end changes in equity, ere drawn up in accordance with fhe Financial Reporfing
Sfandards and provisions of fhe Companies Acf, 1945 in Malaysia so as fo give a true and fair view of the stafe of
affairs of fhe Group and of fhe Company as of 30 June 2030 and of fhe resulfs of their businesses and the cash
flows ot the Group and of fhe Company for the financiel year ended on that date.

Signed in accordance with a resolubion ol fhe Direclors,

DATUK TONG KOOIl OMG DATD’ LIM KIM HUAT
Director Director

Kuele Lumpur
26 August 2010

Statutory Declaration
pursuant to Section 169(16) of the Companies Act, 1965

|, SIEW CHEE SENG, the Officer primarily responsible for the financial manageiment of SUNRISE BERHAD, do
solemnly and sincersly declars thaf the eccompanying balance sheets and the related statements of income, cesh
flows and changes in equity are, in my opinion, correct and | make this solemn declaration conscientiously
betieving the seme fo be true, and by virtue of fhe provisions ol the Sfafutory Declarafions Acf, 1940,

SIEW CHEE SENG

Subscriped and solemnly declared by Lhe
abovenamed SIEW CHEE SENG at
KUALA LUMPUR on 24 August 2010

Belore ma,

SHAFIE B. DAUD

No. W35s0
Commissioner tor Oaths
Wuala Lumpur

SUNRISE BERHALD -y
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Independent Auditors’ Report

to the Members of Sunrise Berhad (Incorporated in
Malaysia)

Report on the Financial Statements

Wo have audited the fironciol statomaonts ot SUNRISE BERHAD, which camprize the balanco sheols as of 30 June
2010 of the Group end of lhe Comipany, and the income stotomonts, staterments of changes in equity and cosh flow
syotomorts ot tho Group ood ol tho Compary for the financiol yoor thon ondod, zrd o summory ot signiticont
accounting palicios ond othor oxptonotcry notos, os sot oat on pogos %4 to 16%.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Firancial Statements

The diroctors ot tho Compony oro rosponsiblo for the oreparation ond foir prosontation ot thoso tnonciol
stotements in accordance wilh Financial Roporting Stondords ond the Componios Act, 1?45 in Mataysia, This
responsibility inctudos: dosigning, implementing and maintaining internal centrol relovant Lo the preparotion and
fair prosortation ot tinonciol stotornonts thot oro tree from materiol misstatemont, whother duo lc froud or error;
selocting ond opplying appropriate accounting poficios; ond maxing zccourting ostimotos that ore reascnoblo in
‘ho circumstonces.

Auditors’ Responsihiiity

Our rosponsibility is to oxpress an opinion on these tinonciot stoformonts bosed on our oudit ord to ropert our
apinior o you, oz o body, in occordonce with Soction 174 ol the Corrpanies Act, 1965 and tor no other purpose.
We o nal assJdme respansioility towerds ony othor porsen for tho contents of this report.

We concuctod our oudit in ozcordance with approved siandarcs on audiling in Molaysio. Those standards roguiro
that we comply with olhicol roguiroments oro plen and perform the oudit ta ahtain reasonab.e assuranco whothor
tno linonciol stotement: wre free trom motoriol misstotomorndt.

An andit invelves portorming procedures to obta'n audit eviierco about the amopunts znd disc.osuros in tho
finonciol stotoments, The proceduros soloctod dopond or. tho ouditars' judgemant, including Lhie assessment of the
risks ot motorial mmisstaterment ol the financial statomonts, whothor duza to troud or orror. In moking those risk
assessments, tho ouditors corsidor intornel contro. relevant to the ontity's proporotion ord tair prosontotion ot tho
tinonciol stotarnonts in order to design audiz precodurss thot oro opproprioto in tho circdmstancos, but rot for tho
pu-poso ot oxprossing on cpinion on the eflectivoross ot tho ontity's ntornol contrel. An aucit also includes
evaluating tho appropriotonoss ot zcccunting pclicies vsed ami the roosonobionoss ot occounting ostimatos modo
by tho diroc:ors, as well as evalucting tho ovoroll prosontation of the financial statomorlts.

We helieve trot tho oudit ovidence that we *ave obtainod is sutticiont ond opproprioto lc provido a basis for our
audit opinion.

fainicr

l|"|u au~ apinion, tho finonciot siatements havo heon proporly drown up in occordance with Financia. Roportng
Stondords oré the Cormpanies Act, 1965 in Moloysio sc as 5o give a true erd *a'r viow o tho tinonciol positinn of
tke Groun ang of the Company os ot 30 Juno 2010 ond o their linancial performonce ond cosh llows for tho
linancial year then ondod.

SUNRISE BERHAD v
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Independent Auditors’ Report

to the Members ot Sunrise Bernad [Incurporated in Malzysia) [Continued]

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the requirements of the Companics Act, 1263 in Malaysia, we also report as tollows:

[al

(k)

]

d]

In cur opinion, the acconnting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the
Company and by its subsidiary companies of which we have acted as auditors have been properly kept in
accordance with the provisions of the Act.

We have considered the accounts and auditors’ reports of subsidiary companies, ol which we have not acted
as auditors, as disclosed in Mote 16 to the tinancial statements, being accounts that have been included 1n
the tinancial slatements af the Group.

We are satistied that the accounts ot the subsidiary companics that have been consolidated with the financial
statemments of the Company are in torm and content appropriate and proper tor the purpose of the preparation
ot the financial statements ot the Group, and we have received satistactory intormation and explanations as
reguired by us kor these purpases,

The auditors’ reports on the financial statements of the subsidiary companies did not contain any gnalitication
oF any adverse camment made under Sub-section [3) of Section 174 of the Act.

DELOITTE KASSIMCHAN
AF DDBQ
Chartered Accountants

TEOQ SWEE CHUA
Partner - 2B4&/01/12 [J]
Chartered Accountant

26 August 2010

SUNRISE BERHAD raa v
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Income Statements
for the Financial Year ended 30 June 2010

Group Campany
Nate 2010 200% 2010 2009

RM'00D RM'000 RM'000 RM'0G2
Reven.e b 590,742 203,922 70,610 61 484
Cost of sales f [341.331) (452 224] {33,87&) [22,493]
Gross profic 249,411 251,498 334,734 38,993
Other operating income 23,871 40752 8,430 & 097
Aoministrative expeisas (18,019] [1&,235] 110,767 (9,877
Other pperating expenses 70,041] [65,304] [8,305] 19.320]
Profit from operations 7 185,204 210911 326,071 25,893
Finance costs g [5,754) (4,353 {9,445] 16,512
Share of results of associated company 113l a3 - -
Share of results of join:ly controtled

entities 1,441 (775! -

Profit hefare tax 180,874 205,750 316,646 19,381
Inzame Fax [expenselferedt il 47,893) 49,412} (5,782 705
Protit For the tinancial year 132,983 106,345 310,864 20,084
Attributable to:
Fgnity hofders of the Cempary 133,951 126,197
Minority interests §: 1.1 ]] 1587

132,983 196,348
Basic earnings per share ik 27.04 sen 3190 sen

The accomeanying rotes Farm an integral part of the firancia. statements.

SUMRISE BERAAD veue v
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Balance Sheets
as of 30 June 2010

Group Company
Note 2010 2009 2010 200e
RM'000 RM'000 RM'DOD RM000
ASSETS
Non-current Assets
Property, plent end equipment 13 354,402 281,662 14,239 17,567
Investment properties 14 43,779 44,327 - -
Land held tor developmeni 15 832,734 921,812 - -
Investrment in subsidiary companies 14 - - 328,037 174,332
Interests in essocieted compeny 17 3,40¢% 3,454 3,824 3,808
Interests in jointly controlled entities 18 93,094 B0 404 946,533 90,284
Deferred tex assets 19 14,274 14,598 1,874 3,326
Total Non-current Assets 1,343,744 1,351,259 446,507 289317
Current Assets
Cevelepment propearties 70 195,444 103,148 -
Inventaries 21 44,952 83,593 21,548 g5,11%
Trede receivables 22 165,024 198,842 6,701 35236
dther receivebles end prepeid
gxpenses 22 50,335 43,080 7,121 9,335
Amount owing by subsidaaty
Companies 14 - - 873,889 720,541
Other myestments 1] 1,427 1,337 - -
Cesh and bank balances 24 182,664 47 878 4,928 3,797
Totat Current Assets £30,848 477 B4B 14,305 B24,050
TOTAL ASSETS 1,974,592 1,829,107 1,360,812 1,113,367

SUNRISE BERHAD “oy-yv
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Batance Sheets as o' 30 Jurns 2010 [Centinued]

Group Company
Note 2019 200¢ 2010 20419
AM'0DD RMO00 RM 000 Rk COD
EDUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital, Reserves and Minority Interests
Share caoital 25 495,390 495,390 495,390 495,390
Reserves Zh 598,%0% £7%,109 527,553 227,834
Equity tunds 1,054,29% B74 495 1,022,543 723,225
Treasury shares 27 an [21] (31} [31)
Equity aitributable to equity holders ot
the Comipany 1,094,268 974,458 1,022,912 773194
W:ncrily inferests . 948 . .
Tatal Equity 1,0%4,268 750,434 1,022,912 723,194
Non-current Liabllitles
Borrowings - nan-zurrent partian 78 £39,556 193,426 224,000 26,000
Leng-term liaoilities 29 35042 65,858 5,252 3527
Hire- purchase payable
- ron-current pertion 30 55 £5 -
Total Non-current Liakilities 478,643 259,294 231,317 29527
Current Liabilities .
Trade payables 31 72,845 153,819 1,715 1,574
Dther payahbles and accrued expenses 31 183,206 72,376 4,708 T84
Amount owing to subsidizry companies 14 - - 13,447 38,298
Hire- au-chase payable
- CUTrent portion ao 51 - 53 -
Borrawings - current portior. 28 B81,05% on 117 a1,05% 00117
Provisian ter liabilities a7 64,0585 &b 740 5,581 13.213
Tax liabilities 433 2,305 -
Tetal Current Liabilities 401,681 594,377 104,583 360,846
Total Liabilities BBO, 324 3671 337,900 390173
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,974,592 1,826 107 1,340,812 1,113,347

The accompanying nates forem an integral part of the financial statements.

SUNRISE BERHAL :eau-v
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Statements of Changes in Equity
for the Financial Year ended 30 June 2010

ANKUAL REPORT 2U°1 99

Equity
atirihutable
te equity
Equily halders of
Share Treasury Revaluztion rompensation Share  Exchange  Retained the Minority Tetal
Group Nate capial  shares  reserve Feserve  premium reserye  earnings  Company  interests equity
RM'000  RM'000 RM'000 RM000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'D00 RW000 RM'000 RHI00
Balance as of
1 July 2008 491293 @) 264 5,855 119 (5018 0K 758,428 817 (LAY
Expenses recognised
directly in
aquity:
- Translation
adjustrnent far
tre finencial .
year (4897, (¢,8¥7] i4 B9
- Share issue
Expenses 3 (3] e
el profit for
the financial
yeer 136,157 156,157 151 154,248
Tatal recngnised
iheome and
exaense for
the year (36] {a897 156,197 151,784 151 15" 415
|ssuance of skeres
pursuznl _
to ESOS 2 330 2 442 442
‘ssuance cf
sharas pursuant
to privale
plecement % 44825 17,930 2755 82,753
Share-basad
payments A 1,37 1,37
Expiry of ESDS 17.234) 7.7%
Balance as ef .
30 June 2009 L%3,350 31 164 19105 (3915 &b7 355 FL 448 568 975, 438

-B6 -
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Statements ¢f Changes in Equity
'‘ur *he Financial Year anded 39 June 2010 (Conti~ued)

Equity
attributatle
to equity
Equity holders of
Sharz Traasary Revaluation compensation Share  Exchange  Refained the  Minerity Total
Broup Natg tapital  shares  reserve Teserve  premium reserve  eamnings  Company  interests equity
RMO00  RM'OD0  RM000 RM'020 RM'000 RH'000 RM'70D RMTLD kM 000 BM000
Balance as of
1 July 2009 495,390 (1) 2,664 - 19,105 (9,945] 447255 9TL44 568 575,436
Expances reccgnised
diesily
in equity:
- srars.ation
adjusimert fa
*he fnancizl
year - - - - - (3,0051 - [3,005) - 13,005
et preft for
the tinancial
yaar - - - - - - 133,581 133,951 [768] 132,783
Total reccgrised
incomre ard
expanse fer
the year - - - - . (3,005] 133951 130,944 [968] 129578
[vidands 12 . - - - - - 111,146} [11,144] - [11,144)
Balance as of
30 fune 2010 §95,3%0 (31 Zbbk - 19,105 (220 590080  1)0%4,268 - 1,094,268

SUNRISE BERHAD 7eaz v
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Statements of Changes in Equity
‘ar the Financial Year erderc 30 June 2210 (Continuoed]

Equity
Shara Treasury Revalustion  compensation Share Retaiued Total
Company Hole capital shares reserve reserye premium camings Bty
RH'DDO RH'DDO RM'D00 RM 000 RM'000 RM'DDO RM'000
Balauce as of
1 July 2008 450213 131 1687 bEh 119 179,723 538,568
Expznses recognised
di-e:tly in eguity:
- Share issue
BXPENSRS _ _ _ - %11 . |
Nel profi. for the ' .
Frarcal year 20084 20,086
Total recogsed
income and
expense lor the
year . . - - 381 0,086 21,060
Issuarce of shares
pursuant to F338 20 30 - - - 91 - 44?2
Issuance of shares
pursiant to private
placemenl 75 44 435 - - - 17,930 . 62,755
Share-based
paymenls - . . 137 - 1,17
Expiry of E505 - - - 17,234 - 1204
Balauce as of
30 Juue 2009/
1 July 2009 495.3%0 ]| 1,607 . 19,105 207,043 123,194
Total recognised
mcame and
EXPENSS
- et prolil fnr the
tnarcil year . . . . . 110,844 310,884
Dividznds 2 - - - . . 111,948 (14,1481
Balauce a3 of
a0 Juue 2010 435,390 jau 1,687 - 19,105 506,741 1,022,312

The accompanying netes larm an integral part of lhe financial statements.
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Cash Flow Statements
for the Financial Year ended 30 June 2010

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
RM 000 RNV'COO RM'000 RN A0
CASH FLOWS FROM/IUSED IN} OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Frofit for the financial year 132,983 156,348 310,884 20,084
Adjustments tor:
Incoime tax expensef/credil) recognised in ircome
claternents 47,893 49,412 5,782 YHE)!
Provision far liabilities 23,675 35,869 - 110,564
Finance costs 5,754 4,352 9445 6,512
Depreciation of:
Praperty, plant and equipment 3,031 3,194 1,791 7634
Inveatrent properties S48 563 - -
Share-haced payments - 1,379 - 1,349
Share of rasults al:
Julntly cavirolled entities [1,441) 715 -
Acscociated company 13 3 -
Pravizion for statf loyalty program 2,206 438 1,541 294
Write- atfs o':
Property. plant arc equipmenl 243 14 7 4
Jther receivab.es T3 -
Trade rereivables 3 - a7 -
Amourt owing by subsioiary companies - - 17
Loss on dispesa. of other investmients 1 - -
Allowance for doubilul debts:
Qtker receivakles - 1%5 - 37
Amounl owing by subszidiary companies - - - a7h
Reversal of impairmenl loss on property, planl and
equipment - [11,654) - -
Gain on dispesal of:
Property, nlan: and equipmient (683] (12,874( 110l el
tnvestrment propertics - 8,556( - -
Uther imvestments - (321 - -
Sain on deconsolidation of subsidiary companies (3,081] - - -
Interest income (2,648] 13,7771 (6,735) 4, 684(
A.lowance for doubttul debts no longer requred 1956l - - -
Pravizion far liab’lties no ‘onger required {5,205( 17,267] 11,710] -
Dividend ‘ncome from subsidiary comparies - |a40,000] [23,410]
Operating Frofit Befare Werking Capital Charges 204,022 217,007 11,062 17,B8&
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Cash Flow Statements
for the F nzncial Year ended 30 June 2010 [Cortinued)

Group fompany
2010 200% 2010 2009
RM'oo0 AMDOG RM'004 AM000
CASH FLOWS FRQM/IUSED IN] DPERATING ACTIVITIES
[CONTINUED)
JIncreasel/Decrease in:
Develonment properties 36,815 [41.023) - [2,018]
Inventories 42,864 1,045 33,651 330
Trade receivables 32,814 181,137 26,450 132,789]
Otner receivables and prapard sexpenses 3,729 5619 544 (204)
IncreaseflLecrease] in:
Trade payahles 80,974) 72,833 191 [2.438)
Uther pavables and arccrnied expenses 110,850 [32,599) {2,784 [25,281]
Cash Senerated From/(Used In] Operations 271,632 74,765 70,512 131,171]
Finance costs paid 122,226] 123.701) {5,758) [6,312)
Interes! income received 2,648 3117 504 197
Income tax pard 81,7471 174.237) 16,084) [1.792]
Income tax refund 4,050 QLIS 3,424 913
Frovisior, for staf’ Layalty program utilised 132] - iaz) -
Frovision for Liabilitiss utidsed 120,145) 15,2921 15,%22] 1329)
Net Cash Generated From/[Used Inj Operating Aclivities 175,562 [25,609) 57,046 [52,694]
CASH FLOWS FROM/IUSED IN] INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds f-om disposal ol:
Property, plant and equipment 738 47,158 11 1%
Other investinents - a%75 - -
Investment properties - 11,551 -
[Increasel/Necrease -
Amount owing by jortly cortrolled entities 16,1%9] (47) 16,1%5] (42)
Amount owing by associated compary 1151 1618) {18) (1a]
Amount ewing by subsidiary company - - 142,881 (49,588
Developrent expenditure incurrea on Land held
for development {43,174) (31,928] - -
FPurchase of;
Fraperty, plant ard equipment Ihaotel £6,931] (24,2011 i331) [1.178]
Invesiment properties - - 153 - -
‘nvestmenls in;
Subs.aiary comnanies - - [153,708)
Juintly contralled entitias {50 - (50[
Met Cash Generated From/lUsed In] Investing Activities (55,632] (15852 2,591 (31,107)

EUMRAISE BERHAD -easv
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Cash Flow Statements
for the Financial Year ended 30 June 2010 [Continued)

Group Company
Nate 2010 2009 2010 2009
R&'000 RM'O00 RM'000 RM 00D
CASH FLOWS FROM/IUSED N} FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Decreaze in deposits in Sinking Fund Account - 4,389 - 4,389
Payment of Long-lerm Liahilities §29,000] [65,268] - -
Decrease in emount owing to subsidiary campenies - - [78,204) [11,84500
Increese in bank wverdrafts - nan-current 130 2,515 - -
Repayment of Mulli-tranche |slamic Private Debt
Facilities - [34,000] - [34,000)
Repayment ot Islamic Medium Term Motes . (200,000] - (200,000] -
lssuance of Islamic Medium Term Notes 100,000 - 100,000 -
Orawdawn al term loan 100,000 24,000 100,000 26,000
Urawdown al revolving credit 53,000 48,000 7,000 48,000
Repayment of revolving credit [23,875] - [23,875) -
Repeyment of commercial bill - [11,614] - -
Proceeds Iram issuance ot shares - 63,197 - 63,197
Dividend paid 111,148 : 11,144] -
Share issue gxpenses - [3a] - [24]
Net Cesh Generated Fram/[Used in] Financing Arlivities {10.6%1] 33,183 [56,325] 95,705
MNET INCREASE/[DECREASE] IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 109,039 [12.274] 3Nz [8,09¢]
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF FINANCIAL YEAR &é, T8 61,936 &80 8,776
Eftects ot exchenge rete dittetences [2,070] (4,897 -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF
FINANCIAL YEAR 24 151,730 £4 761 3,992 &80

Moele: fiLrirg the year, tha Group ann the Company acgu red props-ly, plant and cquiprrent at an apgregata cost ot RM7 029773 [RM24 201,057
in 20C%] and RMa4%.CO0 [RM: 178000 n 20091 respeciively o' waich RM112.000 [N { in 210%] was ecqured by means of hirc-oerchase
arrangement. Czch faymenls by the 31oup and the Company tor the ecquisifion of property, alent and equipment amountad ta RM&, 731,778
[RM24 901,039 ‘'n Z009] ard RMII1 D00 [RMG 176,000 in 20071 -espechiveERy.

The accompanying nates torm an integral part ot the tinancial statements.

SUNKISE BERHAD :.: v
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Notes

to the Financial Staterments

GENERAL INFORMATION
Tha Company iz a public Limitad Lability company, incorporated and domicilad in Mataysia, and tistad on tha
Main Market of Bursa Mataysia Sacuritias Barhad.

Tha principal activitias of tha Company are property developmant and investment holding.
The principsl activities of the subsidiary companias ara disctosad in Nota 14,

Thera hava baan no signiticant changas in tha nalure of the activities of tha Company and of its subsiliary
companias during tha tinancisl yaar.

Tha ragetared oftice and principal place of business ot tha Company is located at Penthousa, Wisma Snnrise,
Plaza Mont'Kiara, No.2, Jalan Kiara, Mont'Kiara, 50480 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

Tha financial statements of the Groop and ol Lhe Company have been authorisad by tha Board of Directors
for issuance on 26 August 2070,

BAStS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Tha financial statements ol the Group and ot tha Company hava baan prepared in accurdance with Financiat
Raporting Standards and the provisions ot tha Companias Act, 1945 in Malaysia.

The financial statamants ara prazanted in Rinygit Malaysia (RM) and all valuas are recorded to the nearast
thousand [RM'Q00) axcapt when otharwisa indicatad.

New Accaunting Standards

In tha currant tinancial yaar, tha Group adoptcd FRS B Oparating Sagmants tor annual pariods baginning on
or altar 1 July 200%, The adoption of FRS B did not rasult in changas to the Group's acconnting palicies and
did not hava any material financisl eftect on tha rasults of tha Group lor tha curranl and prior linancial
years.

FRS B Operating Segments

FRS &, which replacas FRS 114: Segment Reporting, raquiras tha idantitication ot oparating sagmants basad
on intarnal raports that are regularly raviawad by tha Group's chiaf eperating decision makar in order to
allocate resources to the sagmants and te assess thair parformanca.

Tha standard also raguires Lhe disctosura ot intormation about the products and sarvices provided by tha
segmenls, tha gacgraphical araas in which the Group oparatas, and ravanua from major custemers. Tha
Group concludad that the reportable oparating segmenls determined in accordanca with FR5 8 ara tha same
at tha businass segments previously idantitied under FRS 114, The Group has adoptad FRS B
retros pactivaly.
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Nates o the Financia. Slalemerts [Continued]

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ICONTINUED)
Standards and Interpretations in issue but not yet effective
At the date of aulhorisation tor issue of these financial statermenls, the FRSs, lssue Committe Interpretalien
I"iC L") end amendments te FRSs end IC Int. which were in issue but net yet eiftective are as listed belew.

FRS

FRS
FRS

FRS
FRS
FRS

1

1
1

Z
7

Z

FRS 3
FRS 4

FRS

FRS
FRS

FRS
FRS
FRS
FRS

FRS
FRS

FRS
FRS

FRS

5

7
7

7

Firel-time Adoplion of Financial Reperting Standards |Amendmenls relating te cest nf an inveslment
in a subsidiary, jeinlly centrolled enlity or associate)’

First-time Adoptien et Financial Reperting 5tanderds [Revised in 2010

First-time Adeplien of Financial Reperting Standards [Revised in 20100 [Amendments relating tn
limited exemgptien frem Cemparative FRS Disclnsures lor First-time Adoplers and additional
exemptinns ter first-time adepiers)’

Share-based Fayment lAmendments releting te vesting cenditiens and cancellatiens]’

Share-based Payment lAmendmenls relaling lo scope of FRS 2 and reviced FRS 3)2

Share-based Peyment |[Amendments relating to group cash-seltled share-based payment
transactions):

Business Cembinalions [Revised in 20100

Insurance Centracts!

Nan-clrrent Assets Held ter Sale end Discentinued Operatiens [Amendments relating tn plan lo sell
the centrelling interest in a subsidiaryl*

Finencial Instrumenls: Disclosures!

Financiaf Instruments: Disclesures [Amendments relating to reclassiticatien ef tinencial assets end
reclassificatien ef financiet assets - effective dale and transition)!

Financial lnstrumenls: Disclasures [Amendmenls releting te impreving disclesures about financial
instrnments]?

101 Presenlalion of Financial Statements |[Revised in 2009)
1271 Berrewing Casts [Revised)'
127 Conzolidated and Seperate Financial Stalements [Amendmenls relating te cest ef an investment in a

subsidiary, joinlly contrelled entily er asseciate)'

127 Censelidated and Separate Financial Statements [Revised in 20707
132 Financial Instruments: Presentalien lAmendments relating te puttable tinancial instruments and

ebligetions arizing on liguidetien and Lransiticnal provision relating to compound instruments]”

132 Financiel Instruments: Presentetien [Amendments relaling te classification af rights issne)*
138 Intangible Assets |Amendmients relating te additienal censequenliel amendments arising fram

reyised FRS 3)¢

13§ Financiel Inslruments: Recegnitien and Meesuremenl [Amendments relating te eligible hedged itemns,

reclassificetien ef finanrial assets - ettective dale end trensition, #niheddend derivatives and revised
FRS 3 and revised FRS 127)

Imprevements to FRSs 12009)

IC Int. & Deterrmuning whether an arrangement centains a lease?

IC Int. ¥ Reassessment et Embedded Derivalives!

IC Int. § Reessessment ef Emibedded Derivatives [Amendments relating to embedded derivatives|'

IC Int. ¥ Reassessment et Embedded Derivatives [Amendments relating te scepe of IC Inlerprelation % and

revised FRS 3)F
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Netes tz the Financizl Siatements [Cantriden]

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Standards and Interpretations in issue but not yet effective (Continued)

T Int. 10 Irterim Francial Reporting and Impairmert’

LCnt. 11 FRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactiors!

‘C rt. 12 Service Corcessior Arrargemerts®

T2 Int. 13 Customer Loyalty Progmammes!

iC !ni. 14 FRS 11% - The Limit or a Defined Benelit Asset, Mirimum Furdirg Requiremerts ard Their
lrteraction’

iC nr. 15 Agreemerts for the Corstruction of Real Eslate*

iC 'ni. 14 lledges ot e Met Investmert ir a Foreigr. Qpera:ian?

IC im;. 17 Distributions of Mor-cash Assets to Owrers”

iC :m.. 18 Trarsters of Assets from Cusiomers®

! Effectve for anrial periods begirrirg on or atter 1 _eruary 2610

! Effectwys for annual periods hegirnirg or or atter 1 _uly 2010

* Eftectwe far annual periods heginning or or atter 1 Laruary 2011

i Ettectve for arrual perivds beginning or ar after 1 Marsct 2010

¥ Applies <o trarsfers ot assets from customers receved on or after 1 January 2011

Consequential amendments were alse made tc various FRS as e result of these rew/revised FRSs.

FRS 1, FRS 4, IC Int. 9, [C Irt, 12, 1C Irt. 13, 1C Int. 14, 1C Irt, 14, 1C Irt. 17 and 1€ Int. 18 are not expecied
to be retevert tc the operations of the Group ard the Comoery.

The Directars anticipate that abovemertionec stardards end intespretations will be adopred in the annual
tirercial stetemerts of the Granp ard the Compary wher they become ettective ard thet the edogtion of “hese
standards ard ‘nterpreietiors will have ro material impact en the {inancial staterrents of the Greup ard the
Campany in the period of initial application except for tha follawing:

FRS 3 Business Comkinations [Revised in 2010)

The revised FRS 3

+ atlcws a choice on a transactior -by-trersectior. besis “ur the measurement of non-controlling interests
[orevicusly reterred ta as ‘mirority interest’] eizher et teir value or at the ror-cortro.lirg irtesests” share
of the tair value ot the idertiietle ret assets of the acquiree;

+  charges the recognition ard subsecuent accounting requiremens for cortirgert consideretior. Urder the
previous version of the Standard. contirgert consideratisn was recogrised at the acquisitior date only it
e payment ot the contingert cons’ve-ation was probahle and it could be meesured reliahly; ary
subsequent agjustmerts to the cortirgent consideration were Tecognised agairst goodwill. Urder the
revised Sterdard, contingert corsideratior is measured at tair value at the acq.isition date; subseguert
adjustmants to the considerazior are recogrised against goodwill orly to the extert that they arise from
rew informaticn obtained within measuremert period (& maxmum of 12 months fram the acquisitior
date] about the tair value at the acynisitior date. All other subsequert adjustments to contingen!
cor.sideratisn classilied as ar asset or a liability are rezcogrised in inceme statemerts;

S NRISE BERHAL 7esn
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Notes <o the Financ a. Statements [Contin.ad)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FRS 3 Business Combinations (Revised in 2010/ (Continued)
s  requires the recognition of a settlement gain or luss where the business combination in effect settles a
pre-exisiing relationship between the Gronp and the acquiree; and
*  requires acquisition-related cosls lu be accounted for scparately from the business combination, gencratly
leading to those costs being recognised as an expense in incowe statement as incurred, whereas
previously they ware acconnted tor as part ot the cost ot the business combinaticon.

Upen adeptian, this Standard will be applied prospectively and therefore, no restatements witl be required in
respect of [ransactions prior to the date ot adeption.

FRS 7 Financiat tnstruments: Disclosures

FRS 7 and the consequential amendment to FRS 101 Frescntation of Financial Slaternents require disclosure
of information abnut the signiticance ol tinancial instruments ler the Greoup's and the Company's fingncial
position and performance, Lhe nature and extent ot risks anising trom linanciat instruments, and the chjectives,
policies and processes for managing capital.

FRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disctosures {Amendments relating to improving disclosures about finanrial
instruments|
The amendments to FRS 7 expand the disclosures required in respect af fair value measurements and
Liguidity risk.

FRS i01 Presentation of Financtat Statements [Revised in 2009)

MRS 191 introduces terminology changes linctuding revised titles for the linancial slatements) and changes in
the lormat and content of the financial stalements, In addition, the revised Standard requires the prasentation
ol a third statement ot tinancial pesition in the event that the entity has appiied new accounting polcies
retrosgectively. There i no impact on the Group's and Company's financial staternents az thiz change in
accounting policy affects only the presentation ot the Group's and the Company's financial statemenls,

FRS 227 Consolidated and Separate Financiai Statements (Revised in 2010|

The revised Standard will atfect the Group's accounting pelicies regarding changes in ownership interests in
its subsidiary company thal do aot result in @ change in control. Prévieusly, in the absence of specific
reguirements in FRSs, increases in interesls in existing subsidiary company were treated in lhe same manner
as the acquisiinns of snbsidiary company, with geodwill or 2 bargain purchase gain being recegnised, where
apprepriate; for decreases in interests in existing subsidiary company regardless of whelher the dispesats
would result in the Group lesing control over Lhe snhsidiary company, the ditterence between the consideralian
received and the carrying amount of the share of the nel assels disposed ot was recegnised in income
slatements.

SUNRISE BERHAD wam-v
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Nates to the Financ:al Statemerts |Zontirued)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONTIKUED)

FRS 127 Consalldated and Separate Financial Statements [Revised in 2010] [(Continued]

Under IFe FRS 127 [Revised in 2013]. increases or decrezses in ownership interests in subsidisry ccmpeny
thet ac not result in the Group lesirg contrel aver the subsidiary company are deall with ir equity and
aitriputed to the owners of lhe parent, with no impact an goodwill or protit or soss. When a conirol of a
subsidiary campany is lost a5 a result al a transaclion, evert or cther circumsterce, FRS 177 [Revised in 20100
requires lhat the Group derecoghises all essets, lizbilities end non-centrolling inleresls at their cerrying
amounts. Any retained interest r the tormer~ suosidiary compary is recognised at ils fair velue at the dets
when centrol is los?, with the resulting gain ar luss Leihg recognised in income stetements.

Upan adoplion, this Standard will be applied prospectively and therelore, no restatements wili be required n
respecs ot transacticns prior to the dete ot edoption.

FRS 139 Financial [Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
The new steroard esteblishes principles lor recognising and meaznring tinancisl assets, financial labilities
and certain contracls le huy and ssll non-financial items,

By virtue ot the exemption provided in parzgraph 44AG of FRS 7 and paragraph 103AB of FRS 139, the mpact
of applying FRS 7 and FRS 139 an the Group's and Lhe Company’s finanzial statements upen initial applicet'cn
of these standards as requ.red by paregrash 30fb] of FRS 108 is nat disclosed.

IC Int, 15 Agreements far the Canstruction of Real Estate

IC Int. 15 addresses bow entilies should determine whelker an ag-eement for the conslruclion of real estate
s within the scope of FRS 111 Construction Centracts ot FRS 118 Revenuve and when reverua trom the
construction ot real estate should ba recognised. Under IC Int. 15, 2r. agreement tor the construciion of real
eslate is a cansiructian contract within the scope ot FRS 211 only when ke buyer is able lo specity the majer
strustural elements of the design of the real eslate befare canslructian begins andfar specily majar structural
changes once construction ‘s in pragress (whether 1t excreises that ability or not]. It the buyer has that abitity,
FRS 171 apnlies. Il the buyer does rnt have that ability, FRS 118 applies.

Fresently, the egraements for the construction of real estale of :he Group ere accounted lor in acrordance
with FRS 201, Progerty Development Activities whereby reverue is recagnisec using the percenlsge of
completicn method zs corstrucl.on of real estate progresses. wpan the adoplion of IC Int. 15, the Group wilt
review the natu-e ot its agreemezms tor the construciion ot reel estete and will generally account tor Shese
agreements in acenrdance witk terms ot the sales end purcnase agreemeni.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basls of Accounting

The tinencial statements ot *he Srocup and ot Llhe Carmpany have been prepared under the histarical casl
convenlion moditied to inrclude the reveluaticn ot cerlzin treehold lend inzluded in properly, p.ent and
equipment.
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Notes “n the Financial Staterents [Conttnued;

3, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PQLICIES [CONTINUEDI
Basts of Consotidatian
The consolidated finarcial siatemnerts ircorporate the tiranciat statemerts ot the Company and entities
gortralled by the Sroup made up to the end of the tinanc'al year. Cortrol iz achieved where the Groap has
the power tc gavern the financial and operating policies of an cntity s0 as to obtair benefits Irom its aclivities,
Centrol is presumed to exist wher the Ercup owns, directly ar indirectly trrough subsdiary comparies, more
than hall ol the votirg aower ot the ertiiy.

The results of subsidiary compan:ies acqdized or disposed of during the financial year are included in the
consclidaled income statement from the ettective date of acguisiticr or up to the effective date ot disposat,
as apprcpriate.

Wnen necessary, adjusiments are made tc the tirarcial statemerts of the subsidiary companies to brirg
accountir g policies ir line with thoss used by the Group.

Al irtra-group transactions, batarces ard resultirg urrealiced gains are etnirated or. corsclidaticn.
Unreaiised losses are eliminated on consaolidatien unless costs carrot be recovered.

Mino-ity intcests in the ret assets ot corsolidated subsidiary companies are identified scparaicly from the
Groug's aquity Lherer. Minorily irterest corsists ot the amcurt of those interests at the date of the original
buciress combination [see below] and the mirority's shara of changes in eguity sinca the dale ol Lhe
ccmbination. Losses applicable to the mirority in excess ot the mirority’s irterest ir the subsidiary compary's
afLity are alloczted agzirst rhe irterests ot the Group sxcept to the extent that the mirority has a birdirg
abligation and is able to make an additional irvestmenl to cover the losses.

gusiness Combinations

[te zcquisition ol subsidiary comrpanies is zccounted for using the purchase method. The cost of the
acquisitor i5 measurec al the aguregate of the “a’r values, af the date of exchar ge, of assets gver, liabililies
incrirred or assumec, ard equity ir struments issned by the Group in excharge for cortrot ot the acquiree.
plus ary costs directly attribJtable to the busiress combiratior. The acguiree's ideqtiliable assets, Uabilities
and contirgert liatitities that ireet the conditiars for recogritior urder FRS 3, Business Comainations, arc
recogrased at their tsir vatues at the acquisitior date, exzept for ror-current assets {or disposal groups] that
are ctassitied as held lor sale in accorcarce with FRS 5, hon-Current Assets Held ‘ar Sale and Discortirued
Operations, which are recocriscd ard measured at tair value less costs to sell

Goodwill arising 2n zcquisition s recoghnised as an assed ard iritialty measured ar cost, beirg the excess ol
the cost ol lke business combir atior over the Greup’s ‘rterest in the net fair value of tre idertitiable assets,
lianilities ard cor tingert tiabilities recogrised. It, after reassessment, the Groug's interest ir the ret tair vatue
of the acoiiree’s identitiable scsets, Ualilities ard contirgert nabl:ties recognised exceeds [le zost ot the
business cambination, *he excess is recogriced immediately in consolidated ircome statemert.

The interesl ol minority shareholders in the acguree is iritially measured at the minority’s propation of the
r.et fair value ot the assets, liahilities ard cortingert .iabilities recognised.
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Notes to she Financial Stazements (Cortinued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED]

Revenue

Revenue i meesured et the teir velue of consideretion received end receiveble in the rnormel course of
husiness,

The Group recognises revenue when persuasive evidence suggesls Thal delivery has occurred or services
rendered, price is tixed or determinable end :he economic beneiits af the transeclions will flow to the
Group.

Il Property development
Revenus lram sale af properties is eccounted tor usirg the stege of cempletion method.

Sale ot comroleted units is recognised when the r'sks and rewards associated with ownership have
trensie:red to properly nurchasers.

5} Income from investment properties/Rental income
Rental income is recognised over the period of lenancy.

(] Property management
Praperty menegement income 15 recagnised when such servize is rendered,

(vl Oividend income
Dividend is eccounted tor wher the right o receive payment is esteblished.

iv] Interest Income
Interest is reccgnised on e time praportion basis tnet metlects the. eftective yield on the assel. Interesl in
reletion to late paymenls are recognised uoon coilection.

Leases
Leases are classified as tinence leeses whenever the terms ol the lease transfer substantally ell the risks
end rewerds inciderta. to ownerskip kc the tessee. Atl other lzeses ere classifed as operating leases.

Rentels payuble under ope-ating leeses zre charged to The income stalemen.s on e streight-line hesis over
the term of :ho relevant lease. Benetits ~eceived end receivable 35 an tncentive tc enfer into en opereting
leaze are also spreed eventy over the lease term.

Employee Benefits
il Short-term employee benefits

Wayes, salaries, peid ennual leaves, bonuses end non- monetery gerefis ere accrued in the pericd in
which she azsociated scrvices ere rendered by employees o° the Group and ot the Compeny.
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Notes 1o the Financial Statements [Canl nued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES (CONTINUEDI|

Employee Benefits [Cantnued)

liil Post-employment benefits
Tho Company ond certein subsidiary companies make contributions to approvod provident funds and
contributions are chargod to tho incomo stotomonts. Once tho contributions havo boon poid, thoro oro no
lurther payment abligotions. Tho opproved providont tunds oro in occordonce with locol procticos in which
tho Compony ond cortoin subsidiary companics operato ond they are defined contribution plans.

liiil Equity compensation benefits
Tho Group's Employee Shere Option Schome |"FS057) ollows the employoos to ocquiro shoros in the
Compony. Tho totot toir valuo ot share upliuns granled to employees is rocognised as an employee cost
i the income statomonts with o corrosponding incroose in the equity componsation roserve within equity
over the vesting period and taking into account tho probobility thot tho options will vost. Upon oxpiry ot
ES0S, tho oquity componsotion reserve (s transferred to rotoinod oornings.

The tain voluo ot tho sharo options is meesured at grant date laking into account, it any, the market
vosting condilions upon which the options wore grontod but excluding the impoct of any non- market
vesting conditions. Non-market vesling conditiuns aro included in ossumptions obout tho numbor ot
aptions that are expectod to bocomo oxorcisablo or vesting date.

At ooch bolonco shoot doto, the group revises its ostimotos ot tho numbor ot shoro options thot aro
oxpoctod to bocome oxercisoblo on wvosting dato. It recognisos the wmpact of the rovision of originol
ostimatos, if any, in the income stotomonts, ond o corresponding adjustment to aquity over the renaining
vesting poriod.

Tho procoeds received net nt any diroctly ottributable transection costs are credited to equity when tho
options oro oxorcised.

tncome Tax
Incomo tox cixponse represents the sum ot tho tox currenlly payvable and deterred tax.

The tax currently poyoblo is bosod on toxoblo profit for tho finoncial yoor, colculotod using iox rotos thot have
koon onoctod or substantively enactod by the balance sheet date. Current tax tor current ond prior poriods is
rocognisod os o liohility [or asset| ta the oxtont thot it is unpaid lor recoversblel.

Deferred tox is rocognised on differoncos botwoon tho canying amuunt of assets and liobilitios in tho finoncicl
statements and tho corrosponding tax hases usod in tho computation el taxable profit, and is accourtod tor
using tho bolonce sheet “liability” mothod. Doforred tax Liakilities oro rocognised tor all toxablo tomporary
dittorancos ond dolored tax assets oro rocognised for all deductibte tomporory dittoroncos, unobsorbed tax
lussos and unusod tox crodits to the extent that it is proboblo thot futuro taxablo profits will be awvoiloblo
ogoinst which the deductible temporory ditforences, nnabsorbod tax lossos ond unused tax credits can be
utilised. Such ossots end liabilitios aro not rocognisod if the temparary differenco arises trom goodwilt ar Irom
the initial recognition {othor thon in a business combination] of othor essets and tiabilitios in o tronsaction
that ottects neilher the tavabto protit nor tho accounting protii.
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Notes tc Lhe Financial Statements [Cnntinuad]

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES |[CONTINUED)

Income Tax {Conlinued]

Tha carrying amount ol delarred tax assets is reviewed al aach balanca shaat dala and raduced to the extant
Lhal il is no longar prohahls that sulficienl laxabla prolits will ba available Lo allow all ar part ol Lhe asssl to
be recoversd.

Dalarrad tax is calculatad al the tax rates that ara axpectad to apply in tha pariod whan tha liahility is sattlad
or tha assat realisad. Daferrad tax is chargad or craditad to incoma stataments, excapt whan it ralates to
ilenis charged or crediled diractly to equity, in which case the delarrad tax is also deall wilh in aquity,

Daferrad Lax assals and Lliahililias ara oflsal when Lhere is a legally enlorceable righl Lo sel oll runmenl tax
assels against current tax liabilitias and when Lhey ralala Lo incoma taxas lavied by the sama taxation
aulhorily and Lhe Group inlends Lo sellle ils currant lax assats and Llizbilitias on a nal basis.

Fereign Currency Converslen

Tha individual financial slalemenls of each anlily wilhin Lha Group ara prasentad in Lhe currancy ol tha
primary economic anvironmant in which such enlily eperales [ils funclional currencyl. For Lhe purpase of the
consolidaled linancial stalemants, tha resulls and linancial posilion of each anlity are exprassad in Ringgl
Malaysia, which is the funclional currency al Lhe Company, and Lhe presenlation currancy lor the consolidatad
tinancial slalemenls.

In preparing Lha tinancial slalements of Lhe individual entitias, transactions in currancias other than the
enlity’s lunctional currancy lforeign currencies] are 1ccordad at tha rates al axchange piavailing on the datas
of Lhe transactions. At aach balanca sheel dale, muonegtary items denominaled in foleign currancias are
relranshaled al Lhe rales prevailing on tha balanca shaal date. Non-monetary ilems carried al fair value Lhal
are densininaled in loreign currencies ara ralranslated al Lha ratas pravailing on Lhe dale when Lhe fail value
was daterminad. Mon-monelary ilefms that are maasurad in terms ol historical cost in a loraign currancy are
nol relranslaled.

For the purposa ol presenling vonsolidalad financial statamants, tha assats and liabiliiies ol Lhe Group's
foreigr nperations ara exprassad in Ringgil Malaysia using exchange rates prevailing on tha balanca shaet
data. Incoma and axpense ilerms are translated al Lha avarage axchange rales for Lhe yeur. Exchange
differences anising, iL any, are classitied as aqnity and translarrad to tha Group's exchange rasarva accounl,
Such Lranslalion dillerencas ara racognised ir Lhe incame stalemenls in tha pariod in which the loreign
pperations are disposad of.

Exchange dillerences arising on tha selllamenl of morelary ilems, and on Lhe ralranslalion ol monalary Lams,
are includad in tha income slalements lor the pariod.

Exchange diflerencas srising on the ratranslation of hon-monelary ilems carried at lair valua ara included in
tha incoma slalemenls for tha linancial yaar axcepl for differences arising on tha ratranslation ol non-

monetary ilems in respecl of which gains and lossas are recoghised direclly in eqnity. For such non-monelary
ilemms, any sxchanga componant of Lhal gain o1 logs is also racognised diractly in aquily.
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Notes to the Financial Statements [Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED)

lmpairment of Assets

Al each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the cerrying emount of its essets to determine whether there
is any indication Lhel those asscls have suflered an impeirmenl lass. If any snch indication exisls, Lhe
recoverahle amounl of the essel is eslimaled in order Lo delermine Lhe extenl of Lhe impairment loss (it any].
Where it is not possible to eslimale Lhe recoverable amuunl of an individual assel, Llhe Group eslimales Lhe
recoverable amounl of Lhe cash-generating unit to which the esset belongs.

Recoverable amounl is Lhe higher of lzir value less costs Lo sell end valne- in-use. In assessing value-in-use,
Lhe eslimmaled luture cash llows are discounted Lo Lheir presenl velue using & pre-lax discounl rale Lhal
rellecls current market assessments ol the time velus ol money end the risks specilic Lo Lhe essel.

If the recovereble amount ol an essel lor cesh-generaling unill is cslimaled Lo be less Lhan ils carrying
emount, the carrying amounl al the asset [or cesh-generating unill is reduced to its recoverable emounl. An
impairment loss is recognised immedielely in Lhe incomce slalements, unless the relevent esset is cerried el
a revalued amount, in which cese Lhe impeirmenl less is Lrealed as a revaluslion decrease.

Where 2n impairment loss subscquenlly reverses, the carrying emount ol the esset [or cesh generating unit]
is increased to the revised estimale of ils recoverable amonnl, bul so Lhal Lhe increesed cerrying amount dees
nal exceed Lhe carrying amounl Lhet would heve been delermined had no impairmenl loss heen recognised
for the essel lor cash-generating unit] in prior yeers. A reversal ol an impsirmenl loss is recognised
immedietely in the income slalaments, nnless the relevant esset is carried et e reveluad emount, in which
case Lhe reversal ol Lhe impeirment loss is lrealed as a revaluation increase.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plenl and equipmenl arc slaled al cost or welualion tess accumulaled deprecialion and any
impairmenl losses,

Cerlain properties ol Lhe Group ere slaled al their revelued amounls, being Lhe Leir value on Lbe basis of Lheir
exiding use al Lhe dale of revaluation. These properlics have not heen revelned since. The Group has availed
itsell to Lhe Lrensilional provision under |AS 16 [Revised]: Proparty, Plant and Cquipment, by virtue ol which
Luese properties continue to be slaled al Lheir veluetion less arcumuleted deprecielion end amy inipairment
losses.

Gain or lwss arising lrom the disposal of en asset is determined es the ditference belween Lhe nel disposal
proceeds and Lhe carrying emount of the essel, and is recognised in the income stelemenls. On disposal of
revelued assels, the amuount in reveluetion reserve accounl relaling to the essets disposed of are transterred
Lr retained earnings.

Freehold lend and asszels in the course ol conslruclian are not depreciated. Deprecistion ol essels in the
course of conslruclion commenees when the esset is reedy for iLs inlended use,
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Notes ta the Finzncial Stater-onts [Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED]

Property, Plant and Equipment [Continuad)

Depreciation ot other properly, plent and eguipment 15 computed on the sleaighl-line method al the lallawing
annual rates based on the estimated usetul lives of the various assets:

Commercial Complex/Building 1.3%
Sile eguipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Dffice equipment, turniture, fixlures and fitlings 10% - 20%

Residual value and uselul lwves of assets are reviewed and adjusted, if eppropriate, al each balance sheet
date.

Property, Plant and Equipment under Hire-Purchase Arrangements

Property, plent and eguipmenl acquired nnder hire-purchase errangements are cepitelised in Ihe linancial
slatements and the corresponding obligations Ireated as ligbilities. Finence charges are allocated to the
income statemenls to give a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining hire-purchase liabilities.

Investment Properties
Investment properties. comprising certain commercial complexes and buildings, are held tor long-term rental
yields or for capital appreciation or both, and are not cccupied by the Group.

Investment properties ere stated at cost less accumulaled depreciation end eny impeirment losses,

{n disposal ol an investment property, or when it is permanently withdrawh ftum use and no future economic
henefits are expected Irom its dispesal, it shell be derecognised [eliminated Irom the balance sheets] The
dilierence between lhe net disposel proceeds and the carrying ameunl is recognised in the income
statements.

Deprecialion of investment properties is compuled on lhe straight-line method at 1.3% per annum.

Land Held for Development

Land held for development consisls of land where no development activities have tcen carried out or where
developmenl activilies are not expected to ke completed within the normel operating cycle. Such land is
classified within non-current assets end is sleted at cost less any accumulaled impairment losses.

Land held ler preperty development is reclassified as property development costs when develapment activities
have commenced and where it can be demonslrated thal the development activities ran be completed within
Ihe nonnal operating cycle.

Investments
Investrment in unquoted shares of subsidiary companies, which is eliminated on consolidetion, and investme nts

in unguoted shares ol assaciated companies and jointly controlled entilies are slated in Ihe Company's
financial statements at cost less any impairment lossas,
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Notes to he Financial Sta.ements [Cortinued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED]

Investments jContinued)

Olber irvaslimenis i markelable sconrities ace slaled al Lhe lower of cost ard market value, delermined on
an aggragata basis.

Associated Company

Ar @ssociatad company is & non-sobsidary company in whick tha Groudp holds as long-tarm invastmant not
less Lhan 20% ol [he aquity voting rignts ard in which tha Sroup is in & position to axarcisa sigrificant
infloanca ir. its mahagemer L.

Tha Greop's irtarasls in assaciatad company ara accodrled For by [ha equily mathod of aecourling oasad on
Lhe maragemeni f:rancial statamants cl tha asscciatad company rada op fo the and ol tha financal yaar.
Urdar Lhis melhod of accourling, Lhe Jroup's rlerests in tha post-acqaisition prolil ar loss ol tna associatac
comoary ara includad ir. tha consolidaled resulls while dividend received iz reflecled as a reduclion of lhe
irtarasts in tha concolidatad balanca shesl, which include any unsavired reccivables where selllermenl is
reither plarred nar likely to occur in tha lorasaaable fulnra,

Urraalisad orofits and lossas arising on iranssclions beiweer Lhe Cronp and ‘ls associaled company are
alimraled Lo Lhe extant ol tha Group's Intarasls in the relevarl associaled coirpany axcepl where urrealised
lossas provida avidense of an impafrmenl of Lhe sssat translarrad.

Jointly Conlrolled Entilies
A jointly controllad erlily is 2 nen-sahsidiary corrpany in which tha Group has join. control ovar its =conomic
activitias andar a contraclual arrangemenl,

Tha Group's irlerasls in jeinlly corlrelled artitias ara accounled lor by Lha aguily mathod of accouniirg based
or tha managamant linancial statamerls of Lke joirlly controllad entity macda up te tha and ol the linancial
year. Under this maihod cl accounting, lha Groug’s interest ir the post-acquisitien profit or loss ol tha jointly
canlrelled erlily Is incivded ir Lhe consolidalad rasJlls while dividend received is reflected as a rednction of
tha intarasts in tha eersclidaled balanca shaat, which includa ary ursecurad raceivablas where selllement is
neither planrad nor lika.y lo occur in the foresaaabla lutura.

Urrealised prafils and .gsses arising or. iransactions betweer Lhe Group and ils jeinily conlrelled erlily ara
eliminatad to tha axtanl o the Group's irtarz:ts in tha ralavant jointly controllad enlily excepl wheare
unraalisad lossas provide eviderca ol an impairmanl of [he gssel Lransferred.

Developmen! Propertles
Proparty davalopmenl cosls carmprisa all costs that are direclly allributatee to develnpmant activities or that
can ba allocatad cn a raasonab.e basiz 1o sueh activil-as.

Whan tha financial sulceme of a devalopmant aclivily can be reliably eslimaled. preperty devalopmars ravania
and axpansas ara racognised in Lhe incoma statamants by osing tha stage of complelhier method. The staga
of cemgleiton is detarminad by the oropurl'cn Lhat property davalopmant costs incurrad for work parlormed
to dala bear lo Lhe estirratad total proparty davalopmenl cosls.
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Notes o e Fimancial Stataments [Continued]

SIGNtFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUEDI

Development Properties [Continued)

When the financial outcorme of a davalopment activity cannot ba rebakly estimated, property development
revenue is recognised onty to the extent ot propetty developmen! casts incurred that is probahle will be
recoverabla, and property development costs or properties sotd are recognised 25 an axpanse i the period
in which they zre incu—red.

Any expected less oh & development project, including costs to be incurred over the detects fability neriod, 's
recognised es an expensa immediately.

Praperty development costs not recognised es en expense are racogn.sed ss an esset, which is measured e
the lower of cost and net reatizeble value.

The excess of revenue recognisec in the incama statamrents over billings to purchasers is classified =«
accrued hillings within receivables end the excess of biliings to purcnasers ovar revenue recognised in the
inceme statements is classified as progress billings within peyakles.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directy attribltaile tp the scquisition, construction or producticn ol qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily teke e sabstanital period ol time ta get ready lor their intended use or sale, eve
capitalised as part ot the cost o “hose assets, untit such time as Lhe sssets are substaniiady ready for their
‘rtendec use or sale. Tha amount of borrowng costs eligiole tor cepitelisation is determined by app.ying e
capitalisaticn rate which is tha weighted average of the horrowing costs applicebte to the Group’s borrowings
:hat are outstand’ng during tha tinancial year, cthe- than borrow’rgs made speciticelly tar the purposes ot
zcquiring another qualifying asset. For borrowings mede spacificelty tor the purpese of acquiring a qualifying
zsset, the amoun? of borrawing casts sligible tor capitalzation = the ectual berrowing fosts ircurrad on that
porrowing during the period less any investmernt income on the temporery invesiment of funds drawdown
from that borrowing tacility.

All other borrowing costs are recognised es an expense in the income stetements in tha period in which they
are incyrred.

Constructton Coentracts )

When the autceme ot a contract cai be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference te
the stage of completion of the contract ectwvity at the balance shest dale, es measured by the propertion ot
cantact costs incurred for wark performed to dete beer to the estimated tota, cortract cests. Variations in
cont-zct werk, claims end incentive payments are included to ~he zxtent the: they have been agreed with the
custemiers.

When the outuome of a contract cannot be estimated reliably, contrect revenue is recognised tc the extant ot
contrec’ rosts incurred that are proozhle ot recovery. Confraet rosls are recegnised es expenses in the period

in which they are incurrad.

When it is probable that totel contract costs will sxceed total contract revenue, the expected tuss is recogaised
immediately to the inccme skatemenic.
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Notes 12 the Financial Stacerents [Caat'nued)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED]
Inventories
Inventury of unsold complatad propaty units and turnishirg products ara statad st the lower of cost and net
raalisable valua. Cost ot furnishing procucls is determined nsing e {rsl-'r-first- gut mathod and includas a.l
attributabla ovarhaads incurrad in bringing the inventoses le its prasan: condition srd location. Tha cost ot
completad propariy units. datarminac on -ha spacitic icantiticalion basis, comprisas cost ot land, construction
zrc appropriate developirent overieads.

Mat realisabta walua is tha astimatad salling prica in the ordinary course ot business lass tha estimated cos's
to conclude Lhe sals.

Receivables

Racaivables are staled at nomiral value 2s raducad by tha appropriata allowancas tor astimatad irracovarabls
amounts. Allowanca for doubttul debts is made hased on estimale of possibta lossas which may a=sa lrom
non-zallection ot cartain racaivabla atcounts.

Provisions

Provisions ara rada whan tha Sroup and the Company hava a presenl legal er construeiive obtigation as a
result of past events, whan it is probabta that an outflow of resources will ba required to scttle the obtigation,
and whan a radaola astimate ¢f ke amount can ba mada. Provisions ara mzasurad at tna diractors’ basl
astimate of tha amount reguired to seltle tha obligation at tha ba.anta shaal data. and ara discountad to
presen; value whara iha attact is matarial.

At aach balance sheet data, tna orovsions ara raviawad by Lhe directors and adjusted lo reflect the currert
best eslimata. |he provisions are reversed it it is no longa: probabie that the Group will be required o seltle
the obligation.

Finahcial Assets
The Group's principal financiat assats ara t-ade and olher racaivablzs, amount owing by associaiad company,
othar invastmanls, and casl: and hank halancas.

The Company’s principa. tinantial assats alse inelude ameunt owirg by subsidiary companias.

Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments
Dakts and equity ‘nslrumants zre c.assitizd as either Uahilitias cr aguity in accordzrca with Ibe sabstance of
tha contractual arrangement.

The considaration paid, including altrilbutable transaction cazts on repurchased ord'nary sharas ot the
Compaby thal have nat baar. cancallad, are classified as traasury shavas and prasenled as = deduction ‘rom
enuity. o gain or loss is recognised i1 tha infome statements nn the sa'e, ra-issuanca or cancallation of
tressury skares. Whan treasury shares are raissuad by rasale, [Fe difference beiween the sales considaration
and tha carrying ameunt is racognisec in equily.
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Notes ta tne Firancial Staternenls [Continued]

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUEDI

Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments [Continued|

Significant linancial liakililies of the Group imclude trade and wlher payables, borrowings and hire- purchase
payable, which are stated at thair nominal values.

Signiticant linancial Liabililies of the Company alse inclnde amount owing to subsidiary companies, which is
stated al its nominal value.

Borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received net ol direcl issue costs. Finance charges are accounted
for on acarnal hasis.

Fguity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received net of direcl issne costs.

Cash Flow Statements
The Group and the Company adopl tle indirect method in the preparation ol the cash tlow statements.

Cash equivalants are short-tarm, highly liguid investments with maturities of three monlhs ar less trom the
date of acqnisition and ara readily converlible lo cash wilh insignificant risk of changes in value.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SQURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

lil Critical judgements in applying the Group's accounting policies
In the process ot applying the Group's accounting policies, which are described in Note 23 above,
managemant is ol the opinion lhat there are no instances ot application ot judgemant which are expected
to have a significanl ¢ffecl on The amount recognised in the linancial statements.

liil Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Management believes that thara are no key assumptions made concerning the future, and othar key
sources of estimalion uncertainly al the balance shaet dale, thal have a significanl risk ol causing a
rmaterial adjustment to the carrying amounls of assets and liabitities within the next tinancial year except
as disclosed helow;

Property development projects

The Group recognises property development revenue and costs in tha income statements using the stage
ol complelion method. The stage ot completion is determinad by the proportion that property development
costs incurred tor wuork performed to date bear to the estimated total property development costs. In
addition to survey of work-completed, judgements are also reguired in determining the stage of
completion, Ihe extent ol the properly developmant costs incurred, the estimated total property
development revenue and costs, as well as the recoverabilily of the development projects. In making the
judgermert, the Group evaluates based on its past experiences and by relying on Ihe work nf specialists
and external consultants.
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Notes to the Zinzncial Stater-zats [Continuodi

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUOGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY [CONTINUED]

Impairment of non-current assets

The Group reviews the cerrying amounf of ils assels fo determine whefher fhere is any indicetion thel
[Fese assels Lave sulfered an impeirment loss. IF any such indicafion exists, the recoverable amounl cf
lhe esset is estimaled in crder fo deiermine Ihe exfent of fhe impairm:ent luss (i enyl. Where if is nal
possible to estimafe fhe recoverable amount of en individual assef, the Group estimeles fhe recoverable
amaunl af the cash-generaiing unit fo which fhe asset belongs. Recaverable amounf is the higher af fair
value less casfs to sell and value-in-use. n assessing valne-in-use. the eslimafed ‘utnre cash Hows are
disconntec to Ehair present velue using a prz tax discount reie that reflects current merket assessmenls
of Lhe fime value of maney and fhe risks specific tc the esset.

Provision for lizbllllles

Provision *ar liebilities ere made for the estimzted liabLiy en preperfy maintenarce cosls incurred lor
the firsf fwa years alter delivery of vacanf possessicn to the properiy bayers. The provision is made based
on pes: experiences and eslimafed trends of maintenence cosis incurred by tha Grouo in providing similer
meintenencs services.

REVENUE
Group Company

2010 2009 2040 2009
RM'000 RW 00 RM’000 RM 000
Properfy develapmenf 573,786 788,635 65,636 33069
Ircome from investment properties J,846 3,292 - -
Praperfy management 3,885 2.9a81 - -
Rental inccme 9,205 7.0h4 4,974 4 807
Oividend ‘rcome from subsidiary compenies - - 210,000 23870
590,742 R03 522 370,610 61,484
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Nates Lo the Financial Statemerts IContinued]

COST OF SALES
Included in cost of sales are:

Graup Company
2010 2009 2010 200%
RM’00D RM'0ODD RM'O00 Rh'000
Cost ot property development sold 289,530 539,129 - 21999
Cost ol inventeries sold 42 497 1.01& 33,075 a3z
Cost of other services - 3 -

PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS
Profit lrmin nperations is arrived at atter crediting/[charging] the tollowing:

Group Company
2010 200% 2010 200%
RM'000 RM'0D0 RM'000 R0
Rental income lram premises 7,118 B, 704 1,362 1,024
Provision far liahilities no longer required
[Note 32 B,205 1,241 1,710
Interest incame from:
Fixed deposita 1,807 1,787 405 185
Jdthers Bi1 1,380 b 12
Subsidiary companies - 6,231 4,487
Realised gain an toreign exchange 1,978 - - -
Gain on deconsolidation ot subsidiary
companies [Note 14} 1,081 - - -
Gain on disposal of:
Property, plant and equipment 483 10,876 10 T4
Investment properties - 8,058 - -
Other investinents - 3z -
Bad debls recovered:
Dther receivables 143 - -
Trade receivables 19 - -
Allowance for doubtful debts no longer
required 95 : - ;
Stalt costs (33,937) 135,447 [18,782] 118,538
Provision for liakilitics [Nate 32) [23,675) 135,849 - (10,564
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Nates t2 the Financial Siatements {Conti~iad]

7. PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS (CONTINUED]

Group Campany
2010 2009 2010 2009
RM'000 RM 000 RM'000 RM™0JC
Depreciation of:
Property, plant and eguipment {3,031) 13,194 1,791} (1,634
tnvesiment properties (548) (543) - -
Directors” remuneration [Nete 8] (2,374] 12,288) (2,374} (2,268
Provision for staff Loyalty program (2,206) (438) i1,5411 125£)
Rantal of prerises 11,527 (1.82¢) 11,714l (1,428|
Write- ofts ot:
Dther receivables (713) - - -
Property, plant and eguipment 12534 174] {7l (4l
Trade receivaotes (933 . (8% -
Amaount owing by subsidiary companies - - - [19]
Auadit fees:
Statutory audit:
Current year [238) (303) {118] (118
tInderprovision in pricr years [74) [B2] - [18)
Realised toss on toreign exchange (19t (69 -
Loss on disposal of olher investmerts 1 : -
Altowarnce tor doubtlul debls:
Other receivables - 195] - (37]
Amount owing by subsidiary sempanies - - - 1375)
Reversal of impairmenl foss on property,
ptant and eguipment - (11,654] -

Stalf cests include salaries, share-based payment transactions, cartributions lo Emotoyees Provident Fund
["EPT") and al. ather staff related expenses. Con:ributions to EPF by the Group and the Campany during the
finarcial year amourted lo HM3,623,000 and RMT,952.C00 IRM3 838,100 and RM2,184,000 in 2009, respectively.
:n 2009, the Group and the Company reccgnised totsl expenses ot RMT.378,000 in retation to share-based
paymant transacticns.
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Notes to thre Finaezial Statamenss [Conttnued]

PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS [CONTINUED]

Compensalion of key management personnel

The remunerations of key management personnel, excluding directors, during the financial year are as
follows:

Group Company
2010 200% 2010 2009
RM'000 R 000 RM'000 RM 000
Salaries and cash benetits 4,B74 5,184 3,700 £ D44
Employses provident tund 582 SR0 442 442
AT 5,746 4,142 4,488

The estimaled monetary value ol benefits-in-kind received and receivable by the key management personnel
other than in cash Iram the Group and the Company during the tinancial year amounted o EMNil and RMHil
[RM11,840 and RM8,540 in 2009) respectively.

Remuneralions of directors are disclosed in Nole 8.

DIRECTORS' REMUMNERATION
Group and Company

2010 2009
RM000 RM'Q00
Directors of the Company
Execulive:
Salaries and other emoluments 1,935 1,810
Employees provident fund 7 253
2,206 2,053
Mon-Executive:
Fees 1562 199
(Other gmoluments 14 2
168 225
2,374 2.288

The estimated monetary value of benelits-in-kind received and receivable by the directars other than in cash
trom the Group and the Company amounted to RM103.449 (RM115.355 in 2009}
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Notes ‘0 the Finsncial Staterenis [Cantinued,

8. DIRECTGRS REMUNERATION [CONTINUED]
The number of airectors of the Zairpany whese tatal remnneration during the finznciai year fall within the
following bends is as follows: '

Number of Direciors

2010 2009
Mon Execitive Directors:
Below RMEZU0,000 2 1
RME50,001 te RM10C,000 2 3
Zxecutive Direclors:
RM700,001 to RM75R,00C 3 3
%#.  FINANCE CO5TS
Group Company
2010 200% 2010 2009
RM’000 R 3G RM'DDO RM™ 00
Interest expense/praotit payreats an:
Cormmercial bills, overdrafis, revelving
credt and term loens 16,375 11.532 &, 479 3.631
IMTM 5,845 12,169 1,274 383
Hire- purchese payatble 4 - p A ;
Armaunt owing to subsidiary companies - - 3,488 2.498
22,224 23,701 ¥,445 6,517
Less: tnterest capialized in:
Land neld for cevelopment [Note 15) [8,575] (5 037 -
Devalopmeni properties [Note 20| [7.693] 110,301] -
[15,468] 115,338] - -
5756 4,363 9,445 4,512
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Notes to :he Financial Statements [Continyed!

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/[CREDIT)

Group Company

2010 2009 2010 2009
RM"000 Rk'000 RM'000 Rk4'1300

Estirnatad lax payablea:
Current - Malaysiz 48,138 54577 3,186 2 502
Underprovision in prior years - Malaysia 1,433 87 1,144 113
49,571 07,739 4,330 2,621

Oeferred tax [Mote 19):
Current 11,478] 18,3771 1,452 [3,326)

Over provision in prior year - 50 -

[1,478] i8,327) 1,452 (3,261
47,893 49 417 5,782 (7051

As of A0 June 2010, the Company has lax-exempl inceme account amounling to approximately RM10,5%4, 000
(RM10,5%4,000 in 2009} arising trom chargeable income waived in 1999 in accordance wilh the Income Tax
IAmendment] Act, 1999, Subjecl to the availabilily of distribulable reserves, the tax-exempt incame account
will enable the Company to distribule lax- exempt dividends up to the same amaount.

& reconciliation of income tax expence applicable to protit before tax at the applicable statutory income tax
rate to income tax expense at lhe effeclive incame tax rate is as follows:

Group Company
2010 200% 2010 2009
RM'000 Ri'000 RM'000 RMO00
Fraotit before tax 180,874 205,780 Ab,b44 19,381
Tax at lhe applicable statutory tax rate of
25% |25% in 2009] 45,219 51,440 79,162 4 84k
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Notes to the Firancial Staements [Conlinued]

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREOIT) [CONTINUEO]

Group Company
2010 zo09 2010 2009
RM000 Rr 000 RM'000 RM000
Tax eflecls af;
Income nat subject to tax {1,457 (4,617 177,500) 15,903
Expenses not deductible lor tax purposes 33N 4,413 2,974 3,040
Tax savinygs anising from utilizatron ot
previously unabsorbed tax losses (53] (1.397] - (1.290]
Utilisation of deferred tax essets previously
net recognised 1,277) (1,703] - (1.274]
Deterred tax assets not recognised 717 409 - -
Underprovision ol tax expensc in prior
years 1,433 817 1,144 11%
Qverprovision ot deterred tax asset in prior
yoars - 5 -
47,893 48,417 5,782 1705]

As mentioned in Note 3, the deductible lemporary ditterences, unabsorbed tex tosses and unebsorbed tex
credits which would give rise to net deterred assets are recognised to the extent thet it is probable that future
texable protit will be aveilsble against which deductible ternporery differences, unabsorbed tax losses and
unabhsorbed tax credits can be utilised. As ol 20 June 2010, the emounts ot temporary differences tor whigl:
delerrad tax asssts have not been recognised in the financial statements in view of the uncerteinty of their
realisetion, are as follows:

Group

2010 2009
RM'000 Rd'000

Ternporary differences arising trom:
Land held tor development 57,358 &7.358
Frovision tor liebitities 2,848 -
Property. plant and aquipment 2] (&)
Dthers 52 52
Unabsorbed tax losses 7,288 7.500
Unabsorhed capital allowences 16 24
77,570 75,118

the unabsorked tax losses and unabsorbed capital eltowences, which subject to agreement by the tax
authorities, ere available for ottset against luture taxable income.
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Notes o the Financizl Statements ‘Conlinued)

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share of the Group is calculated by dividing the profit atiributable o ardinary equity
halders ot the Company for the financial year by lhe weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the financial year,

Groaup
2010 2009
Prafit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company [RM™000I 133,951 154,197
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ot RM1.00 each in issue {'000] 495,250 489,627
Basic earnings per share Isenl 27.04 31.50

NET DI¥IDEND PER SHARE

A first and tinal dividend ot 3% INil in 2009}, {ess 25% tax, amounting to approximately RM11,146,000 praposed
and dealt with in the previous Report ot the Directors, was paid on 10 December 2009. Net dividend per share
during the financial year is 2.25 sen [Nil in 2009).

The direclors have proposed a firsl and tinal dividend of 5%, less 25% tax, amounting to approximately
RM18,577,000 in respect ot the tinancial year ended 3D June 2010, The propased dividend is subject to

approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of The Company and has not been
imctuded as a liability in the financiak statements,

SUMRIZE BERHAD tens v
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Notes t the Financial Siaternents [Conlinuec)

13, PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Office
equipment,
Freshald furnitnre,
land  Commercizl fixtures Lapital
Fraehold and  complex/ Site Motor and work-
Group land huildings Building  equipment wehitles fit8ngs  In-progress Total
RMBID RM000 RM'T0 RM'00D RMT00 RMO00 AW RM'000
Cost/Valuation
Salance &5 of 1 July 2008 62 29,453 3,734 8407 3,056 11442 178,263 243,824
Adid tions 17 d 1547 2.3 24,1
Transfer from cevelopmant
propeties [ote X[ Rh 8327 - FLTHT 12,052
Reclzssifization - - - 83 (43) -
Cispesals [29.453] (478 - 51 - 34,478
Weite-offs - [14%] [16%,
“rargfer [talfinam irveslmens
prepertias [hote 74, 263 135,130 REREEN
Balarce as of
3 Jure 234 Luly 2009 6,682 - 2,407 A4 3,00 1252 258,560 298,000
Additions - - - 18 206 &5 6,053 1.04%
Transfer om develupment
properties [Nole 2] - - - - - . 68,020 65,020
Secsassif talion - - - - ? (8] 1
Jreprsa’s * - - 12517 1l 1461) - [3,088]
\rite-affs - - - {151 - {13670 [1,382)
Exeaange diference - - - - - {1 - (1
Balavica as of 3C Jure Z010 b 582 - §.407 5,807 3,19 1187 331,627 368,598

SUNRSE BERHAD rauy
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Notes tno the Financao. Staterments [Continued)

13. PRCPERTY, PLANT AND EGUIPMENT ICONTINUED)

OHice
equipment,
Frechold furnftura,
land  Commarcial lintures Eapital
Freehold and complexf Site Motor ahd works
Group land buildings Buildmg  equipmeni yehicles filtings  in-prograss Total
AHTI0 R 000 RMO0R RHD00 RM1000 RMW000 RM'080 RW'D00
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as of 1 July 7028 240 213 4171 1,688 T 556 14 469
Charge “or the financal year 13 S 1178 4% 1292 394
Disansals | (203 [59] 13.201]
Write-cHs - i133) [135]
“rerster from irvestment
preparties [Note 14} 1 1
Palance 25 of
30 June 20C9:% July 200% - &l 5,229 FRY:] g 16,334
Charge fa- the kreceal year - 164 1,115 458 1274 3.0
Fispesals . - {2,589| (] (438] [3,034]
Wrie-oTs - - - 115 - 11,124 [1,129]
Balarce as of 20 Junz 2610 . - kLY, 3240 2576 8628 - 15,196
Ket Book Value
Balance as of 30 June 261 6,582 - 2,155 3,067 420 3,251 INSN 354402
Balance as of 30 June 2009 b,682 5,337 £1%5 373 44073 754,551 281,562

-0 -
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Notes to the Finzncial Statermenls [Cont nued)

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EOUIPMENT [CONTINUED]

Difice
equipment,
Commercial furniture,
Freehotd complexf Sile Molor fixlures
Company land BuildIng equipment yehicles  and filtings Total
RM00% RN'DOD RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RN 000
Costf¥alualion
Falance as of 1 July 2008 3.9M - 2,000 2743 £ 333 15,542
Mdeisicns - - 17 - 1,166 1174
Translar from developmen: properties
[Mote 2C) 553 - - 331
Iranslar frem subsidiary companizs - £,300 - - 15 8113
Transler to subsid zry companies - [14] A4l
Dixpnsals - - |43] - 43
Write-ofls - |20] 0]
Baance as o
30 Jume Z20%7 daly 2009 452% B,500 2012 2,700 7,585 25726
Add tions - - 15 206 22 LAY
1-znsfer from subsidary companics - - - - 2 2
Dispesals - - - - (130 (130l
Write-affs - . . - (118 (118
Balance as of 30 ung 2010 4,529 4,500 2027 2,504 7,989 25,951

EUNRISE BERHAD 105w
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Netes to the Financial Staiemenis [Continuec)

13. PROPERTY, PLANT ANO EQUIPMENT |CONTINUED)

Dffice
equipment,
Commercial furnilure,
Freehald complex/ Eite Motor fixtures
Company land Building eqlipmenl vehicles  and fittings Tetal
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RK'(00 RM'000 RM'040
Accymuiated Depreciation
Balerca &5 of 1 saly 2008 - - &57 1,599 & 41 4,097
Crarge [ar the financal year . 14 4002 434 62 |83
| rersfer fo sulsidiary con-penies - - - - [13] 3
Disposals - - - (& - 13,
Wrile-ffs - . : . 1é) 186!
Balancz &5 of
3L June ZC0SM luly 2009 - 14 1,044 1922 5,154 a.15%
Shasge for the finznciel year . 170 404 14 801 1,
Jieposals - - - . (129 129
Write clis . . . . (109 1%
Jalance ex el 30 June 2010 - 184 1,473 2,338 5717 9,12
Hel Baok Yalue
Bazroe as of 30 Lz 2010 4,529 B34 554 648 - 2,172 16,2379
Bazree as of 30 Juma 2008 452y B 485 P43 i7a 7,831 17 587

The ehave freehold land of the Company wes velued by the virectors an an open market value lor exisinig
use based an a velueiion cerriad odt by independent professionel veluzars in 1994, Hed the freehold lend heer
carried at cost less aocumuiated depreciation, its camrying emount would nzve baen R 1,724 000 tRM1,724,000
in 2009,

Incladed °*n cost of property, plant #ré equ’pmant of the Grodp and Lhe Company is an amaoun: of approximately
RME 828,000 and IMI, 277,000 (RM11,788,000 ard RM3, 717,000 in 2009] respectively. representir g fully
peprecieted property, planl and equipment wn'ch ere still in use by the Group and the Campany.

‘ncluded in propedy, plant and equipmert of the Greup ang the Jompany are assets ecquirec under hire-
pr.rehase arrangerients with nel hook value of RM171.830 [(Nil in 200%).

SUNRISE BERHAD ve v
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Notes to tne Firaazial Statzmonss (Continuad]

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Graup

2010 2007
RM'000 RM D00

Net Bouk Yalue
At beginming at tinancial year 44,327 8,956
Addtions - =t
Transter trom property, plant and egquipment [Note 13] - 34,887
Disposal - [3,004)
Depraciation charge for the financial year [548) 15851
At end of financial year 43,779 44,327
Cost 45,095 45,095
Accumulated depreciation (1,314] [766)
Net book value 43,779 L4, 327
Fair value 78,850 78,830

The tair vatue ot the investment properliss has been arrived at based on the directors’ best estimate, taking
into account prevailing market conditions.

Direct cperating wxpenses relating to the rental ot investmen! properfiss during the tinancial year amounted
to RMZ,210,100 [RM2,177,200 in 2009).

SUMRISE BERHAD ies v
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Notes t3 the Financial Statements [Continucd}

15. LAND HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

Freehald Leasehold Development
Group land land  expenditure Tatal
RM'D0C RM'D00 RM'000 RM'000

Cest
Balanve as of 1 July 2008 400 D4k 138,837 144,790 936,191
Additions - - 60,963 40,963
Trenster from development properlies

INote 20] : . 448 448
Balance as of 30 June 200541 July 2009 460,564 138,837 203,201 997,602
Additions 7972 - 43,777 51,749
Transfer tu development pruperties

[Note 20) (77,1501 - [63,477) [140,827)
Balance as ot 30 June 2010 531,384 138,837 168,301 208,524
Impairment Loss
Balance as af 30 June 2009/30 tune 2010 - 7,557 48,233 75,790
Carrying Amount
Balance as nf 30 June 2010 581,384 131,280 120,048 832,714
Balance as of 30 June 200% &h0héa 131,280 13% 948 921,812

In 2006, the Group made allowance for impairment loss amounting to RM?75,78% 883 in respect of development
lucated el Kejang, Selangor and Mersing, Iohor. Both parcels ol land at Kajang and Mersing, acquired in 1994
and 19%4 respectively, had incurred substantial interest cosls since their ecquisitions. The Group had alse
incurred subslantial development costs in respect ot Lhe Kajang land. The capitalised costs had attected lhe
viability of these devslopments. The land at Kajang were purchased on the basis ot high-density developments
which is not viable under present condition. Allowance for impairmenl lusses in respect ol Lhese lamd held (or
development were based on market value provided by professional valuers in Augusl 2006 based on exisling
approved plans. The directors are of the opinion that no lurther allowance tor impairment loss is deemed
necessary tor the current year.

SUNRISE BERHAD was-v
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Notes to the Finzncial Stateren:s {Continted)

15. LAND HELO FOR DEVELOPMENT {CONTINUED]}
The carrying amaunts of 1and and development expenditure as at balance sheet date charged as securities
tor the credil facilities granled to Lhe Group are as follows:

Group
2010 200%
RM’000 RM'Q00
Freehold land and developmenl expenditure 495,823 291,01
Incinded in develppmenl expenditure for the financial year ars:
Interest costs [Nate 9] 8575 9,037

On 14 Jaruary 2008 an agreement was entered between a subsidiary company and a ihird parly for Lhe
purchase ot a piece of freehold land held for development which provides lor the third party to have an ophion
la purchase an office block with a nett lettable area al not less than 200,000 square feet which is to be
conslrucled on the zaid land. The option to purchase has bean sxercised and the parties are in the midst ot
negatiating the terms of lhe sale and purchase agreemenl for the office block.

14, INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Company

2010 2009
RM'000 RM™000

Unguoted shares - at cost
Malaysia 179,975 45 975
Foreign 150,864 127,181
330,841 172,134
l.ess: Cumulative impairmenl loss (2,804) 12,804]
128,037 174,332

Arnount owing by sulisidiary companies, which arpse mainly from advances, payments made on behalf and
interest payable, is unsecured and has no tized repayment terms, The amount outstanding consisis of:

Company
2010 2009
RM'000 Rw'0D0
Amounl owing by subsidiary companics 990,874 837,544
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (316,985) [11&,785]
B73,88% 720,561

SUNRISE BERHAD 7ue5-v
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Netes Lo M2 F raqcial Sta‘ements (Continued!

Includad in amount owing by subsidiary cocmoanias is ar amodnt ot RMZC0 millicn [RM200 milliza in 2009
represenling barrowings thal sra advanced o subsidizry companias and baar interest at ratas ranging lrom
L9% to &£.65% [2.144% to 6.45% in 2009] pem annums. The interests are equivalent to the cost of finanting
incurrad by tha Company. Tha ramaining amount owing by subsidiary companias baars inlarasl at £.98%

(4.46% Tn 2209] per annam,

Amannt awing to subsidiary camoanias, which arose wainly frem trade transacifons anrd paymenls on hehalf,
is unsecured, nears infarast at 4.95% [4.44% in 2009] par zrnum and has no fixad rapaymanl terms.

Tha datails o subsidiary companies are as lallows:

Effective

Country of Equlty tnterest
Name Incorperation 2010 200%  Principal Activities
Ya S
{irect Subsidiary Companies _
Ascat Assels Sdn. Bhd. Maiaysia 100 100 Property davalcpmant
Aston Star Sdn. Bhd. Maiaysia 100 100 Proparty invastmant, davewpmenl and
construciion
Autcra Tower at KLCC Malaysia 100 100 Praperty development
Sdn. Bhd.

Cakap Kawsl Sdr. Bhd. Malaysia 100 ‘00 Provision ot sacurity sarvicas
Crescant Phasa | Ltd.# British Virgin 100 03 Invastment holding

Isiands
Crescant Phasa Il Ltd.¥ Rritish ¥irgin 100 100 Investmant binlidrg

lslands
Globa: Associstes Internstioral  British Virgin 100 10t Investmant holding

Ltd.# Islards
Ielerior Das'gr: Ona Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 Ganaral contracting, inta=ior dasigring
and censullarcy

Laser Tawar Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 Property developrrent
lamtah Suria Sdu. Blid, Malaysia 100 100 Proparty davalopmant
Lucky Br.ght Star Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 Property invastmant and developmen:
Milik Zarta Sin, Bhd. Malaysia 100 10 ¥Proparty devalupment
New Planat Trading Sdn. Bha. Malaysia 100 MO Property investment and davalepman:
Frinsio Eramaju Sdn. Bhr. Malaysia 100 100 Proparty davalopmanl
Saga Cantamnial Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 Trading of steel
SCM Property Sarvicas Malaysia 100 103 Property managamant

Sdn. Bhd.

- 102 -
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Netes tc the Financiul Slalements {Conzirued]

16, INVESTMENT IN SUBSIOEARY COMPANIES [CONTINUEQ]

Ettective
Country of Equity Interest
Name Incorporation 2010 200%  Princlpal Actlvities
% %

Oirect Subsidiary Companies
Solid Performance Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 Property develapmenl
Summer Lodge Sdn. Ehd. Malaysia 100 100 Property developmenl
Sunrise Alliance Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 Properly developrent
Sunrise Benclhimark Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 Froperty development
Sunrise Cenlury Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 Propery developimenl
Sunrise dolCom Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 Dormant
Sunrise Hospilalily and Leisure Malaysia 100 100 Provision ol property related and

Sdn. Bhd. ancillary services
Sunrise lncubalion Sdn, Bhd, Malaysia 100 100 Donmanl
Sunrise Innovations Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 Property development
Sunrise International Cayman 100 100 Investment hotding

Develapmenl Lid. # Islands
Sunrise KHF 5dn. Bhd, Malay=ia 100 100 Property investmenl and developmenl
Suenrise L andmark Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 Properly development
Sunrise Mersing Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 Property development
Sunrise Millenmiurm Scn, Bhd. Malaysia 100 o Dermaonl
Sunrise Oscar Sdn. Bhd. Mataysia 100 100 Investment holding
Sunrise Overseas Corporalien Malaysia 100 100 Inveslmenl helding and provisian of

5dn. Bhd. management services
Sunrise Paradigm Sdn. Hhd Malaysia 100 100 Praperty develepmenl
Sunrise Fionesr Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 Property investmenl
Sunrise Project Services Malaysia 100 00 Dermanl

S4n. Bhd.
Sunrise Quality Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia 100 100 Property developmanl
Sunrise Region 5dn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 Property development
Sunrise REIT Managemenl Malaysia 100 100 Dormant

Sdn. Ehd.
Sunrise Sovereign Ltd.** Brilish Virgin - 100 Investment holding

Islands

Sunrise Savereign Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 Inveslmenl helding
Sun ¥Yictery Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 Propearty investment and developmenl
ibarat Dula Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 42 &7 Property developmenl

SUNRISE BERHAD #s:5 v
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Notes to the Financinl Slatements [Corlinued]

16. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES [CONTINUED]

Effective
Country of Eguity Interest
Name Incorporation 2010 2007 Principal Activities
% B
{Held through Global
Associates International Ltd.)
East Urban Propertias Pty. Australia - 80t  Property inveslmant
Ltd. @&
(Held through Sun Yictory
Sdn. Bhd.]
Sunrisa Assets Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 Property inveslment
|Held through Sunrise Oscar
Sdn. Bhd.)
Sunrise DCS Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 Provision ol cooling plant facility
Services

|Held through Sunrise

International Development

Ltd.)
Sunrisa Holdings S.ar.l.¥ Grand Duchy 100 100 tnwvestmant holding

of Luxembourg

IHeld through Sunhrise Heoldings

5.ar.l]
Philaa Davalopmenl Corp.* Canada 10D 100 Proparty invastment and development

(Held through Phileo
Development Carp.]

Phiteo Davalopments Canada 10D 100 Property investment and development
(Richmond] Lid*

*  Tha financial stalamants of thasa subsidiary colnpanies are anditad by auditers othar than the auditors
af the Company.

**  Digsplved during the financial yrar [Note 38).

#  The financial stataments of thasa subsidiary companias are auditad lor consalidation purposes,

® Under mambers’ voluntary liquidation [sofvant] (Mote 381,

SUNRISE BERHAD rezs-y
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Motes (- the Financial Sialemerts iConsinted]

14. IN¥ESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES [CONTINUED]
During the financiak vear, a liquidatar was appointed w0 commence a members” veluntary liguidation [solvent)
al Easl Urkan Fropertics Py, Ltd. ["FUP”|, a forzign indirect subsidiary af the Carrpany elfective 30 Jore 2010
pursuant to secfion £91 of fhe Avstralian Corporafions Act 2001, As & result, the financial stafemenfs ol EUP
have been ceconsclidated.

Ihz eflecss of the deconsalidafion af sabsidiary canpanies an the financizl resulis and financial position of
the Group are as follows:

Group
2010
RM'C00
RevenLe -
Loss from operafcons "
Mef .oss for the linanc al year -
Met fiabilities deconsol dafed:
Ofher receivables and presaid expencses 5
Cash and bank balances ' 214
Other payables and azcrued expenses 140]
Exchange reserve 11,2401
Gain arising from deconsolidation of subsidiary companies 11,041]
17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANY
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 ZC0%
RM'000Q RM 000 RM'00D EMCOU
Ungucted cshares - af cost 100 “an 100 1an
Amaount owing by associated company 3,724 3,708 3,724 3708
3,824 1815 3,824 3,808
Share of pasf-acquisifior losses [355] [352] -
3,459 3,454 3,824 3,808
Represented hy:
Share of ret .iabilities (2485) 252
Armount owing by assoclated company 3,724 3,708
3,459 1454

SUNRISE EERHAD e v
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Netes to the Financial Statements [Corlinuer)

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANY [CONTINUED]
The Group's aggregate share ot lhe income, expenses, assets and liabilities ot Ihe assucialed company are as

tollows:
Group
2010 2009

RM'000 RM'O0O
Revenue -
Expenses i13] [13]
Non-current assels 3,448 3448
Gurreni assels 8 3
Non-current liabilities 13,7211 13.703]
Net liabilities {245) (252)
The details of asscciated companies are as follows:

Effective
Country ot Equlty Interest
Name Incerporation 2010 2009  Principal Activities
% %
Aseociate of tha Company
Parfect Portlelic Sdn. Bhd * Malaysia 50 50 Investment hclding
Asesoriate ol Suhrise Hespitality
and Leisure Sdn. Bhd,

CED Meotwork Sdn. Bhd.# Malaysia - &4 Provision of fraternal networking

services

The linancial statements ot the associated company are audiled by audilors other lhan the auditors ot the
Company.
# Members voluntary winding up was completed during the financial year INote 38).

SUNRISE BERHAD wru-w
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Notes 1o the Financai Slalemeznts (Centinued)

18. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLEO ENTITIES

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

RM'00D Ri'000 RM'000 RM'Qan
Unguated shares - at cost 772 722 1,060 1,000
Armount awiug by jointly controtled cntities 95,483 g9 284 95,483 %284

94,255 50,008 94,533 090,284
Share ol post-acguisition (psses 12,1611 14,602 -

93,094 350,404 96,633 90,284
Represented by:
Share al net liabilitics (2,289| [3,880]
Amount owing by jointly contratled entities 95,463 89 284

93,094 86,404

The Group's aggregate share of the income, expenses, assets and liahilities ot the jointly cantrolled entity is

as totlows:
Graup

2010 2009
RM'DDO R 000
Revenue 8,951 5,383
Expenses 17,5111 [6,158)
Nan- eurrent assets 140,856 81,778
Current assets 11,542 11,780
Maon- current liabilities 1144,813) 189,282
Current liahilities |7,974) [7.856)
Wet liabilities 12,389) [3,881)

SL/NRISE BERHAD ez v
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MNotes Lo Lhe Finzncial Statemznts [Continued]

LNTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (CONTINUEQ]
The delails of the jointly controlled entities are as tollows:

141

Effective
Country of Equity Interest
Name Incerporation 2010 2009 Principal Activities
% ¥
Held by the Campany
Sunrise ML Land Sdn. hd.* Maleysie 50 90  Property development
Sime Derby Sunrize Malaysia 50 - Property development

Uevelopment Sdn. Bhd.
[Formerly known as Baywood
Avenue Sdn. Bhd "

*

auditors of the Compeny.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

The finenciel stalements of the above jointly conlralled enlilies are audiled by audilers olher Lhan the

Deferred tex asscts and liability are oflset when there is e legelly enforceeble right to set off current tex
essets egeinsl currenl tax Liability and when the deferred texes relate fo the same tex euthority, The following

amounts, determined after appropriate offselting, are shnwn in the balance sheets;

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2007
RM'OO00 RM 000 RM'000 RM0Q0
Deferred tex ecsets 17,458 15,780 2,473 4,239
Deferred tax liability 11,382] (1.182] (7991 (213
Net 14,274 14,598 1,874 3,326

SUNRISE BERHAD rasi-v
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Noates ~o the “inzrrial Stetzrnenis [Cantinued)

19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS |[CONTINUED]
The movemenis guring tme financial yaar relaling lo Jdeferred tax are as follows:

Group Company
2010 2ane 2010 2009
RM'000 RM™I00 RM'000 RM0C0
At aeginning of year 14,598 &,27% 3,324
Transfer [olfiram inzome slatamenls fer
the yvear [Mate 100
Praperly, plant and equipmenl {200) {a04] 113 [913]
Pravision “aor liakililies 3,105 7059 11,565) 4,237
Unabsarbed tax losses {1,233| 1,862 -
Unahsorbed capital a.lowances b : -
1,678 8,327 1,452) 3,324
At end of year 16,274 14,098 1,874 3,324

The deiferrad tax assets and liabitity during the year [priar 1o affsetting of baancest comprise the following:

Group Company
2019 2009 2010 2009
RM'000 RMCOD RM'000 RM'00D
Deferred tax liabilities [before offsettingl:
Tempaorary cifferences arising from
property, plant and equipmen: 1,382 1.182 79% 213
1,382 t,182 Vi 913
Offsett’rg (1,382 [1,182] (7% (413}

Deferred tax liabilities lafter ofsetting) - - - -

SUNRISE 3ERHAD ripb-v
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MNates [0 the Financial Statements [Caqt niued!

19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS {CONTINUED)

Group Company
2014 2009 2010 2C09
RM'000 RM GO0 RM'000 RKCOD
Deferred tax assets [before offsettingd:
Temporary differarces arising frcm .
provision for liag'lities 16,704 13,798 2,673 4,239
Urabsarbed tax losses 949 2,782 - -
Unabscrbed capifal allowances 5 -
17,658 15,780 2,673 4,239
Dflsetting (1,382) i1,182) (799 (913}
Deferred tax assets [after ofisetting) 15,274 14,598 1,874 3,324

The unabsorbed tax losses and unabsorhed capita: allowances are suhject to the agreement by tax
authorny.

20, DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES
Freehald Development

Group land expendlture Total
RM'00D RM'000 RM'000
Cost
Ba.ance as of 1 July 2008 £5,713 126,658 192,373
Addilicns 1,159 09,294 610,452
Cost reccgnisad as an expense i income statements [28,278) 150,751 [539.129]
Transfer lo property, plant and equipment [Nate 13) - 1102,052] 703,052
Trarsfer from lano keld for developmenl [Note 13) - (548) (448]
Teznsfer to inventores [5,459) (+1.390) [57.049)
Balance &s of 30 June 2009/1 .uly 2009 22,837 80,311 103,148
Add.tions - 334,242 334,242
Cost ~ecognised 33 an expense in nccme sfalemen:s [11,880] [277,5650] (289,530)
Transfer to property, planf and sguipment [Nate 13) [1,1858) (567,834) (59,0201
Transfer from land held fur develooment [Nofe ©5) 77,150 43,677 140,827
Transfer fo invenfaries {175] [24,048) [24,223)
Balance az of 31 June 2070 85,744 108,698 195,444
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Notes to “he Fi-anacial Statements Cortinued)

20. DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED]
Frechold Development

Company tand expenditure Total
RM' 000 RM'DOD RM'O0D
Cost
Aalance as of 1 July 2038 3.4 46148 4% 479
Additions . 16,9¢3 16,973
Cosf recogn.sed as an expense in income statemenis 17,1721 (20,827 121,999]
Transfer [o oroperty, plant end ecuipment [Note 13 - (558] 1558]
lansfer to .and hela for development [Note 15 - [448] l448]
Transier to invantiories [2.299] (41,288] 43 5871
Belence es of 30 June 2309%/3C June 2010 - -
Devaloprer® properties ere represenfed by:
Group Company
2050 2009 2010 20ce
RM'0OQ RWTOQ RM'OO0 RM'0CO
Curnulative costs incurrec ta date 1,473,546 1,234,535 - 270N
Less: Cumulative costs recagnized 25 an
expense to date {1,278,102] 11,135,287) - (27,011]
195,444 103,148 -

Included in deve.opmenf expendilu~e for
the financial year are:

Interesf cosls (Note 9] 7,893 10,501 -

Az at the balance cheet, the carrying amounts of freehold lanc and relazed developmzni expendifure pledyed
as serlrities for the borrowing faciites granted to the Granp are as follows:

Group
2010 2009
RM’DDG fm'000

Freehold land and ocevelopmeni expenditure 129,429

SUMRISE BERHAD 723
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Notes to tha Mimancial Staternznts [Conlinead]

21. INVENTORIES

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 200%
RM'000 RM 000 RM GO0 RM000
Completed property units 84,947 §3,588 21,648 53,119
Electrical ilems 5 ] - -
&4,952 83,593 21,5858 55,119

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAIO EXPENSES

Group Company
2010 200% 2010 2009
RM 000 RM'000 RM'000 RM 000
lrade receivables 71,%83 2,234 &,0%8 701
Less: Allowance for doubtful debfs (107 180&) - -
71,574 22,428 5,098 701
Accrucd billings 94,150 176,414 603 34,537
166,024 198,542 6,701 35,238

The average credit period granted fo customers ranges Irom 14 to 90 days [14 to %0 days in 2009).

Ouring fhe financial year, bad tdebts amounting to RM5E5,000 [Nil in 2009) were wrilten off againsl lbhe
allowance for doubflul debls.

The currancy profile of trade receivables is as follows:

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
RM' 000 RM 000 RM'000 RM'O00
Ringgit Malaysia 71,983 22,473 6,098 70
Australian Dollar - 741 - -
71,983 23,234 4,098 701

SUNRISE BERHAD was-y
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Notes Lo the Financial S.atements {Contirued}

22. TRAOE RECEIYABLES, OTHER RECE!VABLES AND PREPAID EXPENSES [CONTINUEOD]
Uther receivables and prepac eipersec consist of:

Group Company

2010 200% 2010 2005

R™ 000 RM 000 RM'O00 EMIC

O-.her raceivables 19,295 15,624 £98 T.008
Less: Allowance far doaldful gelits (e8] [2541 [104] [a&
19,189 16,342 592 @y

Refundanle deposits 6,739 7,20% 2,768 2,837
Frepaid expenses 342 638 277 L4400
Tax recoverable . 24,065 19,791 3,485 5154
50,335 43,020 7121 9,33c

Inrluded in other receivables of tha Group is an amount of RM14,00%000 iRM12.C00,000 in 200%) representing
amount paid by cerlain suhsidiary companies ‘or the acgaisition cof twe parcels of Ireehold land el under
Lot 2354 and Lot 2381, at Mukim Datu, Kuala Lumpuar.

During the financial year. bad debts amounting to RM15,261 [Nil in 2009} of the Group wa-e written off against
the alpwanre frr doubtial deats,

The currency prolila of other receivah.es is as follows:

Group Coempany

2010 2309 2010 2009

RM'000 RM00 RM'000 RM 000

Ringgit Malaysia 17,454 14,218 598 1,008

Canadjan Jallar 1,373 703 - -

Pound Sterling 265 340 - -
United States Dollar 143 145 -

19,295 15,628 98 1,002

SJNRISE BERHAD wapu.i
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Nates to the Financal Statements (Continued)]

23. OTHER INVESTMENTS

Group

2010 2009
kM'000 RM 000

At carrying amount:
Quated investments in Malaysia 5 &4
Fund managed by a licensed foreign fund manager 1,422 1.331
1,427 1,337
Market value of quoted investments 5 5
Market value ol toreign managed fund 1,422 1,321
1,429 1,336

24. CASH AND BANK BALANCES/CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Group Company

2010 2009 2010 2009
RM'00D RM 000 RM'ODD HM'000
Deposits with licensed financial institutions C,700 45 842 4,000 142
Housing Developrmant Accounts ) 104,853 10,571 hé2 2728
Cash at benks and in hand L2111 37,4465 284 627
Cash and bank batances 152,664 49,573 4,926 3797
Less: Bank overdrafls (Nate 28] 1934) (3,117 19341 (3,117
Cash and cash egutvatents 151,730 R4, 74T 3,992 480

The Housing Develapiment Aceounts are maintained by the Group and the Company in accordance with Section
7{A] of the Housing Developeors [Control and Licensing) Act, 1946, These accounts, which consist of monies
received trom house purchasers, are for the payment ot property development expenditure inpurred. The
surplus monies, if any. will be released to the Group and the Company upon comptetion of the properly
development projects and atter alt property developmenl expenditure have been fully settled.

In accordance with the terms of the Multi-tranche |slamic Private Debt Facilities ["Tacilities™], certain portions
ot the progress billings of certain development projects are reguired to he deposited into a sinking tund

account for the purpose ol repaying outstanding obligations ot the Facilities. The Facilities have been cancelled
effective 18 Junc 2009,

SUNRISE HERHAD vaan v
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Notes o the Financ:a: Stateronis [Conlinuad)

24, CASH AND BANK BALANCES/CASH AND CASH EOUIVALENTS (CONTINUEDI
The curreacy profile of cash 2t banks and in hand is as fullows:

Group Company
2010 2009 20710 2009
Ri"000 RM'O0OC RM'OOC RMD0O0
Canadian Dollar 20,138 4,976 - -
Rirpgit Malaysia 10,409 13,544 264 R27
Pound Sterling 11,564 9,095 -
Australian Jeflar - £.378 - -
42,111 32,465 264 g27
25. SHARE CAPITAL
Group and Company
Number of Shares
2070 2009 2010 2029
'000 J(HY] RM'OND RM0O0
Autherised:
Crdinary shares of RM1.00 each:
Al begirring and end ot tinancial year 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fulfy paid:
Grdirary shares of RM1.00 sach:
A begirrirg of financial year 498,3%0 450,275 4£%5,3%0 430,275
Piivate placement of shares ) - A4 825 - 44 825
Exercise of share aptons under ES05 - 350 - 351
At end of tinancizl year 495,390 435391 595,350 495 3%

The nurmber of issued and paid-up share capital with voting rights as of financial year and are as follows:

Number of Shares

2010 2cY
‘000 00
Tata. number of ordinary shares 495,390 £953%0
Less: Number of shares he.d as freasury shaves (19 (191
Mumber of ardinary shares with voting rights 495,37 495,31

SUMRISE BERHAD russ v
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Notes ta the Financ al Statewtents {Cant nued]

26, SHARE CAPITAL |CONTINUEDI
The Sunrise Berhad ESQ% is governed by a set ot By-Laws approved by the sharehotders at an Extraordinary
General Meeting held an 28 Qctober 2003, The satient teatures of ES03 are as toltows:

lal

(b

[c]

(d)

le]

The raximum number ot new ordinary shares which may be made available under the E5U5 shatl not
exceed, in aggregate, 10% of Lhe lotat issued and paid-up capital ot the Company at any one time at any
point ot the options in the duration of the scheme provided thal:

it not more than 50% of the new ordinary shares available under the E305 should be allocated, in
aggregate, to direetors and senior management; and

lil not more than 10% of the new ordinary shares available under the E505 should be allocated to any
individual director or Eligible Parlicipant who, either individually or rollectivety through hisfher
assoniates, holds 20% or more in the issued and paid-up share capital of lhe Campany.

An Fligibte Participant who is able to participate ir the ESOS is a naturat person who at the date of otter
ix at least 18 years of age and is:

(il a conlirmed employee on the payrall of the Group or ot the Company and has served the Croup or
the Compary tor a continuous period of 1 year, where serviees have been contirmed in writing; or

(i a contirmed full-time Executive Director on the payroll ot the Company employed for a continuous
period ot at teast 1 year by Lhe Company, must be invotved in the day-to-day managernent and is nat
prohibited ar disattowed by the relevant authorilias frarm participating in the ES0S, whose specitic
entitlement under the ESOS is approved by the Company in a general meeting; or

liiil a Non-Executive Directer, appainted to the Board by the Company, is not prohibiled or disaltowed by
the retevant authorities trom participating in the E505, and whose specitic entitlemnent npder the
ESQDS is approved by the Company in a generat meeting; or

liv) under such categeries and of such criteria which the ESOS Committee may trom time to time
decide.

Under the By- Laws, the maximum allowable allotment and the maximum number ol new ardinary shares
comprised in Lhe aptions to be ottered to the Eligible Farticipants in accordance with the ES05 shall be
determined at the discretion of the ES05 Committee after taking into consideration, amangst others, the
length of service with the Group or with the Company and the performance ot the Etigible Participants,
provided that the allocation is egnitatle to the various grades of Eligible Participants. and is subject
always to the provisions of the Listing Reguirerments ot Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad ["Bursa
Securities”| or other applicable regulatory reguirements relating to such allorations.

The optien price shall be the higher of & price which retlects a discount ot not more than 10% lrom the
weighted average wiarket price ot the Company's shares as shown in the daily ofticiat list issued by Bursa
Securities lar the 5 market days iinmediately preceding the date of affer nr the par value ot the Company's

shares,

ES05 shalt be in foree for a period ot 3 vears, unless lerminated earlier or extended in accordance with
the terms ot the By Laws tor the ESOS.

SUMRISE BERHAD v v
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Notes to the Financial Stater-z2nts [Continuzal

25. SHARE CAFITAL [CONTINUEDI]

(f)

Tha

The

The new ardinary shares to he allatled upon any exercise ol aptions shall, upon allulment end issue, rank
pari passu in all respects with Ihe lhen existing issued and paid-up ordinary shares in the Coempany
except that they will not entitle the holders thereol to receive any dividends, rights, bonus issnes and any
vther distributions declared in favour of the holders of such shares lar which the entitlement date thereof
precedes the date on which the new ordinary shares are credited inlo the halders’ respeclive securities
eccounts,

ESDS was expired un 3 Febhruary 2009 end amy unexercised options were deemed lapsad,

mavements in number of sherz options granled, exercised and forfeited/lapsed pursuant to the ES05 are

as follows:

Balance Balance

Exercised as of Forfelted/ as of

Years price 1 July Granted Exercised Lapsed 30 June
RM ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘00D ‘000

2004 239 - 2.64 - 18,200 i259] (333 18,308
2005 144 - 1.73 18,308 14,483 [1,184] {1,61%9] 29,987
200& 112 - 1.73 29.587 2,593 (1,840] 17.618] 28122
007 1.15 - 349 28,122 1,862 (22.463) (F47) 8,774
2008 1.19 - 2.99 6,774 4,425 (3.233] [499) 7447
2009 1.1% - 1.44 7,467 2710 [350] 15,827) -

Uela

ils of ESDS exergised in 2009 and the fair value on exercise dates arc as tollows:

Financial year ended 30 June 2009

Average lair Number

value of of share
Exercise ofdinary options Consideration
Month of exercise price shares exercised received
kM RM ‘000 R#M'000
July 2008 1.44 1.54 10 13
Cecember 2008 119 - 1.24 1.43 20 24
January 2009 1.24 - 1.26 140 - 1.45 a0 403
350 AKZ
Less: Par value ol ordinary shares [ag0)
Share premium 92

SUNRISE BERHAD weke-v
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Notes to the F nzrcial Stater=qts [Continued)

SHARE CAPITAL ICONTINUED]

The fair value ot shere options grented wes estimeted by using e Binomiel Optior pricing model. eking irto
eccount the terms and conditicns dpon whick the options were granted. The fair velue ot shere pptions
measured et grent date end the assuniplions are as follows:

2010 2009
“stimated average fair value of share optians [RM, - 6.52
Weigliled everage share arire [RM] - 1.34
Expected volatility (%] - 53.89
Cxpectec lite lyeers) - 1
Kisk-free rete 1%) - 3.1
Expected dividend yeld [%: - 1
RESERVES
Group Company
2010 200% 2010 2009
RM'00D RM'00D RM'O00 kK009
Non-distributable:
Revaluation reserve 2,684 2,684 1,487 1,487
Shere premium 19,105 "985 19,105 18,105
Exchenge resarye 112,920] 5919 -
8,849 11,854 20,792 20,792
Distributable:
Retained sarnings 590,040 457,255 506,761 207,043
598,909 £7910% B27,553 227835

Retained earnings

in eccordence will- Lbe Finance Act 20C7, <he single sier income iax system beceme eftective trom the yeer of
ascessment 2008, Under this system, tex on & comozary's profit is a tinal lax, and dividends paid ere exempted
fromt Lax ¢ the fands cf the shereholders, Linlike the previous imputation systemn, the recipient of the dividend
wau.d no lorger he anle fo cleim eny lex credit

Companies wilhout Section 108 tex credis balance will automaticeliy move to the s.rgle tier tax system on 1
Jenuary 208, However, campenies with such lax credrs are given er irrevoceble optior to elecl far Lhe single
lier tsx system end disregerd the lax credit or to continue to use lhe tax ered'ts under Section 108 ecccurt
to frenk the peyment of cash dividends on ordinary shares for e oeriod of & yeers ending 37 Decembner 2013
a until the tex credils are frlly utilised, whichever comes first, Jrring <he trersitionel period, =ry lax paig
will nal ae added to the Section 108 account and eny ‘ex crediis atilised wili redure the tax credit belance.
All compenizs will ke in the new system or 1 Jannary 2114,

SUNMRISE BTRHAL seanv
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26,

27.

Notes o the “inzncial Staterzants [Conlinsed)

RESERVES [CONTINUED]

As ot batance sheet date, the Company has not elected ter ke irrevocable option to disregard the Section 108
tax credits. Accordingly, subject to the zgreement ot tne [n.and Revenus Board and based cn the prevailing
tax rate applicable to cividend, the Company bas sufficient Socticn 108 tax credits and tax exempt income
account to trank the paymert of dvidend out of its entire retained earrings as of 30 June 20°0.

Revatyatioh reserve
The revaluatian reserve is used to record increase znd decrease in revaluaten ot non-curreri assets, as
described in the accounting policies. The amouni arose from the revaluation of certain treehold land as
disclcsed in hote 13,

Share premium
Snzre premiutm arose trom the premiium on the issuvance 9° new ordinary shares *n current and oricr tinanciat
years,

Exchange reserve
kxchange differences arising on translatian ot toreign controlled entiies are taken o the exchange reserve
as described . the accounting policies.

TREASURY SHARES
Group and Company
Mumber of Shares

2010 20C9 2010 2009

'‘onn ‘aca RM'DDD RMOCu
At beginning arc end of Hnancial year {191 117] {311 [31)
The mandate for share buy- back was obtained from :he shareholders of the Convpany on 17 tune 2005 and

renewed on 25 Dctober 2007 grantirg the directors of the Company the authority to buy back shares in the
Company Up to 10% of the existing issued and paid-up share capital. 1he directors ot the Company are
committed to enhancing Lhe valus ot {1« Ccmpary to Xs shareholders and believe that the share buy-ozck
czr be appiied in tne Lest interest of the Compary and itz shareholders.

SUNMR'SE BERHAD v
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Notes o the Financ'a. Statemszs-ts [Contindad)

27. TREASURY SHARES [CONTINUED]
In 2304, the Company houghl back 17,222,000 ot its issued ordrary shares frem the open market at price
ranging lram RM1.14 lo RM1.79 per shara for RM28, 183,018, with irternally genersated funde, The cumulative
shares bought back are held as treasury snares. Desails of tn2 shares bought bacs in 2004 are as lollows:

Share Price Number of Total

Month Lowest Highest Average Shares Consideraticn
RM RM RM ‘000 RM'000

July 2305 1.48 1.48 1.48 1 1
August 2005 1.53 1.53 1.53 | 77
Septembar 2305 1.43 1.47 1.45 779 1,059
Jctober 2005 1.44 1.44 1.44 5 H]
Movermbar 2I05 1.14 1.39 1.34 1514 2014
Oecember 2005 1.14 1.27 1.19 B%5 1,049
January 2004 1.19 1.19 1.19 0 108
February 2004 1.58 1.70 1.65 47144 7832
March 2004 1.69 1.78 1.73 8,785 14,170
April Z00é 1.78 1.79 1.79 yay 141
17,252 28,183

Distribution ot treasury sharas in 2008 [17,233) [28,152)
1% 31

The balarce of the treasury shares as ot 30 June 7010 is availabie “or distribulion as shara dvdends,

SUNRSE BERHAD 75y
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Nates to the Financial Slaiemerts [Continuan

28. BORROWINGS

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
RM 000 RMO00 RM'DO0 EM007
Short-term horrowings
Seruec:
Revolving credit 7,000 7,000
Mnzecured:
Ban« averdrafts |Note 24)] 4 3117 924 3,117
Revalving credit 73,125 97,300 7,125 97,200
[MTh - 200,040 - 200,000
81,059 300,017 81,059 320117
Long-term borrowings
Secured:
Term loans 283,600 183,600 124,000 26,000
Ban« overdrafts 9,955 9828 - -
Revolving credit 46,000 - -
Unsecured:
[MTN 100,000 100,000
439,054 193,426 226,000 26,100
Total borrowings
azcured:
Revalying credit 53,000 - 7.000 -
Term loars 283,600 183,400 126,000 26,000
Bank cverdralts 9,954 9828 - -
346,556 193,424 133,000 28,000
Unsecured:
IMTHN 100,000 200,000 100,000 200,000
Bank cverdrafts 34 3117 234 ANy
Sevolving cred:d 73,125 97,000 73,1258 g7.C00
174,059 3006117 174,009 ¥
Total 520,615 493,543 307,059 325,117
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Notes to trz Feorannial Statements Continued]

28. BORROWINGS [CONTINUED|
The weighted average eitective rterest rates/profit rates during the tinancial year lor tne berrawings are as

faliows:
Group Campany
2010 22079 2010 200
% %a % %
Bank cverdrafts &8 75 5.8 &4
Multi-tranche Islamizc P:ivate Debt
Facilit'es:

MUNIF/IMTN - 37 - 3.7
TMTN 4.9 5.9 4.9 5.9
Term loans £.1 6.7 4,2 2.9
Revalvng credit &3 4.3 43 4.3

Ia)

The unsecured IMTN are repayable as lollows:
Group and Cempany

2010 2009
RM™C00 RM000
Firanc'al year ending 30 _une:

2310 - 200.000
2311 - -
202 - -

213 100.000
100,000 200.000

Un * Sepiember 2005, <he Company chiained appraval trom Securities Commission for an 1siamic Megium
Terr. Note Programme ["TMTN Programme”] with the aggregate nan-inal value of up te RM130 milion.
The “acility amount was subsequertly upsized o RMAOD mii.lion on 18 Decernber 2007, The tenure ot IMTN
Programme 5 up to 10 years Irem the date o° the tirst issue under the IMTN Fragramme where the first
issuance was made on 25 Juty 20G6. |he IMTN Las Leen assigned an irdicative ratirg ot A+y by Malaysian
Rating Carporation Berhad.

On 24 July 2009, ke Company relinanced the tirst tranche at AM100 miliion "MTN thruugh « term loan,
The secord tranche ot RM7O0 mnlion has been ~zpaid on 1% Aoril 2010,

Curing the tinancia. year, the Company issued the th'rd trarche of RM10E millian “MTN o mature on 18
Zepraary 2013. The IMTN bear protit at the rate of £9% per arnum. The proceeds arising lrom the
issuarce of the IMTN have aeen trlly utilised for working capital purpeses.

SUNRISE BERHAD wumn-v
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Nates "o the Financ'a: Siatemerts (Contirced)

28, BORROWINGS [CONTINUED]

lb! ‘The Group bas hans overdrafl amounling to RM3 954000 [RM$,828,B1C in 2007]. ohtained rom 3 licensed
bank. The bank overdraft is repayabte in 12 consecutives quarlerty repayment ot RMB40,000 tram the da‘e
al canmencement of projects trom the said licensed hank.

ic] As of 30 June 2014, he Group and :he Comnpany have bank overdrafts and credit facilities ather than
IMTN totaling Lo RMBTH. 143,000 (RM330,600,000 in 2029] obtained from various banks, of whizlk unutilised
tacililies amounting to RM 148,892,000 [RM23,725,00C in 2009,

(] Tle lerin loans, hank overdratts and revalvirg tredits are secured oy a tegal charge over certain treetolc,
leasehold lands and develapment experditires of certain subsidiary companies, The long lerm portior al
the term loans anc revolving credit are repayable as tollows:

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2003
RM 000 RM'0DI RM’000 K003
Financial year ending 30 June:
212 18,000 9,000 - -
2013 305,400 159,504 124,000 26,000
24 4,000 12000 -
2015 - 3000 -
329,400 183,600 124,000 24,108
29. LGNG-TERM LIABILITIES
Group Company
2010 200% 2010 2009
RM'00Q RM'Jo0 RM'OOD RMT0OD
Amounl payahle ta minarity shareha’der 30,952 30,952 -
Amounl payah.e ‘o= scguisition of land - Z9.00C - -
Provision tor staff loyalty program 8,090 5,918 5,252 3,527
13,042 45,B4E 5,252 3,527

Amount payable to minority sharehalder arase trom advances given oy minorily shaceheliers of a subsidiary
campany for the acguisition ot a pece of land. Based on a joint venture agreemen;, a subsidiary company ol
the Company and the minerily shareholder will jointly develep the piece ol larc. The amount is Lr.securzo,
inerest-free 2nd is expected to be repald upon the completion of lhe developmenl project on the land.

SUNAISE BERHAD wo.: v
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Motes to the Financial Statements (Cantinued]

LONG-TERM LIAEILITIES (CONTINUEOG}

Amount payable tor acquisition ot land represents amount accrued tor land cost vontributed by joint venture
partners where power of allorney has been granted o the Group. The amount is unsecured, interest-free and

will be paid upon complelion ol the relevant development projects.

Frovision for slaff loyalty program reflects prowvision made for payments to existing employees that would
become payable when stalt tultils the terms and conditions in the scheme. The provisions have been made on
the assumplion that all relevant statl will complete their 7 years term and achiave cerlain set performance
target and therafore their benefits will vest entirely. No actuarial valuation has been perlormed as, in the
opinion ol the directors, it would involve expenses out ol proportion to the value ot the Group.

HIRE-PURCHASE PAYABLE

Group and Company

2010 200¢%

RM'000 RM 000
Total outstanding 131
l.ess: Interest in suspense 3
Prinripal oulstanding 118
Less: Amount due within 12 months 153)
Nan- corrent portion (.13

The non-current portion ot the hire-purchases payable is as lollows:

Group and Company

2010 200%
RM'000 RM OO0
Financial years ending 30 June:
mz2 52 -
202 13
45 -

The interest rate implicit in thase hire- purthase obligations of the Group and the Company is 3.45% per

annum [Nil in 2009).

-124 -
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Notes to the Financial Slatements [Contirued]

J1. TRADE PAYABLES, DTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

Broup Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
RM'000 RM'DO0 RM'000 RM OGO
Trade payables 7.257 A1,113 343 198
Retentian sum payable 5,508 92,705 1,352 1364
72,845 123,817 1,715 1,524

Trade payables camprise mainly amount payable to contracters and consultants for property development
projects, The credit period granted to the Group ranges from 30 to 120 days (30 to 120 days in 20091,

Other payables and accrued expenses cunsist of;

Groun Company

2010 2009 2010 209

RM'000 RM'0DA RM'000 R '000

Frogress billings 150,375 36,038 - -
Accrued expenzes 7,084 17,134 2,374 4,781
Uther payahies 24,012 10,840 2,334 713
Advances from customers 1,733 5,034 - -
183,204 72.3%6 4,708 7.494

Inctuded in other payables ot the Gronp in 2010 is an amount of RM17,000.000 which represents balance
consideration in relation to the acquisition of land,

Included in accrued expensas of the Group is an amount of RMNiL [RM1,675,0080 in 2009} which represenis
halance consideration in relation to the acquisition of tand.

The currency profile of other payables is as foltows:

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
RM'000 RM 000 RM'000 RM 00
Ringgit Malaysia 24,012 10,6462 2,334 713
Auctralian Dallar - 7d - -
24,012 10,640 2,334 713

SUMNRISE BERHAD ravs v
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Notes o the ~inzrcial Slelerens [Continied)

PROVISICN FOR LIABILITIES

Group Company

2010 2009 2010 2009

RM'000 IMDA0 RM'00D RM OOC

At beginping nf financial year 45,740 &6,L24 13,213 2,978
Additions 23,675 35,B4% - 10,544
Provision ro longer reguired 15,205] 11,261: [1,7101 -
Utilized {20,145] (15,292, (5,922] [129]
At end of financial year 64,065 45,740 5,581 13,713

Provisian far liahilitfes comprise provisien tor maintanance cos:s for the benefit ot property purchasers.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Business segments

For management purposes, the Croup is crganised into besiness unils based on their producls and servizes

and h=s lhree repaiable segments as fo.lows:

. Property development segmert is —n Lhe husiness of constructing and developing residential and
commercial properties. The repertable seginent has been formed by aggregating the nroperty corstruction
and development segmerts, which are regarded by managemert tu exhik't similar cconcmic

characteristies.

I~ #roperty investment seymenl is n the business ot investment in land and buildings tor ‘rvestment

petenlial are rentzl income in tuture.

lll. Others segrents is in the business of proserly management and interior design and consu’tancy.

Inlormation on tne Group's opetalicns by seagraphical seome’s has been provided by location ot assets.

The inter-segment transactions were conducted at -market value. Inter-segment revenue mainly camprise
construction works performed by a wholly- owned suasidizry company.

- 126 -
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Notes to “7e Firanzial Statements [Cortimed]

33. SEGMENT INFORMATION |CONTINUED)
Business segments |Contlnued)

Property Property

Group developraent Investment Others Ellmlinatlans Cansolidated
2010 RM'000 RM'ODD RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Revenue
External cales 073,784 kKR 1.19 13,090 - 590,742
Inler segmenl sales 247,154 24 27 1247,505) -
Tolal revenye 840,940 5,190 13,117 1267,505) 590,742
Results
Segment results £92,923 287 110,923] {299,731 182,554
Inlerest income 2,648
Pralil from aoerations 185,204
Finarce wnsts |5,754]
Share cf results of associated company 113
Share cf results of jointly

centralied entities 1,441
Profit before Yax 180,876
Incomie tax expense 147,893]
Net proft for the financial year 132,983
Assets
Segman| assets 1,634,904 334,403 48,191 - 1,837,698
Lnalincated corscrate assals -

current and deferred tax ascets 40,341
Interests in associated cnmipany

and joint.y controded enfties ﬂ
Consolidated lotal assels 1,974,592
Liabitities
Segment lianilities (874,553) [1,814) (3,524) - 1979,891|
Unallecaied tiabilities -

tax lishiiities {4331
Consclidated lotal batililies |aan, 324
Other Information
Capital expenditure 485 972 5,593 - 7,050
Depreciation 2,644 asz &d - 3,579
MNon- cash expenses atber than

depreciatiun 25,577 955 a3 - 24,930

SUNRISE BERHAD ress-v
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Notes to the Firancial Statemerts [Coriinued]

33, SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUEDI

Bustness segments [Continued)

Property - Property

Group development  investment Others Eliminations Consolidated
200% RM'DOD RM'0O00 RM"000 RM'O000 RM'O0D
Revenue
External sales 788,430 3,202 12.03h : 803,927
Intar-sagmant salas 615,024 774 34 (613,833]
Total ravanua 1,402,659 4,027 12,0149 (415,833] 803,927
Resulis
Sagment results 209,282 20,450 1,124 (23,122 207,734
Intarast incoma 3.7
Profit Irom operations 210,911
Financa costs (4,363
Shara ot rasults of associated companies nal
Share of results of jainkly

contratlad antity (773)
Frofit betore tax 205,740
Income tax expenze 149,412]
Mat protit tor tha tinancisl year 156,348
Assets
Sagment assets 1,374 947 276,144 b4 745 ¥, 705,858
Lnallpcated corporata assats -

current and delerrad tax ascats 34,389
Interests in associated companias

and jointly controlled entity 8,860
Consolidated total assets 1,829,107
Liahilities
Sagment Labilities (844,920 11,4941 {2,940 1851.3641
Unallocatad liabilitias -

tax liahilities (2,305}
Consolidatad total liabilities (B53.471]
Other Infarmatten
Capital axpanditura 8,328 94,1467 25,458 127,953
Dapreciatien 2,514 438 &07 - 3,759
Non- cash axpenses cther than

dapraciation 40,261 239 - 40,500
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Notes to the Finarcizl S.atements [Continned]

33. SEGMENT INFGRMATION ICONTINUED)
Geographic sagments

Malaysia Canada Dthers Eliminatians Consalifated
2010 207 2010 2009 2010 200 20110 21 2010 anne
RH'G00 RMTOD RM'D0D RMCo0 RMOO0 EM'000 RI'GED AMIN AM' 00D R0
Seqrent
revenue B38 247  1.419.753 - - (247,808]  1%15,333] 590,742 803927
Segrert
assets 1678816 1547527 145,286 1Z1E4S 13,594 14 785 - 1,837,698 1,705,558
Seqmert
Jabilities IB78.801)  ([849.033] [1,053] [2.193) 137 1330] - |879,891)  [8R1,344)

The Company has identitied its operating segments based on the internel reports that are reviewesd and used
by the Boerd of Directors [chief operaling decisicn makers] in assessing performence end determining the

alloeation ot resources,

34, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial Risk Management Qbjectives and Poliries

The pperations ot the Group ere subject to a variety of financial risks, including foreign currency rsk, interest
rete risk, credit risk, liguidity risk end cash ttow risk. |he Group hes taken meesures to minimise its exposure
lo risks andfor costs associeted with the tinencing, investing and opereting ectivities ot the Group.

[il Foreign currency risk

The Group operetes internationally end is exposed to various currencies, mainly United States Doller,
Canadan Dollar, Sterling Pound end Austrslian Dollar. Moreign currency denominated essets and
liabilities together with expacted cesh tlows trom investment and property transections give rise io

toreign exchange exposures,

Tlie Group maintains a natural hedge, whenever possible, by borrowing in the currency ot the country in
which the property or investment is located or by borrewing in currencies that match the lulnre revenue

stream ta be generated from its investments.

Fareign exchenge exposures in trensectional currencies other than functional currencies of the aperating

entities are kept io an acceptable tevel

SUNRISE BERHAD 5z v
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Notes tg the Financtal Stalements Contiued)

34, FINANCGIAL INSTRUMENTS {CONTINUEDL

(il

(il

(iii}

(iv]

]

Forelgn currency risk |Cantinued)
The nel unhedged linancial assets al the Group Ihal are nol denominated in Their lunclional ¢nrrencies
are as lollows:

Functional currency af

Sroup Sterling Pound
2010 2009
RM'DDO Rmaoo
Uniled Stetes Oollar 1,423 1,31

Interest rate risk
The firoup is expased lo interesl rale risk Ihrough the impacl ol rele changes on inlerest bearing
borrowings. Inleresl rales al horrowings are disclosed in Nate 28.

Profil rate ol IMTN and interest rate of hire-purchase payable, which are fixed at Ihe inceplian of
respeclive arrangemmenl, are disclosed in Motes 2B and 30 resperctively.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed lo credit risk mainly from trede and alher receivables. The Group extends credil
to its cuslomers based dpan carelul evaluation ol the customer's linancial condition and credil histary.
The Group aiso ensures a large number ol cuslomers so as to limit high credil concenlration in a
cuslamer or customers Irom a perticular markel.

The maximum credil exposure of I1he Group, wilhout laking inlo eccount the fair value ¢l any collateral,
is represented by carrying amounls of Ihe Irade and olher receivables as showh an the balance sheels.

Ligquidity risk

The Group praclises prudent liguidity risk menagement to minimise lhe mismatch of financial assels and
liabililiez and to maintain solficient credil facilities lor contingent lunding requirement ol working
capital.

Cash flow risk
The Group ravisws 15 cash llow position reqularly to manage ils exposura lo lluctuations in lnture cash
flows associated with ils monelary financisl instrumeni s.

SUNR:SE BERHAD #ias-v
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Notes to the Financial Ststerents [Continued)

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED!
Falr Values of Financial Assets and Liabilities
The carrying anounf ol financial assets and liabilites approximate their lair values hecause of the short
matnrity pe-iod for fhese insframents excepl Tor the following:

2010 2009
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Yalue Amount Value
RM'000 RM'00D R MO0 MU0
Group
Financial Liakilities
Term loans [Mote 28I 283,600 2h) 043 183,400 148,778
Hire-purchase payabie (Mote 30] 118 108 -
Company
Financial Liabilities
Term loans [Ngie 28! 124,000 114,117 24,000 23,200
Hire- parchase payakle iMNote 20) 118 108 - -

Term loans and hire-purchase payahle
The fair values of term loans and hire- purchase payvable are esiimated using discounted cash flow analysis
based or cnrrent financing rates for simitar type of fnancing arrangemant,

35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES - UNSECURED

Group Company

2010 009 2010 009

RM'000 RM'OO0 RM 000 R»°000

Guaranices given to service providers 5635 13,332 5,635 13,332
Corporate guarantee given to supsidiary

colipanies for:
Ba.ance paymentf 'r respecl of lard acouisition - - 20,000 20,00C
Bank.rg (arilities - - 60,000 -

SUNRISE ZERHAD tanf v
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Notes to the F nancial Stater~ants [Continued]

36. COMMITMENTS
As ot 30 June 2010, the Group has the following:
lil  Capital commitments

Group Company
2010 2007 2019 2009
RM'D00 RM 000 RM'0DO RM'DO0
Amount authorised and contracted for
in respecl of:
Cemmitment tawards a joinf venture
for a development project 1,000 1,000 -
Commitment towards balance
payment for acquisition of land 71,335 20,973 51,335
72,335 21,973 51,335

[ii}) Lease commitments in respect of rental of premises
Future minimum lease

payments
Group

2010 2009

RM'0O00 RM™000

Within 1 year 6,9%4 6,578
Within 7 - 5 years 23,858 79,539
After § years - 1,354
30,854 37,821

SUNRISE BERHAD -a= ¢
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Notes 1o the Financial Slatements [Continued)

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
With subsidiary companies:

Campany

2010 Z00%
RM'000 RM o0

interest receivahte
Lucky Bright Star.Sdn. Bhd. (1,407} (1,245]
Sunrise Alliance Sdn. Bhd. ' (1,044 (18]
New Plangt Trading Sdn. Bhd. (58] (444]
Ikarat Duta Sdn. Bhd. [480( (474]
Aurora Tawer st KLCC Sdn. Bhd. (408] {338]
Laser Tower Sdn. Bhd. (3901 (344)
Summer Lodge Sdn. Bhd. |as9| (771
Sunrise Pioneer Sdn. Bhd. (324] [#a8]
Sunrise KHP Sdn. Bhd. (289l (ol
Solid Perfarmance Sdn. Bhd. |287] |242]
Sunrise Mersing Sdn. Bhd. 1182] [143]
Astan Star Sdr. Bhd. (124] 1295
Milik Harta Sdn. Ahd. (113) (921
Lembah Suria Sdn. Bhd. |95] [85]
Prinsip Eramaju Sdn. Bhd. (58] (55]
Sunrise Dscar Sdn. Bhd. (1)) (78]
Sunrise Sovereign Sdn. Bnd. |20] [18]
Sunrise Benchmark Sdn. Bhd. 17 [38]
Sun Yictory Sdn. Bhd, 1171 (101
Sunrise Landmark 3dn. Bhd. (1 (10]
Sunrise Paradigm Sdn. Bhd, (9l 11l
Ascot Assets Sdn. Bhd, (8l noz]
SCM Property Services Sdn. Bhd. 12} (2]
Cekap Kawal Sdn. Bhd. ] [4]
15,231) [4.487]

SUMPISE BERHAD »eeiv
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Notes to ~he Financial Statzments Continued]

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS {CONTINUEQ)

With subsidiary companies [Continued]:

Company
2010 2909
RM'DDD R0
Interest payable
Sunrise Quality Sdn. Bhd. 1,149 537
Sunrize Innovations Sdn. Bhd. 1,008 432
Sunrise Century Sdn. Bhd. S5&b a3
Sunrise Dverseas Corporation Sdn Bhd. 4B3 420
Sunrizse KI{P Sdn. Ehd. 227 179
Sunrise Region Sdn. Bhd. 140 "
Astan Star Sdn. Bhd. 35
Interior Design One Sdn. Bhd. 29 25
Summer Lodge S5dn. Bhd. 15
Sunrise Millennium 5dn. Bhd. ¢ a
Ascot Assets Sdn. Bhd. 5
Sunrise Project Services 5dn. Bhd. 1 1
Cekep Kewal Sdn. Bhd. 1
3,688 2,498
Dividend receivable
Suntise Quality Sdi. Bhd, (78,0D0] (10,240
Sunrise Alliance Sdn. Bhd. t70,000) -
Sun Yictory Sdn. Bhd. (45,0D0]
Sunrise Innovations Sdn, Bhl {&41,000] -
Ascot Assets Sdn. Bhd, 10,0001 (4.0001
Acton Star Sdn. Bhd. (14,000]
Sunrise Overseas Corporation Sdn Bhd, {8,000] .
Sunrise Century Sdn. Bhd. {2,000] [9,250]
Sunrise Ragion Sdn. Bhd. (2,000
(310,000 (23,6100
Rental receivablie - e
Sunrise Innovetions Sdn. Bhd. 343
Lucky Bright Star Sdn. Bhd. {22B( .
Sun Victory Sdn. Bhd. {23} 01941
{5941 [194]

3
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Notes tc tne Financizl Statemenis [Cortinued)

37, RELATED FPARTY TRANSACTIONS |CONTINUED)
With sabsidiary comananies (Continued].

Company
2010 2209
RM'GO0 RMa00
Rental payahle
Sun Victory Sdr. Bhd. 264 671
Sui+se Region Sdn. Bhd. 113
Milile Harta Sedn, Bard. g
3aa 67
Security services payable
Cekap Kawal Sor. Bhd. - 34
Progress billings payable
Sunise Innovafions Sdn. Shd. - 8,500
Witn relzted parties:
Group
Transactions Relationship 2019 2009
RM 000 R 000
Sale of praperty fa Titan Yeld A company in which Date' Lim Kim Huat
Sdn. Bhd. is a subsfaniial sharaholder - 5,594
Sale of properly Lo Dazzling Spirit A company in which Date’ Lim Kim Huaf
Sdn. Bhd. and his family members are
beneficiaries - 747
Sale of property to Widefech (M] Bhd. A corpany in which Balo’ Lim Kim Huat
is & subsfaniial direcior 322
Szle of property to Sylvia Chong Sim Sylvia Chong Sim Mee is a direcfor of a
Mea and Terese Chin Ngeuk Yin subsidiary 2,048
Advertis'ng fee payable to The Zdgs A campany in which Datuk Tang Aooi
Commun cafivn Sdn. Bhd. Ong has inditecl imieresl g2 204

SUNRISE BERBAD 7easv
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Notes t= the Financial Staiements [Continuen)

38. SIGNIFICANT EYENTS DURtNG THE FINANCIAL YEAR

fil

lii}

liiil

1ivl

an 15 July 2009, the Company announced the dissclution of its wholty cwned toreign subsidiamy, Sunrize
Sovere.gr Lt puirsuant to section 197 ot the Brilish Virgin |slands Business Compenies Act, 2004. The
d'seotution was completed on 24 August 2007,

On 22 January 2010, the Cempany annanncsd that the mambers’ voluatary winding up of itz essocieted
compeny, CLO Network Sdn. Bho. wes cempleted on 22 Lenuery 2010.

On 26 Jenuary 2210, the Comgany announced that it hed entered :nto a joint venture with Sime Derby
Property Berhad ["S0PB"] to underte<e the ecquisiticn end development ot the lends held under GRN
75690 for Lot 78374, GRN 74497 tor | ot No. 78377 and H.S.[D) 248714 for PT 34943, all in Mukim of
Damancsera, District of Peteling measaring in area approximatey 84 785 squere metras or F12,417 squere
feet I"Land™; tqrough = joint venture vehicle, 5ime Derby Surrise Devetopment Sdn. Bnd. [T53507]
[formerty known as Baywoad Avenue Sdn. Bhd.| ["Jcoint Ventnre”™], For the purpose of carrying out the
Joint Venture, the Eompeny haa on the same date executed a suhscription and sharelivlders’ egrecment
7SS4 with SOPE and SBS0. Uraer the Joirt Venture, the Company and SEPB will eech has 50% equity
irterest in SOSD0,

Simultareocus with ihe execition ot the S5A, 5050 ned entered into e sele end purchese egreement
1"SPA’) with. Highlands & Lowlands Berhiad as the registered cwrer and Sime Oarby Augsburg [M] Sdn,
Bhd, ltorme-.y known es Augsburyg [M] Sdn. Bhd.) as the bereficial owner ol Lhe Lands, to acquire the
Lands at a purchase price of RW1°4,077,158 or such lesser emount which shel. be edjusted downward
due to easement grented to Tenaga Masianal Rerbad ["TNB™) over a sectian ot the | ands ["Prrchase
Price”]. Accordingly, the Compeny's share of the Purchase Price amounted to IME7, 038579 or such
lesser amuount after adjustment tor the said easement granted ta ThE.

Cr 1 July 2210, Lhe Company ennounced the proposed members' voluntery liguidetion .selvent] of its
toreign suosidiary, East Urpan Properties Pty. Ltd. ["EUP"], ettect've 30 Jizne 2010 pursuant to section 491
ot the Austraiien Corporetions Act 20071, The members’ voluntary liguidation [solvert] has rot been
comgleted et the erd of the rinarcie. yeer

SUNRISE BERHAD e v



APPENDIX VI

FURTHER INFORMATION

1. RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Qur Directors have seen and approved this Circular and they collectively and individually accept
full responsibility for the accuracy of the information in this Circular. They cenfirm, after making
all reasonable enguiries, that to the best of their knowledge and belief, there are no faise or
misteading statements or other facts which, if omitted, would make any statement in this Circular
false or misleading.

Information on the Sunrise Group in this Circular has been obtained from publicly available
sources and/or the management of Sunrise. The responsibility of our Directors with respect to
such information is limited to ensuring that such information has been accurately reproduced in
this Circular.

2 WRITTEN CONSENT AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
21 cCImMB

CIMB has given and have not subsequently withdrawn its writlen censent to include its
name and all references thereto in this Circular in the form and context in which they
appear.

CIMB has been appointed as the Adviser to our Company for the Proposals.

CIMB and its related and associated companies ("CIMB Group”) form a diversified
financial group and are engaged in a wide range of investment and commercial banking,
brokerage, securities trading, asset and funds management and credit transaction
service businesses. CIMB Group engage in transactions with and perform services for
our Group andfor our affiliates in the ordinary course of business and/or have engaged,
and in the future may engage, in private banking, commercial banking and investment
banking and other services in the ordinary course of business with our Group. CIMB is of
the opinion that the aforementioned services, entered into in the ordinary course of
business with our Group, are not significant to give rise to a conflict of interest situation in
its capacity as the Adviser for the Proposals.

In addition, in the ordinary course of business, any member of the CIMB Group may at
any time offer or provide its services to engage in any transactions (on its own account
or otherwise) with any member of our Group andfor our affiliates, hold long or short
positions, and may trade or otherwise effect transactions on its own account or the
account of its customers in debt or equity securities of our Group as well as the Sunrise
Group. This is a result of the businesses of CIMB Group generally acling independent of
each other, and accordingly there may be situations where parts of the CIMB Group
and/or its customers now have or in the futurs, may have interest or take actions that
may conflict with the interest of our Group.

Save as disclosed above, CIMB is not aware of any possible conflict of interest which
exists or is fikely to exist in its capacity as the Adviser to our Company for the Proposals.
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2.2

Ernst & Young

Ermst & Young has given ard has not subsequently withdrawn its written consent to lhe
tollowing:

(i) inclusion, in the torm and conlext which it appaars in this Circular, of its
Reporting Accountants' Latter; and

{ii} references lo Ernst & Young included in this Gircular in the form and context in
which they appear.

Ernst & Young is not aware of any possible conflict of interest which exists or is likely to
exist in its capacity as the Reporting Accountants to our Gompany in relation to the Offer,

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Except as disclosed below, during the 2 years preceding the LPD, neither we nor any ot our
subsidiaries (except for Projak Usahasama Transit Ringan Automatik Sdrr Bhd ("PUTRA") for
which we do not have any recard on the material conlracts within Ihe 2 years preceding the LPD
as liquidators have been appointed for PUTRA and they discharge their duties independently of
our Group) has entered into any material contracts {not being contracts entered into In the
ordinary course ot business).

{i)

{ii)

(iii)

Sale and purchase agreement dated 31 December 2008 between UEM Land, Cyberview
Sdn Bhd and Setiza Haruman Sdn Bhd ("Setia Haruman™} for the acquisition by UEM
Land from Selia Haruman of approximately 98.037 acres of freehold land identified as
P.T. Nos. 43217 to 43221 held under Title Nos. H.5.(D} 28911 to 28915 {formerly
described as Blocks 20, 21, 22, 23 and 24) situated in the Mukim of Dengkil, District of
Sepang, Selangor Darwl Ehsan tor a cash consideration of RM102,481,801. The
agreement was completed on 30 April 2010.

Supplemental subscription and joint vanture agreement dated 13 July 2009 between
UEM Land, Nusajaya Consalidated Sdn Bhd ("Nusajaya Consclidated”) and United
Malayan Land Bhd (*UM Land"} for the variation of certain terms of the subseription and
joint venture agreement dated 14 October 2008 between UEM Land, Nusajaya
Consclidated and UM Land relating to the subscription by UM Land of 2 new ordinary
shares of RM1.00 azach in Nusajaya Consclidated for a cash consideration of RM2.00,
which upon completion, UEM {and and UM Land wil hold 50:50 equity interest in
Nusajaya Consolidated. The paid-up capital of Nusajaya Consolidated shail be increased
upon the exercise ot option pursuant to the option to purchase agreement entared into
between UEM Land. BND and Nusajaya Gonsolidated as referred to in item {jil) below.

Supplemental option to purchase agreemenl dated 13 July 2009 between UEM Land,
BND and Nusajaya Consolidated for the variation of certain terms of the agreement
dated 14 October 2008 between UEM Land, BND and Nusajaya Consolidated for the
option to purchase 2 pieces of land in Puteri Harbour, Nusajaya, Johor Darul Takzim,
with a total area measuring.approximately 8.8 acras for cash consideration at an opticn
price of RM67,154,274 axercisable within 6 months from the date of the agreement. This
agreement provided for the exchange of 1 ot the 2 pieces of land with an adjacent piece
of land resulting in the option for the 2 pieces of land measuring approximately £.9 acras
for cash consideration at an cption prica of RM87,841,216.20 expiring on 31 December
2008. Nusajaya Consolidated exercised tha option to purchase 1 ot the 2 pieces of land
on 10 November 2009. On 21 December 2009, UEM land, BND and Nusajzya
Consolidated have mutually agreed to extend the expiry date for the option in respect of
the other piece ot land to 31 December 2010
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(iv)

(v}

(vi}

{vil}

{wiii)

(i}

{x)

xi)

{xii)

Joint venture and shareholders' agreement dated 17 September 200¢ between our
Company and Malaysiar Bistechnology Comoration Sdn Bhd {(*BiotechCorp™ for the
setting-up of a joint venture company {(*JV"} to participate in the development of a
biotechnology park. subscribe for securities and regulate the relationship between them
as shareholders of the JV. The agreement was completed on 16 November 2008,

Sale and purchase agreement dated ¥ November 2008 between UEM Land, BND and
Themed Attractions and Resorts Sdn Bhd for the disposal of 2 parcels of land in Puteri
Harbour, Nusajaya, Jehor Darul Takzim with a total area measuring approximately 4.221
acres for a cash consideration of RM26,661,440.

Land purchase agreement dated 18 November 2008 ("LPA™ between UEM Land,
Nusajaya Heights Sdn Bhd and Malaysian Bio-XCell Sdn Bhd ("Bio-XCell”), the JV
formed with BiotechCorp as set out in item (iv) above, for the disposal of a parcel of [and
measuring approximately 27.74 acres in Southern Industrial and Logistics Clusters,
Musajaya, Johor Darul Takzim for a consideration of RM16,160,214 together with
infrastructure costs of RM15,257,000 and the grant of an option te Bio-ACell to purchase
additional land measuring appreximately 33.24 acres within 2 years from the date of the
LPA. Tha option was exercised by Bio-XCall on 12 November 2010.

Sale and purchase agreement dated 19 November 2009 between UEM Land, BNG and
Nusajaya Consoclidated for the disposal of a parcel of land measuring approximately
2.204 acres in Puteri Harbour, Nusajaya, Johor Darul Takzim for a cash consideration of
RM16,318,610 pursuant to the exercise of the option to purchase by Nusajaya
Consolidated. The agreement was completed on 18 February 2010.

Settiement arrangement between BND and UEMG via letter dated 31 December 2009,
where BND had agreed to pay the Indebted Sum (as defined in item (ix) below) with
proceeds to be raised from the Rights Issue.

Set-off arrangement between our Company and UEMG via letter dated 12 January 2010
for the amount owing by BND to UEMG of RM832,979,864 pursuant fo the term Joan
agreement entered into between UEMG and BND dated & August 2005 ("Indebted
Sum’), by way of set-off against the portion of UEMG’s subscription amount under the
Rights Issue.

Settlernent agreement between UEM lLand and Perbadanan Kemajuan Negeri Perak
dated 10 February 2010 for the resolution of issues arising from the development
agreement dated 20 September 1997 and its supplemental dated 27 Septernber 2000
between Renong Berhad (now known as UEM Land) ang Perbadanan Kemajuan Negeri
Perak, pursuant to which, approximately 2,470.24 acres of tand in the Mukim of Batang
Padang, Daerah Batang Padang, Perak Darul Ridzuan will be granted and registered in
UEM Land's and/or its subsidiary’s name.

Underwriting agreement between our Company, CIMB and Maybank Investment Bank
Berhad (“MIBB") dated 22 March 2010 for CIMB and MIEBE ‘o subscribe for up to
277,561,600 ULHB Shares (*Underwritten Shares”) which shall not have been validly
accepted or subscribed for by the entitled shareholders and s renouncees
("Unsubscribed Shares”} pursuant 1o the Rights Issue. As a consideration of CIME and
MIBB agreeing to subscribe for the Unsubscribed Shares, our Company agreed to pay to
CIMB and MIBB underwriting commission of up to RM3,330,739.20 or 1.5% of the totat
issue price of the Underwritten Shares.

Share sale agreement dated 28 April 2010 between our Company and PLUS
Expressways Berhad {“PLUS") for the sale by cur Company of our entire stake in Touch
‘N Go Sdn. Bhd. (“TnG"} amounting to 3,334,000 orinary shares of RM1.00 each in
TnG (representing 20% equity interests} to PLUS for a cash consideration of
RMA33,406.680. The agreement was completed on 11 June 2010.



(xiil)

{xiv)

Deed of novation dated 4 November 2010 between UEM Land, Limitless Holdings Pte
Ltd (“Limitless") Ardent Heights Sdn Bhd ("AHSB") {a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Bandar Raya Developments Berhad)} and Haute Property Sdn Bhd {"HPSB"), wheneby,
with affect from the comgpletion date ot the share sale agreement between Limitless and
AHSB, the entire rights, title, interest, benefits and liabilities of Limitless arising from the
subscription and shareholders agreement dated 18 December 2007 between UEM Land,
Limitiess and HPSB (“Sharaholdars Agreament”) are transferred to and vested in
AHSE and AHSB will assume all the obligations of Limitless in, under and arising trom
the Shareholders Agreement in consideration of UEM Land and HPSEB having agreed to
release and discharge Limitless from all claims, demands and liabilities whatsoever in
relation to or arising from the Shareholders Agreement.

Supplemental subscription and shareholders agreement dated 4 November 2610
between UEM Land, AHSE and HPSB to supplement the Shareholders Agreement as
defined in item (xiii) above and to reguiate the relationship between UEM Land and
AHSB as the sharcholders of HPSB, following the cessation ot Limitless as a
shareholder of HPSB upon completion of the share sale agreement between Limitless
and AHSB, whereby the proportionate shareholding will be based on the ratio of 60:40 to
AHSB and UEM Land respectively. UEM Land and AHSB shall on a need hasis,
contribute to the working capital ot HPSB in proportion to their shareholdings.

Supplemental development agreement dated 4 November 2010 between UEM Land,
BND and HPSB to supplement the development agreement (High End Waterfront
Residential Development) dated 19 December 2007 between UEM Land, BND and
HPSE ("Development Agreement”} tor the development of a high end residential
enclave over 111 acres held under H.5.{D) 453895, PTD 154910, Mukim Pulai, Daerah
Johor Bahru, Johor Darul Takzim. Pursuant to this supplemental agreement, the
development period was extended to 8.5 years from the effective date {being the
completion date of the share sale agreement between Limitless angé AHSB), ahd the
methods of payment ot UEM Land's entitlement under the Development Agreement were
varied.

MATERIAL LITIGATION

As at the LPD, save as disclosed below, neither we nor any of our subsidiaries are engaged in
any material litigation, claims andfor arbitration either as plaintiff or defendant, which may affect
our income from, title to, or possession of any ot their assets and/or business, and we are not
aware ot any proceedings, pending or threatened, or of any tacts likely to give rise to any
proceedings which may affect the income from, title to, or possession of any ot the assets andfor
business of our Group:

(i)

Our Company and/or our group of companiss as plalntiff(s)

Appaal against tha amount of compensation awardad for the land acquired for the
preposad Johor Bahru-Nuaajaya Goastal Highway

in 2008, the Johor State Authority acquired approximately 205 acres ol our Group’s land
on 14 plots for the pumpose of the proposad Johor Bahru-Nusajaya Coastal Highway
project. Up to 4 November 2008, the land administrator made an award ot compensation
totalling RM56,609,191 to our Group. Our Group put forward an appe_al for a higher
gompensation amount and the matter was referred to the High Court in Johor Bahru
(“Court”) as land reference case. On & October 2010, the Court has made an order in
favour ot our Group for an aggregate award ot approximately RM4& million. As at the
LPD, our Group is not aware if the Johor State Authority would appeal against the said
award.

- 140 -



(iiy

Our Company and/or our group of companies as defendant(s]

l.egal action by Vulindlela Holdings {Pty) Limited and Vulindlela Investments {Pty)
Limlted agalnst Renong Overseas Corporation Sdn Bhd (“ROC™)

Vulindlela Holdings {Pty} Limited has jeintly with Vulindlela Investments {Pty} Limited
("Applicants") filed interlocutory proceedings in the High Court of South Africa, Durban
and Coast Local Division against ROC. The Applicants are companies incarporated in
South Africa and hold direct and indirect interest in ROC-Union (Proprietary) Limited, a
subsidiary of Renong Overseas Corporation 5. A. (Proprietary) Limited {"ROCSA™), which
in fum iz a wholly-owned subsidiary of ROC. ROCSA and Vulindlela Investments (Ply)
Limited respectively hold 80.4% and 19.8% equity interest in ROC-Union (Proprietary)
Limited.

The Applicants are requesting for a relief to injunct ROC from completing its sale of
shares in ROCSA to Bonatla Property Holdings Limited ("Bonatla®} and/or its nominee,
VLC Commercial & Industral Pty Lid ("VLC") pending the determination of the court case
brought by the Applicants. The Applicants’ main contention is that they have a tacit pre-
emptive right at ROCSA level which they claimed was not granted to them. In the evant
the Applicants’ action is successful, the sale of shares to Bonatia which is expected to
realise a gain on disposal of approximately RiM35 million will have o be aborted.

At the hearing of the matter on 17 October 2008, the Court granted an order which
records that the application is adjourned pending Bonatla andfor VLC furnishing the
Applicants with further docurments. The parties are still in negotiations to settle the mattar
out-of-court.

5 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

5.1

5.2

Capital commitments

As at 30 September 2010, save as disclosed below, our Board is not aware of any
capital commitmants incurred or known to be incumed by our Group in relation to
property, plant and machinery and investment property.

RM milllon
Approved and contracted for 7.4
Approved but not contracted for 4.7
Total 12,1

The capital commitments abova are in relation o the davelopment cost_s for the
construction of a club house and a neighbourhood commercial centre which will be used
for business and investment purposes.

Contingent liabllities

As at the LPD, save as disclosed below and the material litigation set out in Section 4 of
this Appendix VI, our Board is not aware of any material contingent liabilities, which may,
upon being enforceable, have a material adverse effect on our Group's profits or net
assetfs.

{n Potential compensation payable to Felcra Berhad (“Felcra”} settlers

(@) A group of 38 Felora settlers (‘Plaintlffs") has collactively ser\_red an
originating summons against Felcra, the District Land Administrator
("DLA") and the Johor State Government (collectively, 'Defendants”}.
The summons pertain to 188 acres of land previcusly owned by the
Johor State Government, developed by Felcra and subsequently
alienated to BND for the development of Nusajava, Johor Darul Takzim.
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(ii)

BND is not directly involved in this litigation, but by virtue of a novation
agreement dated 2 December 1984 entered into between BND, UEMG
and the Johor State Authority (*1924 Nowvation Agreement’), is
responsible for the additional land cost of land alignated to it, which
includes the amounts claimed by the Plaintiffs, in the event their claims
are successful.

The Plaintiffs seek, infer-alia, an additional total sum of RM54.0 million
and an acre of land to each Plzintiff from the Defendants.

n 12 January 2010, the High Court of Malaya {"High Court’) has made
a decision against Felera for breach of contract and dismissed the
Plaintiffs action against the DLA and the Johor State Gowvernment.
However, the Plaintiffs on 8 February 2010 filed & notice of appeal to the
Court of Appeal to appeal against the decision of the High Court on the
quantum against Felcra and the dismissal of the action against the DLA
and the Johor State Government.

Potential compensation payable to the previous landowners

There are altogether 50 cases referrad to the High Court involving claims
against the Johor State Gevernment for additional compensation amounting to
RMB34.8 million by the previous landowners of lands acquired for the Malaysia-
Singapore Second Crossing Project.

When these 50 cases were heard at the High Court, the High Court maintained
the amount of compensation awarded by the DLA in 15 cases, whilst increasing
the amount of compensation in 35 others. The parties involved have made
further appeals to the Court of Appeal for higher compensation. However, the
Court of Appeal ordered that all land acquisition appeals fo be transferred to the
Federal Court.

Cf these 50 cases:

(a) 1 had been heand and dismissed by the Court of Appeal;

(b 4 had peen heard and dismissed by the Federal Coun;

(c) 2 had accepted an out-of-court settiement proposed by the Joher State
Legal Advisor,

(d} 4 had withdrawn their cases against the DLA; and

{el 2 had been granted additional compensation amounting to RM18.5
million by the Federal Court.

The total land appeal cases pending are 37 and the contingent liability is
RM201.3 million.

BND is not directly involved in this litigation, but by virtue of the 1924 Novation
Agresment, BND is responsible far the additiona! land cest of land alienated to
it, which includes the amounis claimed by the landowners in the event their
respective glaims are succesaful.

To date, no date has been fixed for hearing.
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{fii}

{iv)

Tax returns

On 16 January 2007, UEM Land received a notice of additional assessment
from the Inland Revenue Board for additional tax payable and tax penalty in
respect of years of assessment 2003 and 2004, which would have resulted in an
additional expense to UEM Land of RM37,840,702.65. UEM Land has started
the appeal process against the additional assessment.

On 28 May 2008, the Director of Technical Department of the Inland Revenue
Board has informed UEM Land that the said appeal has been forwarded to the
Special Commissioners of Income Tax. As of 31 December 2009, UEM Land
has fully paid the additional tax payable and penaity of RM37,640,702.65 to the
Inland Revenue Board.

Basad cn the tax agent's advice received, no provision for income tax expense
has been made by our Group for this addilional tax assessment and penalty
thereon as our Directors believed that the grounds for the appeal are valid. The
hearing of the case by the Special Commissioners of income Tax is scheduled
on 29 November 2010.

Third party charge

On 18 May 2007, Horizon Hills Development Sdn Bhd {(*HHDSB®), a 50:50 joint
venture company between UEM Land and Gamuda Berhad, entered into the
following: :

(a) the issue of, offer for subscrption or purchase of, or invitation to
subscribe for or purchase of Islamic Securities of up to RM270 millicn
nominal value by HHDSB, comprising: '

(aa) up to 12-year Islamic Bank Guarantee Medium-Term Notes
Programme of up o RM200 milion nominal value under the
principles of Murabahah ("IMTN Programme’); and

{bb)  up to 7-year Islamic Commercial Papers Frogramme of up to
RM70 million nominal value under the principles of Murabahah;
and

{b) a Kafalah {bank guarantee) facility of up to RM205 million to g_ugrantee
the nominal value of the IMTN Programme of up to RM2C0 million and
ong profit payment in respect of the IMTN Programme of up to RM3
million,

{collectively referred to as the "Facilities”).

In this respect, Nusajaya Greens Sdn Bhd, our indirect wholly-owned subs]diar?r,
had provided a third party charge over approximately 1,227 acres of land In
favour of the security trustee for the Facilities ("Charge”). As at the LPD, 754
acres out of the total of 1,227 acres have been purchased and paid for by
HHDSB.

in connection with the Facilities, UEM Land has also provided an undertaking to

inject equity intc HHDSB with an aggregate amount of RM155 _million in
circumstances where HHDSB is unable to meet certain financial obligaticns.
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CORPORATE PROPOSALS ANNOUNCED BUT PENDING COMPLETION

Save for the Proposals and as disclosed below, we have not anncunced any other corporate
proposals which have yet to be completed as at the LPD:

)

(if)

(iii)

{iv)

a development agreement dated 1€ June 2005 "HHDSB Development Agreement”)
between Nusazjaya Greens Sdn Bhd and Horizon Hills Development Sdn Bhd
(*HHDSB"), a 50:50 joint venture company between UEM Land and Gamuda Berhad, for
the devetopment ot approximately 1,227 acres of land in Nusajaya, Johor Darul Takzim
into a mixed development and 18-hole golf course, ¢clubhouse and facilities together with
the appropriata primary and secondary infragtructure, and other types of complementary
development, which was announced on 16 June 2005 by UEM World Berhad (now
known as Global Converge Sdn Bhd). As part ot the HHDSB Development Agreement,
the said tand will be acquired by HHDSB for the development known as Horizon Hills,
which Is currently ongoing and is expected to be completed by 20118, As at the LPD, 754
acres out of the total of 1,227 acres have been purchasad and paid for by HHDSE;

option to purchase agreement dated 14 October 2008 between UEM Land, BND and
Nusajaya Consclidated Sdn Bhd {"Nusajaya Consolidated”) for Nusajaya Consolidated
to purchase 2 pieces of land in Puteri Harbour, Nusajaya, Johor Darul Takzim, with 2
total area measuring approximately 8.8 acres tor cash consideration at an option price ot
RM67,154,274 exercisable within 6 manths trom the date of the agreement. This
agreement was subsequently supplemented by the supplemental option to purchase
agreement dated 13 July 2008 where it provided for the exchange ot 1 of the 2 pieces of
land with an adjacent piece ot land resulting in the option tor the 2 pfeces of fand
measuring approximately 89 acres for cash consideraton at an option price of
RME7.841,216.20 expiring on 31 December 2009. Nusajaya Consclidated exercised the
opticn to purchase 1 of the 2 pieces of land on 10 November 2008. Cn 21 December
2009, UEM Land, BND and Nusajaya Consolidated have mutually agreed to extend the
expiry date tor the option in respect ot the other piace ot land to 31 December 2010;

a sale and purchase agreement dated 7 November 2009 between UEM Land, BND and
Themed Aftractions and Resorts Sdn Bhd ("TAR"), tor TAR to acquire 2 parcels of land
in Puteri Harbour, Nusajaya, Johor Darul Takzim with a total area measuring
approximately 4.221 acres for a cash consideration of RM26,661,440, which was
announced on © November 2009. This transaction is expected to be completed by 31
December 2010;

land purchase agreement dated 16 November 2009 (“LPA") between UEM Land,
Nusajaya Heights Sdn Bhd and Malaysian Bio-XCell 3dn Bhd ("Blo-XCell™), the joint
venture formed with Malaysian Biotechnoiogy Corporation Sdn Bhd as set out in iterm (iv}
of Section 3 of this Appendix VI, tor the dispesal of a parcel of land measunng
approximately 27.74 acres in Southern Industrial and Logistics Clusters, Nusajaya, Johor
Darul Takzim tor a consideration of RM16,160,214 together with infrastructure costs of
RM15,257 000 and the grant of an option to Bio-XCell to purchase additional land
measuring approximately 3324 acres within 2 years from the date ot the LPA. The
option tor Bio-XCell to purchase the additional land from UEM Land was exercised on 12
November 2010 and transaction is expected to be completed by 30 June 2011;

a sale and purchase agreement dated 22 April 2010 between UEM Land and Encorp
Iskandar Development Sdn Bhd, a wholly-owned subsidiary ot Encorp Berhad, tor the
disposal of a parcel ot land in Puteri Harbour, Nusajaya, Johor Daru! Takzim with a total
land area ot approximately 3.3 acres tor a cash consideration of RM25,880,321.60. This
transaction is expected to be completed by 22 April 2012; and
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(i)

a development agreement and a supplemental development agreement dated 19
December 2007 and 4 November 2010, respectively, between UEM Land, BND and
Haute Property Sdn Bhd for the development of a high end regidential enclave over 111
acres held under H.5.{D) 453885, PTD 154910, Mukim Pulai, Daerah Johor Babru,
Johar Darut Takzim. The devefopnent is expecied to be completed within the next 8.5
years.

The Proposgals are not conditional upon any other corporate proposals.

DOCUMENTS FOR INSPECTION

Coples of the following documents may be inspected at our registered office at 18-2, Mercu
UEM, Jalan Stesen Sentral 5, Kuala Lumpur Sentral, 50470 Kuala Lumpur dunng office hours on
Mondays to Fridays (except public holidays) from the date of this Circular up to and including the
date of our EGM.

{0}
(ii}

{fii}

{iv}

(v)

(vi}
{vii)

Memarandum and Articles of Assaciation of cur Company and Sunrise,

our wroforma consclidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2008 together with the
Reparting Accountants’ Letter as set out in Appendix IV of this Circular,

Sunrise’ audited consolidated financial statements for FYE 30 June 2009 and FYE 30
June 2010 as well as Sunrise’s iatest unaudited quarterly results for the 3-month
financial pericd ended 30 September 2010;

our audited consclidated financial statements for FYE 31 December 2008 and FYE
December 2009 as well as our latest unaudited quarterly results for the 9-month financial
period ended 30 September 2010;

letters of consent referred to in Section 2 of Appendix V1 of this Gircular;

material contracts refered to in Section 3 of Appendix VI of this Gircular; and

cause papers for the material litigations referred to in Section 4 of Appendix V1 of this
Circular.
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A member of UEM Group

UEM LAND HOLDINGS BERHAD

{Gompany No.: 830144-A7)
{incorporated in Maleysia under the Companjes Act, 1965)

NOTICE OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that tha Extraordinary Ganaral Maating ("EGM") of UEM Land Holdings
Berhad {"WLHB" or “Company™) will be heid on Wednesday, 22 December 2010 at 10.00 a.m., or at any
adjournment thereot, at Banquet Hall, Menara Korporat, Persada PLUS, Persimpangan Bertingkat
Subang, KM15, Labuhraya Baru Lembah Klang, 47301 Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darut Ehsan tor tha
purpose ot considaring and it thought fit, passing with or without modifications the tollowing resclutions:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION

CONDITIONAL TAKE-OVER OFFER BY ULHB TO ACQUIRE ALL THE ORDINARY SHARES OF
RM1.00 EACH IN SUNRISE BERHAD ("SUNRISE”} (EXCLUDING TREASURY 3HARE3] NOT
ALREADY OWNED BY ULHB {"OFFER SHARES") AT AN OFFER PRICE OF RM2.80 PER OFFER
SHARE {"OFFER")

“THAT subject to the approvals of the relevant authorilies and the passing of the Special Resolution,
authority be and is hereby given te the Beard of Directors of ULHB {"Board"} to carry out and progead to
acquire the Offer Sheres et an offar prica of RM2.80 per Offer Share to be safisfied in either of the
following manner, at the election of the holder ot Offer Shares ("Holder"):

i) through the issuance of new ordinary shares of RM0.50 each in ULHB ("ULHB Shares”} at an
issue price of RM2.10 each (“Consideration Shares”), where the Holders wili receive
approximately 1.33 Consideration Shares for every 1 Offer Share surrendered; or

{ii) thraugh the issuance of new redeemable convertible preference shares of RM0.01 each in ULHB
("RCPS") at an issue price of RM1.00 each (“Conelderation RCPE’), where the Holders wili
raceive 2,80 Consideration RCPS for every 1 Offer Share surrendered;

THAT euthority ba and is hereby given to the Directors ot ULHE:

(i to issue and allot up to 660,520,622 Consideration Shares and up to 1,387,093.307
Consideration RCPS at any tima to such persons pursuant to the Offer upon the tarms and
subject to the conditions contained in the Offar Document dated 25 November 2010 in relation to
the Offer;

(i) to issue and allot up to 1,387,093.307 new ULHB Sheras pursuant to tha convarsion ot the
Consideration RCPS (“Converslon Shares"™);

THAT the Consideration Shares and Convarsion Shares shall, upon issue and alletmart, rank parf passu
in all respacts with the then existng ULHB Shares, save and except that the holders of such
Consideration Shares andfor Conversion Shares shall not be entitied to any dividend, right, allotmert
and/or distribution, the entittement date of which is prior to the date of allotment of such Considaration
Shares and/or Conversion Shares, as the case may be;

THAT the Consideration RGPS shall, upon issue and allotmant, rank pari passu amongst themselves;



AND THAT in order to implement, complete and give full effect to the OHer, approval be and is hereby
given to the Boerd to do or to procure to be done all acts, deeds and things and to execute, sign and
deliver on behalf of ULHB, all such documents as it may deem necessary, expedient and/or appropriate
to implement, complete and give full effect to the Offer, with full powers to assent to any condition,
madification, variation and/or amendment thereto as the Board may deem fit in connaction with the Offar
and in the best interest of ULHB."

SPECIAL RESOLUTION

PROPOSED INCREASE IN ULHB'S AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL TD RM3,517,000,000
CDMFRISING 7,000,000,000 ULHB SHARES, 200,000,000 MANDATDRY CDNVERTIBLE
REDEEMABLE PREFERENCE SHARES DF RM0.01 EACH IN ULHB (“MCRFS") AND 1,500,000,000
RCPS AND NECESSARY AMENDMENTS TO ULHB'S MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF
ASSQCIATION (“PROPOSED 1ASC™)

“THAT subject to the passing of the Ordinary Resolution, the authorised share capital of ULHB be
increased from RM2,502,000,000 divided Into 5,000,000,000 ULHB Sheres end 200,000,000 MCRFS to
RM3,517,000,000 divided into 7,000,000,000 ULHB Shares, 200,000,000 MCRPS and 1,500,000,000
RCPS by the creation of 2,000,000,000 ULHB Shares and 1,500,000C,000 RCPS;

THAT the Memorandum and Articles of Associetion of ULHB be sitered, modified, edded end delsted in
the form end menner es sat out in Appendix Il of the Circular o ULHB's shareholders dated 30
Movember 2010;

AND THAT in order to implement, complete and give full effect to the Proposed 1ASC, approval be and is
hereby given to the Board to do or to procure to be done ell ects, deeds end things end to execute, sign
and deliver on behelf of ULHB, all such documents as it may deem necessaty, expedient and/or
appropriate to implement, complete and give full effect to the Proposed IASC, with full powers to assent
to any condition, modification, veriation endfor amendment thereto as the Board may deem fit in
conngction with the Proposed IASC and in the best interast of ULHB."

FURTHER NDTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT for the purpose of determining a member who shall be
entitied to attend the EGM, ULHB shall request fram Bursa Malaysia Depository 3dn Bhd in accordence
with the provisions under Articles 58 and 59 of ULHB's Articles of Association and Section 34(1) of the
Securities Industry {Central Depositories) Act, 1981 10 issue a General Meeting Record of Depositors
{‘General Meeting RDD") as at 16 December 2010, Only a depositor whose name appears on the
General Meeting ROD as at 16 December 2010 shall be entitied to aitend the said meeting or appoint
proxies to attend and vote on hisfher behalf.

BY ORDER OF THE BDARD

Tan Hwee Thian (MIA 1904)
Mohd Nor Azam Mohd Salleh (MAICSA T028137)
Company Secretaries

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
30 November 2010



Notes:

1.

Every membar is gntitfed to appoint a proxy or in the case of a corporation, to appoint a represaniative to
affand and vole in his place. A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company and the provision of
Section 148{1 )b} of the Companies Act 1965 need not ba complied with.

To ba valid, the arginal form of proxy duly complefed must be depasited at the Share Ragistrars office,
Symphony Share Registrars Sdn Bhd, Level 8, Symphony House, Pusat Dagangan Dana 1, Jalan FJUTA/S,
47307 Fataling Jaya, Selengor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia nof lags than 48 hours hafors the fime of holding the
meeting.

The instrument appointing e proxy shiall be in wrifing under the hand of the appoinfor or his atformgy duly
authorised in writing or if such appointor is a corporation, undar fis common seal or undar the hand of jfs
aftormey.

If the proxy fonm fs returnad without any indication as (o how the proxy shall volte, the proxy will vate or abstain
as he thinks fit.

If no name is inserfed it the space provided for tha name of your proxy, the Chairman of the maefing wilf act
88 Yaur proxy.

A member holding one thousand {1,000} ordinary shares orless may appaint oy one (1) proxy o attend and
vole at the meefing who shiall represant el the shares haid by such member. A membar tolding maore than one
thousand (1,000} ordinary shares may appoint up to fen (10) proxias fo affend and vole al the same meeling and
each praxy appointed, shall represent a minimurn of one thotsand (1,000) ordinary shares. Where a member
appoints ona (1) or more proxies to atiend and vofe at tha same meefing, such appointment(s) shall ba invalid
wess the member spacifies the proporfion of his shareholding to ba represented by each proxy.



UEM_
A member of UEM Group DRI . .;‘;;__;‘

UEM LAND HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Company No.: 83014440
[]ncnrpnrated in Malaysia under the Companies Act, 1985}

PROXY FORM

©0 €S AvcountNo .« |

{(FULL ADDRESS)
being a member/members of UEM LAND HOLDINGS BERHAD ("Company”}, hereby appoint......... e

{FULL ADDRESS)

or failing him/her, the Chairman of the meeting as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at
the Extracrdinary General Meeting of the Company to be held at Banguet Hall, Menara Korporat, Persads
PLUS, Persimpangah Bertingkat Subang, KM15, Lebubhraya Baru Lembah Klang, 47301 Petaling Jaya,
Selangor Darul Ehsan on Wednesday, 22 December 2010 at 10.00 a.m., or at any adjournment therecf.

My/Our proxy is fo vole as indicated below:

FOR AGAINST

ORDINARY RESCOLUTION OFFER

SPECIAL RESOLUTION PROPQOSED IASC

{Pleaso indicate with a *»™ or "X" in tho boxes provided above how you wish your waies to ba cast. If you do not do so, tho proxy will
voto or abstain from voting 2t his discretion.)

Signature
(If shareholder is a corporation, this part should be executed under seal)

Dated this . ..o day of oo 2010 Telephone fo. .. e,

Notes:

1. Every member is entitted to appoint a proxy or in the cese of a corporation, to appoint a representafive to affend
and vote in his place. A proxy may bul need nat be a member of the Company and the provision of Section
149(1){b) af the Companies Act 1365 need not b compliad with.

2 To be valid, the original form of proxy duly complsted must be deposited af the Share Registrar's office.

Symphony Share Registrars Sdn Bnd, Level 6, Symphony House, Pusat Dagangan Dana 1, Jalan PJU1A/48,
47301 Petaling Jaya, Sselangor Daryl Efsan, Malaysia not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the

meefing.

3 The instrument appointing & proxy shall be In wiiting under the hand of the appointor or his affomey dily
authonised in writing or if such appaintor is a corporation, undsr its common seal or ynder the hand of its allomey.

4, it the proxy form is returnad withaut any indication as to how the proxy shall vots, the proxy witt vote or absfain as
he thinke fit.

s If no name Is inserted in the space provided for the name of yeur proxy, the Chaimman of the meeting will act as
YOUT DFOXY,

5. A member holding one thousand {1,000) ordinary shares or less may appoint enly one {1) proxy fo atftend and vote at
the meeting who shall represent all the shares held by such member. A member holding mare than one (housand
(1,000) ordinary shares may appoint up te fen {10} proxies to atfend and vote at the same meeting and each proxy
appointed, shall represent & mirimum of one thausand (1,000} ordinary shares. Where a mamber appaints one {1)ar
more proxies fo aftend end vote at the same meeling, such appoinimeni(s} shall he invalid unless the member
specifies the proportion of his shareholding to be represented by each proxy.
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AFFIX
STAMP

THE SHARE REGISTRAR

Symphony Sharg Registrars Sdn Bhd (378303-I
Level 6, Symphany House

Pusat Dagangan Dana 1

Jalan PJU1AME

4731 Petaling Jaya

Selangor Darul Ehsan

Malaysia

1< fold here
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